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CORPORATE PROFILE
AFEN

Parkson Retail Group Limited (the “Company”) is one of the few nationwide department
store chain operators in the People's Republic of China (“the PRC"). The Parkson brand
was introduced to the Beijing market in the early 1990's and has now expanded to
cover 37 major cities across the PRC market. Through the Company's subsidiaries, a joint
venture and an associate (hereinafter collectively refer to as the "Group"”), the Group
now operates and manages 58 stores.

Localisation and consistent market positioning is the key strategy for the continuous
growth and success of Parkson. We are tailoring our merchandise assortments, brand
mix and floor space allocation on a store-by-store basis to better serve our targeted
middle to middle-upper end consumers in every city that we operate. The Group
offers a wide range of internationally renowned brands of fashion and lifestyle related
merchandises focusing on four main categories of merchandise namely, Fashion &
Apparel, Cosmetics & Accessories, Household & Electrical, and Groceries & Perishables,
targeting the young and contemporary market.

BEMEEEBRAR ([ARA]) RPEAR
HAE ([HhE]) PE2EEEREEELER
Z— e BEMERNTFRIEALRTS
AORREEETEBAIEZENT - AR
AMEAR - —HAaBERREBERR (TG
I AEE]) RELEREESRAGE

AR ER—BNTISEMR B EEEHE
BERBSERNNEIERE AEENSHEA
EEREERETRER mEEAAREER
ENBNEH I AARBEREMERTOGR D
BEREEERY - AREIRH—RIIBEEREA
ZmENREREERHEG ZF@AMA
DRERE NIFERRE]  [MEtm ki
#l XEAMEERIMIEMEER] 5
R R FE MBS — MR



EEnEzemarRAs ]
PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED

2013 ANNUAL REPORT | FE#%

CONTENTS
B &

2 Corporate Information 22 Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
REEHR EEREREERERE
4 Expansion in the Year 2013 28 Corporate Governance Report
TE-CZFXKER EEERRE
6 Chairman's Statement 41 Directors' Report
IEHES EZegEE
1 2 Financial Highlights 61 Independent Auditors' Report
MBHE BUBRHBAMBmESE
1 6 Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN




2 2013 ANNUAL REPORT | £E##E

CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: HITES

Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem (Chairman) FHET B EBERR (£/2)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: FHTES

Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong eEERE

TAN Hun Meng PRZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: BIAFHITES

KO Tak Fai, Desmond =iEE

STUDER Werner Josef STUDER Werner Josef

YAU Ming Kim, Robert el

REGISTERED OFFICE TMEE

c/o M & C Corporate Services Limited #3ZM & C Corporate Services Limited

PO Box 309 PO Box 309

Ugland House, South Church Street Ugland House, South Church Street

George Town, Grand Cayman George Town, Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS BPEERTEER LR

7th Floor, Parkson Shopping Centre (Sun Palace) s

Qisheng Middle Street, Northeast of 3rd Ring Road bR

Chaoyang District 5=

Beijing 100028 R ZIREEFRE

PRC BEREYHL (KBEEE) 78
4R 100028

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG EBTEEEME

Level 54 Hopewell Centre B

183 Queen's Road Fast SR RNER1835E

Hong Kong B M 05418

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER HEHTE

CHONG Sui Hiong (as Interim CEQ) win (R ERIITE)

COMPANY SECRETARY DEWE

SENG SZE Ka Mee, Natalia FCS (PE), FCIS, MBA (Executive), JLHENNZEFCS (PE), FCIS, MBA (Executive), FHKIoD, FTIHK
FHKIoD, FTIHK

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT BEHEETE

AU Chen Sum, CPA (Malaysia), CA (MIA) [% R #XCPA (Malaysia),CA (MIA)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EERE

Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong 2EERE

SENG SZE Ka Mee, Natalia WRHIIES

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE

KO Tak Fai, Desmond (Chairman) == (£E)

STUDER Werner Josef STUDER Werner Josef

YAU Ming Kim, Robert Fr#aal
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

YAU Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman)
Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem
KO Tak Fai, Desmond

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

STUDER Werner Josef (Chairman)
Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong
YAU Ming Kim, Robert

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN THE PRC

Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Merchants Bank

The Bank of East Asia

Bank of Communications

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN HONG KONG

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE

www.parksongroup.com.cn
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EXPANSION IN THE YEAR 2013
TE-FERER

Hefei &R

Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza
Co., Ltd. Tian'ehu Branch

AEEREERSAERAR
RIEH 7 A7)

Chongqing EE

Chongging Wanyou Parkson
Plaza Co., Ltd. Fortune Mall
Branch
EEERARESABRAA
ﬁj- I:F"I_,\/_\/_\

Datong X[

Shanxi Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. Datong Branch

LI EEBEERGRAA
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Baoding {R7E

Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. Baoding Branch
BEREFRERARAA
RED QA
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EXPANSION IN THE YEAR 2013
TE-—FERER

Panzhihua 21t

Panzhihua Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd.

ERIEAEREERER AR

Nanchang B8 &

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd.
Hengmao Branch
IEBEEF LB ERRAR

BRBRAESH AR
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ETEHEE

The year 2013 marked the 19th year of Parkson's operation in the PRC —ZF - =FJIABRABFEMHEHHNF19

market. The Group is now one of the largest department store operators F o AEE BB ERAARPET IS &

in the PRC market with 58 stores across 37 cities. Before | go any further, ~AMBEARZERZ —  XEHBEEN

| would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere appreciation to  * BI37{EMTH » AL=L58ZK/EE ° UL - T

the management and the workforce for their hard work, dedication and ~ aEre bt ERRMERE R TEABRRT

sacrifices throughout the year. RO - BRI PIEZFETROFEE
&) - EALFRIEI A o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Given the intensifying competition and increasing number of new stores
and younger stores with lower margin performance, the Group's overall
merchandise gross margin declined by 0.7% to 17.5% in 2013. Profit from
operations of the Group declined by 49.7% to RMB543.4 million. Apart
from the external factors, the weaker financial performance reported by the
Group in 2013 was also attributable to: (i) the temporary closure of Shanghai
flagship store for major remodeling; (ii) the short-term disruption brought
by the on-going subway constructions to the business operation of certain
key flagship stores, which include stores located at Wuxi, Nanchang, 2 stores
in Nanning and Hefei respectively; and (iii) the inclusion of non-comparable
items which include the accelerated depreciation and provision for penalty
of early termination of lease contracts of stores with potential closure which
amounted to RMB87.1 million. Excluding the non-comparable impacts as
highlighted above, operating profit of the Group was in fact declined by
15.1% on same store basis. Operating loss of new stores (4 and 6 stores
opened in the year 2012 and 2013 respectively) came in at approximately
RMB193.1 million (included an adjustment for straight line rental amounted
to RMB89.7 million) in 2013.

Concessionaire sales recorded a growth of 4.6%, marginally outgrew the
direct sales and accounted for approximately 90.5% of the total merchandise
sales and the direct sales increased by 2.5% and accounted for approximately
9.5% of the total merchandise sales.

The Group has been revamping and remodeling its existing flagship stores
as part of the continuous effort to enhance store image and improve
productivity. Such strategy has been generally successful with majority
of flagship stores showing noticeable improvement in its performance
thereafter. During the year under review, the Group completed the major
remodeling of the Shanghai flagship store as well as the adjustment and
increase of operating area to the Beijing flagship store in order to enhance
its competitiveness in the highly competitive and fast changing market. In
line with the Group's efforts to rationalize its store portfolio, the Group
closed an underperforming store in Shijiazhuang and terminated the
management contract of a managed store in Guizhou.

ERBRFEMEBEENERRBEAIE
MIEEEHERSE T —=F41r5H
BB G E A KT FR0.7%ZE17.50% ° A
EBEEEFEFET BK40.700E AR
543,400,0007T ° MFAINMEREZE + REER
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() EEEEE AR BHTE M S R
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2 EGiNAF RSB IR TE R
AR I E A RMS & EEN AR L IE
B AR #87,100,0007T ° #fi k& it~ Al [
LhIEER - ASEMRELENBERT
B15.100c RZTE—=F - FEKLEE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

In line with the Group's expansion strategy, the Group continued to open 6
new stores in 2013 with additional gross floor area of approximately 207,000
square meters. As at 31 December 2013, the Group operates and manages
58 stores across 37 major cities in China, with a total gross floor area of
approximately 2 million square meters.

During the year under review, the Group has successfully issued a 5-year
US$500 million bond which carries a coupon of 4.5% per annum. The
proceeds of the bond were primarily used to refinance the short-term
borrowings which consisted of the US$400 million syndicated loan and the
US$50 million bridge loan.

PROSPECT

The complicated global economic condition is set to continue in the near
future. Although the potential hard landing in the advanced economies
have diminished, additional measures will be needed to keep them at bay,
including timely increases in the United States debt ceiling and continued
"do what it takes" action by the euro area authorities to avoid a sharp
deterioration in financial conditions. In contrast, risks of a longer growth
slowdown in emerging market economies have now increased, due to
protracted effects of domestic capacity constraints, weak external conditions,
slowing credit growth, and possibly tighter financial conditions if the
unwinding of monetary stimulus in the United States leads to sustained
capital flow reversals.

As for China, we believe the government now has a greater tolerance for
slower growth, and reforms that concentrate on structural issues should
ensure emphasis is placed on quality instead of quantity of growth. We
also believe reforms will reduce tail risks and better support medium to
long-term growth.

ETRBEE

ARAERRE  AEBEEN _T—
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Under its economic transformation program, it is expected that the China
central government will push forward comprehensive income distribution
reform from many aspects, such as the primary distribution, redistribution,
the growth of farmers' incomes and distribution order. As this crucial reform
is gradually carried out, China's domestic consumption will gain more
forward momentum.

In line with the macroeconomic direction and the expectation that the
household incomes will continue to outgrow the economic expansion to
improve the structural imbalance of the economy, the Group strongly believe
that the emergence of middle class should accelerate in the next decade.
Given the Group's middle to middle upper market position, the Group is
strategically positioned to capitalize on this anticipated improvement in the
economic and demographic structure of China.

Nevertheless, increasing competition is inevitable in this ever changing and
maturing retail market. In view of the unprecedented challenges that the
department store sector in China is facing, the Group will be making a series
of adjustments to its business strategies with an aim to turn these challenges
into opportunities. The Group will continue its refined expansionary strategy
with lesser but bigger new stores to be opened in the existing markets
or nearby cities to better utilize the Group's advantageous positions. To
maintain its competitive edge and to diversify its income stream, the Group
will invest into shopping mall development and operation to provide a fully
integrated shopping and entertainment experience to its customers. Average
size of new stores will be increased gradually to enhance its offering of
value merchandise and complementary services to better serve its customers.

Leveraging on its widespread network across China, the Group will continue
to explore potential collaborations with international renowned brands
on exclusive basis with an aim to introduce new and distinctive brands
to its customers with latest range of products in the market ahead of its
competitors. These collaborations with brands will enable the Group to build
a successful brands portfolio to further strengthen its core competencies, and
to shield its vulnerability to the structural challenges that the department
store operators are facing.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Group will also further strengthen its customer loyalty card program by
seeking differentiation and customization to further widen its customer base,
and to realign the floor space allocation in order to improve productivity and
increase rental income. Continuous cost rationalization exercise, through the
launching of mobile POS system will be carried out to all stores throughout
the country to reduce staff cost pressure and at the same time to improve
operating efficiency. The Group will also exploit the digital marketing
platform to achieve better marketing results. Immediate and necessary
actions will be taken against the underperforming stores to avoid further
losses. Given the continuing weak consumption sentiment, the Group will
continue to monitor closely changes to the merchandise gross margin and
make necessary adjustments to its marketing and promotional strategies to
protect its margin performance.

Lastly, on behalf of the board, | would like to express my heartiest gratitude
and sincere appreciation to all the stakeholders, including our shareholders,
lenders, suppliers and business associates for their continuous support and
contribution to the Group.

TAN SRl CHENG HENG JEM
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CHAIRMAN

ETRBEE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2012
Restated Change (%)
—E-—F
(&=5) £ ()
Operating Result (RMB'000) imesstE (\REFr)
Gross sales proceeds’ HEMGREAE 12,367,494 14105567 16,426,172 16756914 17,481,185 4.3%
Operating revenue g e 3908634 4400078 4938309 5034901 5,110,390 1.500
Profit from operations B EBMETHE 1330193 1467927 1508929 1079327 543,377 -49.7%
Profit for the year FERFE 937,354 1,023,657 1,152,754 879,704 372,602 -57.6%
Profit attributable to the Group ~ ZREEE(LFIE 910,846 991,808 1,122,929 850,774 353,646 -58.4%
Basic earnings per share (RMB)?  BRREAEF (ARE)? 0.325 0.353 0.400 0.303 0.126 -58.4%
Interim dividends per share FRPERS 0.050 0.060 0.070 0.070 0.050 -28.6%
Final dividends per share BRASRS 0.100 0.100 0.10 0.070 0.010 -85.7%
Full year dividends per share FREFRE 0.150 0.160 0.180 0.140 0.060 -57.1%
Gross sales proceeds Operating revenue
SHERTB B RMB'000 AR T 7T BEUINZE RMB'000 A R¥ FiT
A 17,481,185 A 5,110,390
16,756,914 5,034,901
16,426,172 4,938,309
14,105,567 4,400,078
3,908,634
123i494 I I I
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Profit from operations Profit attributable to the Group
4R 44 X138 RMB'000 A R T 7T 7N & [ FE {5 A SE RMB'000 A R T 7T
A A
1,508,929 Q=
1,467,927 991 808
1,330,193 910,846 :
850,774
1,079,327
543,377 353,646
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

2009 2010 2012
“TENF —T-TF % —F——F

Restated
(#&&E5))

Summary of statement of ~ BAFSAR I RILE

financial position (AR®FT)
(RMB'000)

Non-current assets JEMBEE 6,581,708  5322,573 5942426 6,306,884 7,183,754

Current assets MENE B 4,492,392 7,268,736 6,120,252 6,287,936 6,521,974

Total assets BEE 11,074,100 12,591,309 12,062,678 12,594,820 13,705,728

Current liabilities mEaE 4,011,530 5,987,169 3,882,002 6,452,661 4,061,816

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 3,070,425 2,014,989 2,840,083 480,799 3,961,911

Net assets BEFE 3,992,145 4,589,151 5,340,593 5,661,360 5,682,001

Represented by J//{—I—@J&\IE?%/T\

Equity attributable to YNSIE ZS PN

owners of the parent %¥ 3,920,078 4,512,240 5,268,085 5,584,031 5,597,187

Non-controlling interests  JEZEAR I R iE RS 72,067 76,91 72,508 77,329 84,814

Total equity YERE TS 3,992,145 4,589,151 5,340,593 5,661,360 5,682,001

NOTES: MisE :

1. Gross sales proceeds represent the sum of sales proceeds from direct - HERMSIUARBIE R ERHE RS

Ed
sales and concessionaire sales, income from providing consultancy and AFREHEMHEEREA - R
management services, rental income and other operating revenues. REBRRBEA - He ARG
W H A -

2. The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2. BE_FT =Ff+-A=1+—HBLFE
2013 is based on the net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the MERERBRDREFANERRFR
Company for the year of approximately RMB353,646,000 and the weighted *% A AREL T'J #9 A K. 15353,646,000
average number of 2,808,227,000 shares in issue during the year. TRERBHETMEF RN A

2,808,227,000f% 5t & °
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December BE_FT —_F+-A=1+—HBILFE
2012 is based on the net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the WEREARA - B*EE%WKQEHQ
Company for the year of approximately RMB850,774,000 and the weighted *% A ARE T'J #1 A K. 15850,774,000
average number of 2,810,490,250 shares in issue during that year. TREREHETMEFIRN A

2,810,490,250/% 5T & -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFWE D

TOTAL GROSS SALES PROCEEDS AND OPERATING REVENUES

The Group recorded a total GSP of RMB17,481.2 million (consists of direct
sales, sales proceeds from concessionaire sales, rental incomes, consultancy
and management service fees and other operating revenues) during the
year under review which representing a growth of 4.3% or RMB724.3
million Year On Year ("YOY"). The key contributors to the growth include (i)
inclusion of the sales performance of the 10 new stores opened in the year
2012 and 2013; and (i) inclusion of the sales performances of 4 acquired
stores that were previously managed by the Group on behalf of the parent
company. The growth was however partly offset by (i) the marginal decline
in SSS by 1.8%; (ii) the closure of Shanghai Honggiao store and Guizhou
JinFengHuang store in 2012 and Shijiazhuang store in 2013; and (iii) the
temporary closure of Shanghai flagship store due to major remodeling.

TOTAL SALES PROCEEDS

BT HEMSRBEAERLE RS
REBEFE  AEBEHEEHHEEMEN
I8 4858 A N R #17,481,200,0007T (B H
BHE FOUEREEMSKE ek
A BAREEREEUREMLELE W
W) REFREP (EFREL) ER43%
s A R #5724,300,0007T ° 2B EIIIEER
ROFAAZE——FR-_ZT—=ZFFHETE
PIEMHE R RIVGTALREBLRIR
HAREBEMNEURKEFIEHEE R
oo AR IR IS H)EJE $E S e
1.8% : (I EBUBEMEMESBEER =
T —FHRARAREERZZE—=FH#
B Reliii) G pE AR 5 R E R BUE T B B A
FAFTHLEE o

BFHEFERIE
2012
—ET——F

Restated

Total sales proceeds (RMB'000)

Direct sales BEEHEE
Concessionaire sales BT ERES

Total sales proceeds HEFT1S IR ERE

(&)

HEMBHAEAR (ARETIT)

1,537,520 1,576,693
14,370,811 15,036,040
15,908,331 16,612,733

The Group generated total merchandise sales of approximately RMB16,612.7
million. The Fashion & Apparel category made up approximately 46.6%
of the total merchandise sales, the Cosmetics & Accessories category
contributed approximately 43.4%, the Household & Electrical category
contributed approximately 4.2% and the balance of approximately 5.8%
came from the Groceries and Perishables category.

Due to intensifying competition and increasing number of younger and
new stores with lower margin performance, the Group's merchandise
gross margin (a combination of concessionaire commission rate and the
direct sales margin) declined by 0.7% to 17.5%. Specifically, the decline
in merchandise gross margin was primarily attributable to: (i) higher
sales contribution from the younger stores and new stores with lower
merchandise gross margin; (i) lower sales contribution from stores with
higher merchandise gross margin in particular the Beijing and Shanghai
flagship stores; and (iii) higher sales contribution from merchandise with
lower merchandise gross margin such as gold and jewelry.

AEBENEREELBEANDARE
16,612,700,0007T ° B 2% B2 A 25 48 Il (G 7

5H & M8 B H46.600 - b ik on £ AT 86 2B Bl 1A
#)43.400 + T K J& A fh B2 25 48 Bl IR 1A 4

4200 R N AI5.808 R E R EHEIES -

ARBEFMEREFERARECNITE
IEREHHAPIEHEE N ARBEFMIEE
EAE (GREFTEREERSEBERRE
BHEEEFR) TFR0.7%ZE17.50 « EFE M
T EREEENERTREZERR : ()F
MmEE TR ERRENEEEMIFEPEHE
BN (IMREEENERSHM
JE(LE2AFEEERN FEEER) HE
EHEMMLE TR Rii)EEEMNEEERE
m (=S RKE) HEMLERSFTH -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total operating revenues for the year grew by RMB75.5 million or 1.5% to
RMB5,110.4 million. The growth rate of operating revenues was lower than
the growth rate of the GSP due to (i) lower growth rate of management
and consultancy fees; (i) marginal decline of other operating revenues;
and (iii) lower concessionaire rate.

Operating Expenses
Purchase of goods and change in inventories

The purchase of goods and change in inventories refer to the cost of sales
for the direct sales. In line with the increase of direct sales, the cost of sales
rose to RMB1,333.7 million, an increase of 3.5% or RMB44.9 million YOY.

Staff costs

Staff costs increased by 22.8% YOY to RMB589.2 million. The substantial
increase was primarily attributable to (i) inclusion of the staff cost of
new stores opened in 2012 and 2013; (ii) inclusion of the staff cost of 4
managed stores acquired from the parent company; and (iii) general wage
rise. On a same store basis, staff cost increased by 6.1% due to general
wage rise.

As a percentage to GSP, the staff cost ratio increased from 2.9% to 3.4%.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased by 32.3% YOY to RMB387.9
million. The increase was primarily attributable to (i) the inclusion of
depreciation and amortization cost of the new stores opened in 2012 and
2013; (ii) the inclusion of depreciation and amortization cost of 4 managed
stores acquired from the parent company; (iii) additional depreciation cost
in relation to the remodeled stores; and (iv) accelerated depreciation of
stores with potential closure amounted to RMB57.1 million. On a same
store basis, the depreciation and amortization cost increased marginally
by 9.0% due to the remodeled stores.

As a percentage to GSP, depreciation and amortization cost ratio increased
from 1.7% to 2.2%.
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Rental Expenses

Rental expenses rose to RMB1,126.8 million, a substantial increase of 26.2%
or RMB233.6 million YQY, the increase was largely due to (i) the inclusion
of rental cost of the new stores opened in 2012 and 2013; (ii) the inclusion
of rental cost of 4 managed stores acquired from the parent company; and
(iii) the adjustment of straight-line rental of new stores and acquired stores
amounted to RMB116.2 million. The increase was partly offset by the rental
discounts received from the landlords in respect of the rental prepayment.
On a same store basis, the rental expenses growth was flat.

As a percentage to GSP, the rental expenses ratio increased from 5.3% to
6.4%.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses which consist of the (a) utilities cost; (b)
marketing, promotional and selling expenses; (c) property management
expenses; and (d) general administrative expenses rose to RMB1,129.4
million, an increase of 12.9% or RMB128.8 million due to (i) the inclusion
of full year other operating expenses for the new stores opened 2012
and 2013; (ii) the inclusion of pre-opening expenses and other operating
expenses of 4 managed stores acquired from the parent company; and (iii)
provision for penalty of early termination of lease contracts of stores with
potential closure amounted to RMB30 million. On a same store basis, other
operating expenses decreased by 2.1% in line with the Group's strategy to
control its operating cost.

Due to the aforesaid reasons, as a percentage to GSP, other operating
expenses ratio increased from 6.09% to 6.5%.

Profit from Operations

In light of the decline in SSS and contraction of merchandise gross margins,
temporary closure of Shanghai flagship store, higher start up losses of the
increasing new stores and non-comparable items, profit from operations
declined by 49.7% to RMB543.4 million. As a percentage to GSP, the
profit from operations margin declined from 6.4% last year to 3.19% in
2013. Excluding the impact of store closures and disruptions from subway
constructions, on a comparable basis, the profit from operations declined
by 15.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance Incomes, net

Net finance incomes declined by 58.3% to RMB32.0 million due to
combination of (i) increase in finance cost due to the refinancing of short-
term borrowings with a 5-year US dollar bonds which carry a relatively
higher interest rate; and (ii) interest expense arising from new offshore
short-term borrowings.

Share of Profit from a Joint Venture

This is the share of profit from Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development
Co. Ltd, a joint venture of the Company. The share of profit decreased by
23.0% to RMB35.8 million due to decline in merchandise gross margin and
increase in operating cost.

Share of Profit from an Associate

This is the share of profit from Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties
Management Co. Ltd, an associate of the Company, the share of profit
decreased marginally to RMB137,000.

Profit Before Tax (“PBT")
In light of the decline of profit from operating activities, PBT dropped

49.2% YOY to RMB611.3 million. As a percentage to GSP, PBT ratio
decreased from 7.2% to 3.5%.

Income Tax Expense

In line with the decline of PBT, the Group's income tax expenses decreased
by RMB84.2 million YOY to RMB238.7 million. However, the effective tax
rate for the year increased from 26.8% to 39.0% due to the increase of
operating loss of new stores and offshore interest expense which is not
tax deductible.

Net Profit for the year

Due to the aforesaid reasons, net profit for the year declined 57.6% to
RMB372.6 million. As a percentage to GSP, the net profit margin declined
from 5.2% to 2.1%.

Profit Attributable to the Group

Profit attributable to the Group dropped to RMB353.6 million, a decline of
RMB497.1 million or 58.4%.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 3 May 2013, the Company has successfully issued a 5-year US$500
million bond which carries a coupon of 4.5% per annum. The proceeds
of the bond were primarily used to refinance the short-term borrowings
which consisted of the US$400 million syndicated loan and the US$50
million bridge loan.

As at 31 December 2013, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group
(aggregate of principal guaranteed investment deposit, time deposits and
cash and bank balances deposited with licensed banks) stood at RMB4,814.0
million, representing a marginal decline of 2.9%. The decrease was primarily
due to (i) dividends payment of approximately RMB337.3 million to the
shareholders of the Company; (i) deposits payment of RMB573.1 million
for the acquisition of a shopping mall in Qingdao; (iii) balance payment of
RMB264.7 million for the acquisition of 4 managed stores from the parent
company; and (iv) maintenance capital expenditures and new store opening
capital expenditures of RMB442.3 million.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 23.3% as at 31 December
2013.

Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMBG,522.0 million, an increase of 3.7% or RMB234.1 million YOY. Net
assets of the Group as at 31 December 2013 rose to RMB5,682.0 million,
an increase of RMB20.6 million or 0.4% YOY.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has an onshore pledged deposit of
RMB146.6 million. Save for the above, no other asset is pledged to any
bank or lender.

Segmental Information

Over 90% of the Group's turnover and contribution to the operating profit
is attributable to the operation and management of department stores
and over 90% of the Group's turnover and contribution to the operating
profit is attributable to customers in the PRC and over 90% of the Group's
operating assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no analysis of segment
information is presented.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees

As at 31 December 2013, total number of employees for the Group was
9,454. The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013.

Treasury Policies

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions for
funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk. Hedging
instruments including swaps and forwards have been used in the past
and would be used in the future, if necessary, to ensure that the Group's
exposure to the foreign exchange rate fluctuation and the interest rate
fluctuation is minimized.

In relation to the term loan facilities, the Group has entered into interest
rate swaps to hedge the Group's exposure against interest rate fluctuation
and cross currency swap to minimise the Group's exposure to exchange
rate fluctuation.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 23.3% as at 31 December
2013.

EEEmE oM

3=
R-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—8 ' £&£EA
HEEFAI4547 BT - KEBEBRTE LR
BEIMFMA MG EESREANALRSEE -
VEAEBENF© - BE)RIELAFTEIESR
TRETRIBRETHH -

RAREE
AEER_ZE—=F+_A=+—HUIE
EREARREE -

MEBER
AEENEBRIZGEIRZUARBEEE - B
- BRREEMFECMEEETHERS
Sh o AEEAEZELRBRAR - NEE
BE-BERARBMNEHSOFH T
B ARVERTSHEERER SAKE
FrAdE 2 [EXR R R R ABBRERE -

REMEARBEMS » AEBED AT L=
= HI DA R R B P AAE 2 M R OR B
%+ W FT7 A N E B 4= HY DA A SR 18 A
2 B EREREERE o

RZE—=F+-A=+—H KEHE
T AR RR B 4B E FE R L 3R £23.300 ©




BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem, aged 71, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company. Tan Sri Cheng is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the company. He has more than 40 years of experience
in the business operations of the group companies (“The Lion Group")
encompassing retail, property development, mining, steel, agriculture and
computer. He oversees the operation of The Lion Group and is responsible
for the formulation and monitoring of the overall corporate strategic plans
and business development of The Lion Group.

Tan Sri Cheng was the President of The Associated Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of Malaysia ("ACCCIM") and The Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuala Lumpur and Selangor (“KLSCCCI")
from 2003 to 2012. He is now a Life Honorary President of ACCCIM and
an Honorary President of KLSCCCI.

Tan Sri Cheng's directorships in public companies are as follows:

- Chairman and Managing Director of Lion Corporation Berhad and
Parkson Holdings Berhad ("PHB")

- Chairman of Lion Diversified Holdings Berhad, Lion Forest Industries
Berhad, Lion AMB Resources Berhad and ACB Resources Berhad

- Director of Lion Teck Chiang Limited and Lion Asiapac Limited
- Executive Chairman of Parkson Retail Asia Limited

- A Founding Trustee of The Community Chest, a company limited by
guarantee incorporated for charity purposes.

Save for Lion AMB Resources Berhad, ACB Resources Berhad and The
Community Chest, all the above companies are public listed companies in
Malaysia whilst Lion Teck Chiang Limited, Lion Asiapac Limited and Parkson
Retail Asia Limited are public listed companies in Singapore.

Tan Sri Cheng is the uncle of Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong, the Non-
executive Director of the Company, and also the father of Juliana Cheng
San San, the Regional Director of Beijing Region of the Group.
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Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong, aged 50, is a Non-executive Director
and the Senior Adviser to the Board of Directors of the Company. Datuk
Cheng is also a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company
and a director of various companies of the Group. He graduated from the
University of San Francisco with a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master
of Business Administration in 1984. He has been with The Lion Group since
1987 in various capacities in stores operations and merchandising. He
served the retail division of The Lion Group as the Chief Operating Officer
since 2000; and was promoted as the Chief Executive Officer in 2002 and
later became the Managing Director of the same division in 2007. Datuk
Cheng has been with the Group since its inception. Datuk Cheng is actively
involved in the South East Asia and PRC retail scenes and was the chairman
of the Malaysia Retailers Association in 1996. He was a member of the
Executive Board of the Intercontinental Group of Department Stores in
1998 and 1999.

Datuk Cheng is also the Non-executive Director of Parkson Retail Asia
Limited, a public listed company in Singapore; and a Non-executive Director
of Odel PLC, a public company listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Datuk Cheng is the nephew of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company.

TAN Hun Meng, aged 53, has been re-designated as Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 March 2014. He was the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Group during 1 October 2012 to 28
February 2014. Mr Tan graduated with a Diploma from Curtin University of
Technology, Australia and attended various retail management and senior
management courses conducted by Cornell University and other institutions
in the United States as well as a university in Australia. Mr Tan has more
than 25 years of experience in the retail industry and more than 15 years
of experience working in the PRC retail market. He joined The Lion Group
in 1987 and the Group in May 1995.
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KO Tak Fai, Desmond, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 9 November 2005, and is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr Ko became a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales in 1994. Mr Ko is a businessman.

STUDER Werner Josef, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 9 November 2005, and is the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Company. Mr Studer obtained his federal diploma in economics and
business administration from SEBA (School for Economics and Business
Administration) in Lucerne, Switzerland. Mr Studer is a business economist
and holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree. He serves
currently as Executive Director to the Intercontinental Group Department
Stores ("IGDS"). The IGDS is a non-profit association which offers a global
business platform for leading department stores all over the world. The
IGDS comprises more than 33 members now. Prior to joining the IGDS,
Mr Studer was in various management functions and positions at Hero
Company (food manufacturing), Switzerland; Feldschloesschen Company
(Brewery), Switzerland, and Migros Company (retailer) in Switzerland. Mr
Studer has over 20 years of experience in the fast moving consumer goods
("FMCG") and retail industries.

YAU Ming Kim, Robert, aged 75, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2007, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Yau was the Chief Executive
or Managing Director of many major international and local apparel
companies since 1971. From 1998 to 2004, he was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Exporters' Association, a member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Shippers' Council and the Garment Advisory
Committee of The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Mr Yau is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Alltronics
Holdings Limited and Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited respectively,
which shares are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange").
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Subsequent to publication of the 2013 Interim Report of the Company,
the Company has received notification regarding the following changes
of Directors' information, which are required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2) and Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

With effect from 1 March 2014

(1 Mr Tan Hun Meng resigned as the CEO of the Group and re-
designated and assumed the responsibilities as the Non-executive
Director of the Company.

(2) Mr Chong Sui Hiong has been appointed as the Interim CEO of the
Group.

TAN Hun Meng, aged 53, is the Non-executive Director of the Company.
His biographical details are set out under the paragraph headed “Non-
executive Directors” above.

CHONG Sui Hiong, Shaun, aged 47, has been appointed as the Interim
CEO of the Group with effect from 1 March 2014 until the Group has
completed a due process on the recruitment of a CEO of the Group. Mr
Chong is the Director of Merchandising Department and Chief Operating
Officer of Southern Region of the Group. He holds a Diploma in Civil
Engineering from University of Technology Malaysia, Bachelor of Science in
Industrial and Systems Engineering from University of Southern California
and a Master of Business Administration from Rutgers, the State University
of New Jersey. He went for further study in Los Angeles, US before
joining The Lion Group in 1994 as Project Executive of Store Design and
Development. In June 1996, he joined the Retail Division of the Group and
headed the Store Design and Development of the Group based in Shanghai.

LOW Kim Tuan, aged 58, is the Chief Operating Officer of Northern Region
of the Group. Mr Low holds Executive Diploma in Management Studies
from Curtin University of Technology, Australia and has completed an
EMBA course at Chung Yuan Christian University, Taiwan, and attended
retail management and senior management courses conducted in the
USA and Taiwan. He has more than 20 years of experience in the retail
industry and more than 15 years of experience working in the PRC retail
market. He was with the Emporium Group before joining The Lion Group
in 1987 as a regional manager and was promoted to the position of Head
Office Merchandising Manager in 1990. He joined the Group upon the
establishment of the Group and headed the merchandising department
in Beijing.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGAEEERE

CHONG Cheng Tong, aged 65, is the Regional Director of South-West
Region of the Group. Mr Chong has more than 20 years of experience in
the retail industry and more than 15 years of experience working in the
PRC retail market. He joined The Lion Group in 1987.

CHAI Fook Heng, Louis, aged 64, is the Regional Director of North-West
Region and Shandong Region of the Group. Mr Chai holds a Business
Management Diploma from Curtin University, Australia. He has 7 years
manufacturing and marketing experience in Men and Ladies Fashion
Apparel. He also has more than 20 years of experience in retail industry
and more than 15 years of experience working in the PRC retail market.
He worked with Mun Loong Department Store as Merchandising Manager
and Emporium Group before joining The Lion Group in 1987 as Operation
Manager.

JULIANA CHENG SAN SAN, age 44, is the Regional Director of Beijing
Region of the Group. Ms Cheng holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
(Management) from University of Western Sydney, Australia and completed
a Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business School in year
2000. She has 8 years of working experience in the PRC retail market.
Before joining the Group, she worked with Chanel (China) Co., Ltd as the
National Accounts Manager for the Peoples' Republic of China. She joined
the Group in 2010 as the Regional Director of Beijing Region.

Ms Cheng is a daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive Director
and Chairman of the Company.

HAW Lay Kim, aged 49, is the Group's Director of Legal Affairs Department
in the PRC. Miss Haw graduated with a Bachelor of Laws at National
Chengchi University of Taiwan and University of Lancaster, England. She
was practising law at Othman Hashim & Co in Malaysia before joining The
Lion Group's legal department in August 1993 and has more than 15 years
of experience working in the PRC retail market. She joined the Group to
lead the Group Legal Department upon the establishment of the Group.

WONG Chee Keong, aged 48, is the Director of Human Resource
Department of the Group. Mr Wong obtained his Bachelor of Science from
Campbell University of North Carolina, USA. He joined The Lion Group's MIS
Department in August 1991, and travelled extensively to the PRC. In August
1996 he was seconded to the Group and headed the MIS department based
in Beijing.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

TAN Guan Soon, aged 46, is the General Manager of the Business
Development Department of the Group. Mr Tan obtained his Bachelor of
Science in Finance from University of Nebraska - Lincoln, USA and a Master
of Business Administration from Southern Cross University, Australia.
He was appointed as the Financial Controller of The Lion Group's China
Brewing Division in July 1997 before joining the Group in April 2004.

ONG Choo Keng, Daryl, aged 46, is the General Manager of the Store
Planning Department. Mr Ong holds a Diploma in Architecture from Prime
Tech Institute, Malaysia. He joined The Lion Group's Visual Merchandising
Department in December 1993, and was actively involved in new store
design and remodeling projects. In October 2001, he joined the Retail
Division of the Group and headed the Visual Merchandising Department
based in Shanghai.

HE Peng, aged 50, is the General Manager for Information Technology
Department of the Group. Mr He obtained his Master of Applied
Mathematics from Xidian University, PRC. He joined the Group in 2003 as
Information Technology Manager.

AU Chen Sum, aged 35, is the Acting Chief Financial Officer of the Group
from 30 June 2013. Mr Au holds a bachelor's degree in accounting from
University of Malaya, and joined the Group in October 2010. He is a member
of the Malaysian Institute of the Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a chartered accountant with the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr
Au has more than 10 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
corporate finance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHERBE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's records. The Company's corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions set out in Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules").
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year under review.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the
"Model Code"). Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines") for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises one (1) Executive Director
namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, two (2) Non-executive Directors namely
Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong and Tan Hun Meng and three (3) Independent
Non-executive Directors namely Ko Tak Fai, Desmond, Werner Josef Studer
and Yau Ming Kim, Robert.

The Directors' biographical information and the relationships between the
members of the Board are set out in the "Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 22 to 27.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As of the date of this report, the Chairman of the Company is Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and Mr Chong Sui Hiong has been appointed as the Interim CEO
of the Group with effect from 1 March 2014 until the Group has completed
a due process on the recruitment of a CEO of the Group. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board. The CEQO focuses on the Company's business
development and daily management and operations generally.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
CEO to ensure that there is a balance of power and authority. The Chairman
is primarily responsible for the orderly conduct and working of the Board
whilst the CEQO is responsible for the overall operations of the Group and
the implementation of the Board's strategies and policies.

Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman and the CEO.

In respect of the Listing Rules requirements regarding the sufficient
number of Independent Non-executive Directors and one Independent
Non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications, the Company
has met these requirements. The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation as regards
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive Directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code
provision A.4.2 states that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment and that every Director, including those appointed for
a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERBRE

Each of the Non-executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a
specific term of three years. One-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire
from their respective office at every annual general meeting and all
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three year in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association and the CG Code.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary
and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board as a whole is also responsible for reviewing its composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience relevant to
the Company's business.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.
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EEERBRE

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have participated
in continuous professional development and received trainings with details
provided below:-

The Company Secretary had provided briefing and update to all Directors
during Broad Meeting in May 2013 on the following issues:-

- Update on Consultation Conclusions and Listing Rules Amendments
on Board Diversity and Consultation Papers on Review of Connected
Transaction Rules

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem had also attended half-day/full-day trainings and
seminars as follows:-

Topics Name of Institutions

- Corporate Governance/Enterprise Risk The Lion Group
Management

- Personal Data Protection Act, 2010

- Competition Act, 2010

- Cash Crop Production and Machinery in
Australia

- lrrigation Technology

- Economic Analysis of Cash Crop
Production using a Decision Support
Tool

- Irrigated versus Dryland Crop
Production

- Cash Crop Investment and Production
in Cambodia by a Successful Malaysian
Company - TaTan Group (Tatan
Agrotech Co., Ltd.)

- Top World 500 Chinese Businesses Guangzhou Overseas
Round Table Conference Chinese Bureau, China
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EREBRE

Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond had also attended trainings and seminars as
follows:
Topics Name of Institutions

- Independent Non-executive Director
Briefing

Ernst & Young

Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert had also attended trainings and seminars as
follows:
Topics Name of Institutions

Disclosure of Price Sensitive or Inside
Information

Tungtex (Holdings)
Company Limited

- Fraud and The Board PricewaterhouseCoopers

- The Roles of a Non-executive Director
and the expectation from the Securities
& Futures Commission

PricewaterhouseCoopers

- Accounting and Auditing Update for a Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

smooth year-end financial process

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE EEEEREFEAY

Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with additional ZFEB8FHAMELT@REFHE LR
meetings to be convened as and when necessary to determine the overall B 2R ARG H  NEEAEEE
strategic directions and objectives of the Group and approve quarterly, BERESTETRER  RILEFERE -+
interim and annual results and other significant matters. HEENFEREANHAMBEREE -

During the year under review, four (4) Board meetings were held and the MREBEFEE @ ZEITHNAREEFE S

Directors' attendances are listed below: BEEZHBEBRAT -

Number of

Board Meetings

Held During
the Director's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2013 Attended

RNR=T—=

ZEEEHR

BITEEY

Name of the Directors 1 = PN

Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem (Chairman) FHET R EERR (EF) 4
TAN Hun Meng (appointed on 16 May 2013) BRER (RZT—=F 2 2

AATBEZE)
CHEW Fook Seng (retired on 16 May 2013) AEE (R —=F 2 2
AATRERE)

Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong eEEXE 4 4
KO Tak Fai, Desmond =i e 4 4
STUDER Werner Josef STUDER Werner Josef 4 4
YAU Ming Kim, Robert a3l 4 4

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting BRAHEHREETSSHIN THRIFNFER
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive B — XIERITES (BIEBILIEHNITE
Director) without the presence of Executive Directors during the year. F)EF CRPERNTEEHE -

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive Directors ST BI & XA 7GR TE » B IEHNITE S
and other Non-executive Directors should attend the issuer's general N EMIERITE R BLEFEEITAREK
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of & ' LAIIREE R B RIERBRE -
shareholders.

During the year under review, an Annual General Meeting was held on 16 R EIEFE » KEBAFASENR T —=
May 2013 and all Directors had attended the meeting. FRATRART  2REFHESE -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the Audit Committee comprises three (3) Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr Werner Josef Studer and Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert.

The Audit Committee is required to advise the Board on the appointment
and retention of external auditor, to review the external auditors'
independence and objectivity, to review quarterly, interim and annual
accounts of the Group, to access the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal control, to review the internal audit function and internal control
procedures.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year and the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, In-House Counsel, the Compliance
Officer and a representative of the external auditors of the Company shall
normally be invited to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary or her
nominee shall be the secretary of the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, there were four (4) meetings held by the
Audit Committee and the attendances are listed below:

TEERRE
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& HEBERIT

Number of

Meetings Held

during the
Member's Term Number of
of Office Meetings
in 2013 Attended

R=-Z—=F

ZREEHA

Name of the Audit Committee Member EREETHREMSE BI2EBRE
KO Tak Fai, Desmond =B 4 4
STUDER Werner Josef STUDER Werner Josef 4 4
YAU Ming Kim, Robert F#Ewl 4 4
The Audit Committee reviewed the Group's results for the year 2013. ERZEQCERAEBR T —=F2%
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company's Remuneration
Committee consists of three (3) members, two (2) of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee) and Mr Ko Tak Fai, Desmond and the other
member is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and develop the
Group's policy on remuneration for its Directors (including Executive
Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts and retains the Directors needed
to manage the Company and the Group effectively. Directors do not
participate in decisions regarding their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year under review,
the Remuneration Committee had one (1) meeting and the attendances
are listed below:

FMEEEREER

Name of the Remuneration Committee Member

Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem (appointed as
a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 31 May 2013)

Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong (ceased as
a member of the Remuneration Committee

HHWEZEREKR)
SEEREK (R=F

on 31 May 2013) FWEEEKE)
KO Tak Fai, Desmond =iEE
YAU Ming Kim, Robert a2y

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior
management for the year under review.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company has set up a
Nomination Committee consisting of three (3) members, two (2) of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr Werner Josef Studer
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr Yau Ming Kim, Robert
and the other member is a Non-executive Director, namely Datuk Cheng
Yoong Choong.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of the directors, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 16 August 2013
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company's
board of directors. The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse board, and sees diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee had three (3) meetings and the attendances
are listed below:

Name of the Nomination Committee Member

Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong eEEXRE
STUDER Werner Josef

YAU Ming Kim, Robert a4l

REZEEHEHS

STUDER Werner Josef
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The Executive Committee was established by the Board for performing the
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Executive Committee reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the auditors of the Company received
approximately RMB4,111,000.00 for audit services and RMB588,000.00 for
non-audit services.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditors on their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Auditors' Report on
pages 61 to 62.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard the Company's shareholders’ investments and the
Company's assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an
annual basis through the Audit Committee.

The Company maintains a tailored governance structure with defined lines
of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.

The internal auditor, who is independent of the Company's daily operations
and accounting functions, is responsible for establishing the Group's
internal control framework, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The internal control
framework also provides for identification and management of risk. The
internal auditor formulates the annual internal audit plan and procedures,
conducts periodic independent reviews on the operations of individual
divisions to identify any irregularity and risk, develops action plans and
recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to the Audit
Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit process.
The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues
and makes recommendations to the Board.
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During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted continuous review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company.

Mrs SENG SZE Ka Mee, Natalia of Tricor Services Limited, external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company secretary. Its
primary contact person at the Company is Ms Haw Lay Kim, Legal Director
of the Company.

To safequard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward
at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists
held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be convened
on the written requisition of any one member of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Under normal circumstances, the Company will not deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Address: 7th Floor, Parkson Shopping Centre (Sun Palace)

Qisheng Middle Street

Northeast of 3rd Ring Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing 100028, PRC

(For the attention of Chairman of the Board/
Chief Executive Officer)

Telephone: (8610) 8426-9999

Fax: (8610) 8426-9938

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders'
information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board, all other members of the Board including Non-executive Directors,
Independent Non-executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board
committees (or their delegates) will make themselves available at the
annual general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company's Articles
of Association is also available on the Company's website and the Stock
Exchange's website.
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The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to announce the audited
consolidated results of the Company, its subsidiaries, a joint venture entity
and an associate for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The Company, incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
3 August 2005, acts as an investment company. The principal activities of
the Group are the operation and management of a network of department
stores in the PRC. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 63.

Changes on the Group's fixed assets are disclosed on note 11 of the
financial statements.

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
for the year of 2013 of RMB0.010 (2012: RMB0.070) in cash per share.
The Company declared and paid an interim dividend of RMB0.050 (2012:
RMBO0.070) in cash per share. On the assumption that the approval is
obtained during the forthcoming annual general meeting for the payment
of the proposed final dividend, the Company shall be paying a full
year dividend of RMB0.060 (2012: RMBO0.140) in cash per share for the
year 2013, representing approximately 47.6% of the 2013's net profit
attributable to the Group. The final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong
dollars, such amount is to be calculated by reference to the middle rate
published by People's Bank of China for the conversion of RMB to Hong
Kong dollars as at 23 May 2014.

Upon the approval to be obtained from the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the final dividends will be payable on or about 30 June 2014 to
the shareholders whose name appears on the Register of Members of the
Company at the close of business on 23 May 2014.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital for the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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The Directors of the Company as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem (Chairman)
TAN Hun Meng (Note)

Non-executive Director
Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong

Independent Non-executive Directors
KO Tak Fai, Desmond

STUDER Werner Josef

YAU Ming Kim, Robert

Details of the profile of each member of the Board are set out in the
"Biographies of Directors and Senior Management" section on pages 22
to 27.
Note: At the Company's annual general meeting held on 16 May 2013, Mr CHEW
Fook Seng retired as Executive Director of the Company and did not offer
himself for re-election; and Mr TAN Hun Meng was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company. On 20 February 2014, the Board has resolved that
Mr TAN Hun Meng be re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2014.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company's Articles of Association,
Datuk CHENG Yoong Cheng and Mr Werner Josef STUDER will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem and Mr TAN Hun Meng have each entered into
a service contract with the Company on 9 November 2011 and 16 May
2013 respectively under which they agreed to act as Executive Directors
for a term of three years. The appointment may be terminated before such
expiry by not less than three months' written notice. Tan Sri CHENG Heng
Jem will receive an annual Director's fee of HK$200,000 under the service
contract. Mr TAN Hun Meng will receive an annual salary with bonus and
incentive payment at the discretion of the Board and an annual Director's
fee of HK$200,000.
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Datuk CHENG Yoong Choong has signed a new letter of appointment on 9
November 2011 under which he agreed to act as a Non-executive Director
for a period of three years and will receive an annual Director's fee of
HK$200,000.

Mr KO Tak Fai, Desmond and Mr Werner Josef STUDER have each signed
a new letter of appointment dated 9 November 2011 with the Company
under which they agreed to act as Independent Non-executive Directors for
the period of one year and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum
of three years unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letters. Mr YAU Ming Kim, Robert has signed a new letter
of appointment dated 17 December 2012 with the Company under which
he agreed to act as Independent Non-executive Director, with the same
terms as the other two Independent Non-executive Directors. The annual
Director's fee for each Independent Non-executive Director is HK$200,000.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Director has, nor is it proposed that
any of them will have, a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Other than as disclosed under the "Connected Transactions” section below,
no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time during that
year.

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and Directors of the
Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates had interests in
businesses, other than being a director of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries and their respective associates, which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company
and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, except for the interests held by Tan Sri CHENG Heng Jem (through
PHB) in 1 Parkson branded department store in the PRC. Details of that
Parkson branded department store are set out in the prospectus of the
Company issued on 17 November 2005. As mentioned earlier, the Company
possessed an option/right of first refusal to acquire that Parkson branded
department store as and when it deems fit.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which any such Director or Chief Executive
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were set out below:

(a) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company:

Name of Name of

Registered Owner

BERBEARRE

Nature of Interest

REEME

Corporate interest PRG Corporation Limited
("PRG Corporation”)

AR

Corporate interest East Crest International East Crest
Limited ("East Crest")

AR

NOTES:

1. Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan

Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, through their interest and a series
of companies in which they have a substantial interest, are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of PHB. Since PHB is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 100% of the voting power at
general meeting of PRG Corporation through East Crest, pursuant
to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in both the 1,438,300,000
Shares held by PRG Corporation and the 9,970,000 Shares held by
East Crest in the Company.

Beneficial Owner

ERBEEARE

PRG Corporation
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REBE RER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding?

REBLNE D2

1,438,300,000
ordinary shares
1,438,300,000
=gl

51.24%

9,970,000
ordinary shares
9,970,000
gL
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2. Based on the issued and paid up capital of the Company as at 2.
31 December 2013.

(b) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of (b) FHTREERNA R RRRZEE (F

the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

Name of Associated

Name of

EAEZFLBEGD) AT L

=

Number and
Class of

Name of
Beneficial

Approximate
Percentage of

Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Owner Securities  Shareholding
RRLEER RtE BRBAALH BafA AR EEBAREN RESOEDL
PHB Beneficial interest and ~ Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 519,190,396 48.71%
corporate interest together with his spouse together with his spouse ordinary shares
Chan Chau Ha @ Chan Chan Chau Ha @ Chan
Chow Har directly, and Chow Har directly, and
through a series of through a series of
controlled corporations controlled corporations
EnEa R g REZEERERENER NHEEERERENER 519,190,396
HEEE REB-Z5  NEEE REE-F) REER
XEE REE
East Crest Corporate interest PHB PHB 1 ordinary share 100%
NIl 5: REBR
Puncak Pelita Sdn Bhd Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
NAEER MRERER
Parkson Vietnam Investment Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
Holdings Co., Ltd.
NSIL 3 WRE B
Parkson Properties Holdings Corporate interest PHB PHB 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co., Ltd.
L5 WEBR
Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Corporate interest PHB PHB 1 ordinary share 100%
DAlER REER
PRG Corporation Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 1 ordinary share 100%
NSl IREBR
Smart Spectrum Limited Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 1 ordinary share 100%
DR 1RE B
Park Avenue Fashion Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 250,002 100%
Sdn. Bhd. ordinary shares
NGl 250002 EBIR
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Name of Associated

Corporation

REEEER

Nature of Interest

e

Name of
Registered Owner

E PN

Name of
Beneficial
Owner

RafaAZH

Number and
Class of
Securities

®5UERER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RESNEDL

Serbadagang Holdings Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 2 ordinary shares 100%
Sdn. Bhd.
RAlkR WREBER
Parkson Retail Asia Limited Beneficial interest and Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and ~ East Crest 458,433,300 67.68%
corporate interest through East Crest ordinary shares
EaBERRARERE  BHEEERR 456433, 300MR L3k
#1Fast Crest
Parkson HCMC Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment  Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd.
NGl WREBR
Parkson HaiPhong Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment  Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co., Ltd. Holdings Co,, Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd.
NElER WREBR
Parkson TSN Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment ~ Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co, Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd.
NGl WREER
Parkson Properties NDT Corporate interest Parkson Properties Parkson Properties 2 ordinary shares 100%
(Emperor) Co,, Ltd. Holdings Co,, Ltd. Holdings Co,, Ltd.
RAEE WL B
Parkson Properties Hanoi Corporate interest Parkson Properties Parkson Properties 1 ordinary share 100%
Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd.
NAlEs 1RE R
Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited  Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
Limited
NGl WL ER
Dalian Tianhe Parkson Corporate interest Serbadagang Holdings Serbadagang Holdings 60,000,000 60%
Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. Sdn. Bhd. Sdn. Bhd. registered
capital (RMB)
AEXRTBEENTL NAlEs HMEAARY
BRAT] 60,000,0007C
Centro Retail Pte Ltd Corporate interest Parkson Retail Asia Limited Parkson Retail Asia Limited 2 ordinary shares 100%

NG5

WL ER



Name of Associated

Corporation

REEEER

PT. Tozy Sentosa

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte Ltd.

Parkson HBT Properties Co Ltd

Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

(Gema Binari Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments Limited

Parkson SGN Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Cambodia Holdings

Co., Ltd.

Kiara Innovasi Sdn. Bhd.

Nature of Interest

e

Corporate interest

NelEL

Corporate interest

DK

REES

Corporate Interest
NAElER

Corporate interest

DS

Bl

Corporate interest

NG

Corporate interest
DAl

Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest
NEER

Corporate interest

NG

Corporate interest

DTS

Corporate interest

B

AL
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Name of
Registered Owner

E PN

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte Ltd

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson TSN Holdings Co Ltd

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Name of
Beneficial
Owner

RafaAZH

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte Ltd

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson TSN Holdings Co Ltd

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

EEEHREE

Number and  Approximate
Class of  Percentage of
Securities  Shareholding

EERARER RESNED

13,000 100%
common shares  (In aggregate)

13000 E &% ¢ 5p)

5,000
common shares

5,0008% & @ %

50,000,002 100%
ordinary shares

50,000,002 &

1 ordinary share 100%
REBR

2,100,000 100%
capital (USD)
A
2,100,005 7T

2 ordinary shares 100%

R

2 ordinary shares 100%
WEBR

2 ordinary shares 100%
WEBR

1 ordinary share 100%
1REBR

1,500,000 100%
capital (USD)
A
1,500,000 TC

1 ordinary share 100%
1R EBR

3,000,000 60%
ordinary shares

3,000,000 & iM%
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EEEREE

Name of Associated

Corporation

REEEER

Parkson Online Sdn Bhd

Parkson Haiphong Co., Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte Ltd

Festival City Sdn. Bhd.

Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd.

Dimensi Armani Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments
(Cambodia) Co,, Ltd.

Parkson (Cambodia) Co., Ltd

Parkson Vietnam Management
Services Co., Ltd.

Nature of Interest

EiitE
Corporate interest
NG5
Corporate interest

Nals

Corporate interest

DK

NElE

Corporate interest
NG5

Corporate interest

DK

NGl
Corporate interest
DAEER

Corporate interest
DAER

Corporate interest

Bk

NAlEs
Corporate interest
DAlER

Corporate interest

NG5

Name of
Registered Owner

E PN

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte Ltd

Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments
Limited

Parkson Cambodia
Holdings Co., Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Co,, Ltd.

Name of
Beneficial
Owner

RafaAZH

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte Ltd

Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn Bhd

True Excel Investments
Limited

Parkson Cambodia
Holdings Co., Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Co,, Ltd.

Number and

Class of

Securities

®5UERER

2,600,000
ordinary shares
2,600,000 Mk

30,000920
capital (USD)
A
30,000920% T

10,340,000
capital (USD)
R
10,340,000 70

2,100,000
ordinary shares
2,100,0008% & i

500,000
ordinary shares
50,0008 & ik

300,000
ordinary shares
300,000 Z MK

2 ordinary shares
WEBR

1,000
ordinary shares

1,000 LM

1,000
ordinary shares

100008 L@

10,000
capital (USD)
A&
10,000%7C

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RESNEDL

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Name of Associated

Corporation

REEEER

Parkson Hanoi Co., Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia Pte Ltd.

Myanmar Parkson
Company Limited

(c)

Name of Associated

Corporation

HRZE AR

PHB

Nature of Interest

Nature of Interest

e

Corporate interest

NGL 3

Corporate interest

Corporate interest

Nals

Short positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SF0):

BamitE

Corporate interest
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Number and
Class of
Securities

®5UERER

Name of
Beneficial
Owner

BB AEH

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RESOEDL

Name of
Registered Owner

ELHAAER

Parkson Vietnam Co, Ltd. Parkson Vietnam Co,, Ltd. 3,360,000
capital (USD)
A

3,360,000 7T

70%

Parkson Myanmar Investment 100%

Company Pte Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte Ltd.

30,000

ordinary shares
(Usp)

1 ordinary share
(SGD)
30,0008k & i@k
(%71)

RE Bk
(#7)

270,000 100%
ordinary shares (i aggregate)

2700008 Z & % (&:t)

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte Ltd

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte Ltd

Parkson Myanmar
Asia Pte Ltd

Parkson Myanmar
Asia Pte Ltd

30,000
ordinary shares
30,0008 & ik

FHETBEERNARAEEEE
ERLBSFRBEGHRG) BAS R

B

(0

Number and
Class of
Securities

EEBERER

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
REBOEIL

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BEnfiE LB

Name of
Registered Owner

ELHEAER

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 3.75%
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha @ Chan
Chow Har directly, and
through a series of through a series of
controlled corporations controlled corporations

AHEEERERENER AREEEREREHE 400001428 E B
NEER  RBEB—X5 BRWEEE BB
REEE RYX LR

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha @ Chan
Chow Har directly, and

40,000,142
ordinary shares
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(d) Long positions of Tan Hun Meng in the share capital of the (d) RERNRARRRAPHLE -

Company:
Number and Approximate
Name of Beneficiary/  Subject Matter/ Class of Percentage of
Nature of Interest Registered Owner Name of Beneficial Owner Securities Shareholding?
BN/
EaitE BLHEAEE RE BREEAEE EHYERERN RESLE DL
Beneficial interest Tan Hun Meng Option to subscribe for shares' 1,500,000 0.05%
ordinary shares
- o RER BB OB 1,500,000/ & 38 A%
NOTES: L
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BE—_ZZRF+—ANLBER
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. HERER ER T ——F

TR TLHBEHEY -

2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. AR A —E—=ZF+=ZR=
at 31 December 2013. +—H E’JE% TREHBRABE
;E o
b

(e)  Long positions of Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong in the share capital (¢) EEERENRARGRAFHITE
of the Company.:

Number and Approximate
Name of Beneficiary/  Subject Matter/ Class of Percentage of
Nature of Interest Registered Owner Name of Beneficial Owner Securities Shareholding?
BN/
EEME BLHEAEE RE/ BREEARRE EHHERER RESQYE DL
Beneficial interest Datuk Cheng Yoong Option to subscribe for shares' 2,250,000 0.08%
Choong ordinary shares
Eafgan FEBRE BB OB 2,250,0000% % 8%
Beneficial interest Datuk Cheng Yoong Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong 800,000 0.02%
Choong ordinary shares
BafEn SEBXRE SEBRE 800,000% & i
NOTES: et
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BEBEZZETRF+— ANBIERE
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. HERESE ERZT—ZF

tT—AZ+EBEELED -

2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. PN/N T —=F+ZA=

at 31 December 2013. +— EE@E%??&E%H&$Z%§
% o



(f)

(9)
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Long positions of Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong in the share capital  (f)
of the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFQ):

EEERES

SEERENARREBER (E&
RBEHFRERD) BRAFEEE

Number and Approximate
Name of Associated Name of Name of Class of Percentage of
Corporation Nature of Interest  Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Securities Shareholding
HEEEER BEME ZREEAEN EXEEAEN BHYANRERN RESOEIHL
PHB Beneficial interest Datuk Cheng Yoong Datuk Cheng Yoong 1,120,199 0.11%
Choong Choong ordinary shares
BaEn FEERK SEERE 1,120,199AR & &A%

Long positions of Ko Tak Fai, Desmond in the share capital of the  (qg)
Company:

Nature of Interest Name of Beneficiary

Subject Matter
RHEAER AE

Beneficial interest Ko Tak Fai, Desmond

Btk =iEE REBM O BE AR
NOTES:
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option

Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005.

2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2013.

Long positions of Werner Josef Studer in the share capital of the  (h)
Company:

Subject Matter/

Name of Beneficiary/

Nature of Interest Registered Owner

@A/
BEREEARRE AE

Beneficial interest Werner Josef Studer

BEafEs Skl tie 4

Werner Josef Studer Werner Josef Studer

Option to subscribe for shares'

Name of Beneficial Owner

BREEARE

Option to subscribe for shares'

DIEERARRRAFLITR

Number and Approximate
Class of Percentage of

Securities Shareholding?

EHEBERERN RESOED L

150,000  Less than 0.01%
ordinary shares
150,000/% & i % DFA0.01%

B &E -

1. BRE—ZFZTRAF+— ALEERER
MERETE BER T ——F
+—A=+tBEREY -

2, NARBRZZE—=F+=A=
T—EMEBETREGRARE

o

Werner Josef StuderR AR &) & A A &Y
e

Number and
Class of
Securities

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding?

EFHEARERN RESNBEILL?

150,000  Less than 0.01%

ordinary shares
150,000% & i A% HFR0.01%
68,000  Less than 0.01%

ordinary shares
68,000% & i ik 2 F0.01%
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NOTES: FEE
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BRE_ZZERF+—-ANARS
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. HEEREE ERZT—ZF
ToAZTEABEELY .
2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. NERBRZZE—=F+=A=
at 31 December 2013. THAMNBEETREGRETAE

.

(i) Long positions of Werner Josef Studer in the share capital of the (i) Werner Josef Studer A2 a) 188 A E

Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO): (EERBHFLHEEL) BARFH
T8

Number and Approximate

Name of Associated Name of Name of Class of Percentage of
Corporation Nature of Interest  Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Securities Shareholding
B ZEEER BRtE ELREARE EXRAEAEE FHHERERN RESNEIL
PHB Beneficial interest Werner Josef Studer Werner Josef 103,284  Less than 0.01%

Studer ordinary shares
BaEn 103,2848% & /A% 2 10.01%

G) Long positions of Yau Ming Kim, Robert in the share capital of the  (j) E#HBIRARARRARALTE

Company:
Number and Approximate
Class of Percentage of
Nature of Interest Name of Beneficiary Subject Matter Securities Shareholding?
Z@mARE RE EHHERER RESYE DL
Beneficial interest Yau Ming Kim, Robert Option to subscribe for shares' 150,000  Less than 0.01%
ordinary shares

Bt F 88 I HO BB AR 150,0008% & i % D7R0.01%

NOTES: FtE
1. Offer was made on 27 November 2012 pursuant to the Share Option 1. BIE—ZETRFE+— ANBERK
Scheme adopted on 9 November 2005. HEREE ERZE—ZF

T—RAZTLHBEREY-

2. Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as 2. NARBRZZE—=F+=A=

at 31 December 2013. +T—HRMEETREZRAAE
ﬁ °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors
or Chief Executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFQ), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFOQ,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company,
had interests and short positions in the Company's shares which falls to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

EEEHREE

B EXFTEEN R_E—=F+_A
=+—H  ARAZEEARSTHRAE
BMENANR REREEE (EERBHK
BB BIEXVED) Bk - MBI k&R
B EETARBEES RS KRG EXV
B BT R8BI A E® AN R A M B R P HY R
mHAE (BIEREBEESMBERINZSE
M S8 B E S AR 1E R B Y M 2 IO
B) IR EFESH KB BKROIFE521FERE
ANZIEFTIENERMANERSIAR K
RIBEZEESFRAMNE AR R R P

R -
ﬁﬁﬁ%°

FERRRIR G & AAE K60 8RR
B

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—B BEFH
HoUATEUAL (UFARREETHZD
TTBAR) RARRIRM P HEAERE AR
WBRIERE 7 M G R B EXVERF2 M 53
D EBAI A B M B R TR ER

Percentage of
Shareholding

Long/Short (direct or
Name of Shareholder Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)
ERBESH
BRERERE fEEME BHAEBE (BEESEE)
PHB Long Corporate interest 1,448,270,000 (Note 1) 51.59%
S=Y NAEfER (BfF&ET)
PRG Corporation Long Beneficial interest 1,438,300,000 (Note 1) 51.24%
[S=) EamfEm (FaE1)
Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Long Interest of spouse 1,448,270,000 (Note 2) 51.59%
Chan Chow Har
e [IEEE (Ff¥EE2)
JPMorgan Chase & Co Long Beneficial interest, and 167,274,443 (Note 3) 5.96%
Custodian
5] EnEnRIREA (P EE3)
Short Beneficial interest 6,700,000 0.24%
KB gy £
Genesis Assets Managers, LLP Long Investment manager 196,603,244 7.0%

e REKE
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Percentage of
Shareholding

Long/Short (direct or
Name of Shareholder Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)
ERBESH
REEH #e KR ROBE (EESREE)
Pangkor Investments Long Beneficial interest and 189,516,679 6.75%
(Cayman Islands) Limited other
S=Y i R HA
Prudential plc Long Corporate interest 162,777,500 (Note 4) 5.80%
5] N G
Wang Hung Roger Long Beneficial interest, and 140,574,500 (Note 5) 5.01%
Trustee
IS~ EnEm REFEA (Ff¥aE5)
Wang Hsu Vivine H Long Interest of spouse and 140,574,500 (Note 6) 5.01%
beneficiary of a Trustee
S=Y e A 2 &2
T AE =S (FftzEe)
NOTES: Bt

PRG Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which in turn is
wholly-owned by PHB. By virtue of the SFO, PHB is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by PRG Corporation in the Company.

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har is the wife of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and is deemed to be interested in 1,448,270,000 Shares which
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

The capacities of JPMorgan Chase & Co. in holding the 167,274,443 Shares
(Long position) were as to 12,863,137 Shares (Long position) and 6,700,000
Shares (Short position) as beneficial owner, and 154,411,306 Shares (Long
position) in the lending pool as custodian. The interest of JPMorgan Chase
& Co. was attributable on account through a number of its subsidiaries.

The interest of Prudential plc was attributable on account through a number
of its subsidiaries.

The capacities of Wang Hung Roger in holding the 140,574,500 Shares (Long
position) were as to 10,279,154 Shares (Long position) as beneficial owner
and 130,295,346 Shares (Long position) as trustee.

Wang Hsu Vivine H is the wife of Wang Hung Roger and is deemed to be
interested in 140,574,500 Shares which held by Wang Hung Roger.

PRG Corporations&East Crestf) & & [ &
A A) * TEast CrestX FAPHBZ2 E #E A °
EREBH RGP - PHBIE AR (EXPRG
CorporationfE AN A A5 A B R (5 R B 1

Ec

BHERMNEARTEEEHRNET
EREHFNBERD - WEIEHES S
BEEIRWSE AEEEZRM1,448,270,000
B 15 RO fEas o

JPMorgan Chase & Co. AT 167,274,443
BRAR 5 (57 2&) # - 12,863,137 AR5 (4F
&) 16,700,0000% It X&) A E =
BEHEANZDRFA - M154,4113060% iR 5
(FE) DERREATHEBEDE
%3 ° JPMorgan Chase & Co.FyiEzs /i H
ZRE2EWBATIALRK -

Prudential plcfEz JyiERZ KB R TIA
BE o

T B A7 £ A #9140,574,50008 & 1) (17 &)
10,279,154 1810 (17 R) RAE =
BABMDEA - 130,295,346 B 1n (4F
B) INZRAGGBER -

THEEBEARTEMNEZT WRIERTE
¥ 5 79140,574,500 8B (0 P A FELS -
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As at 31 December 2013, as far as the Directors are aware, each of the R_E—=F+-_A=+—H BEEM
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, &1 * AT &AL (LI ARAEEHZES
was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value ~ TTIRLAB) BEHEFEREEEMAKE
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances 22 & (AN AR SN (EATHEBI R (FE B 4
at general meeting of a member of the Group other than the Company: FIATEERIER TRREAE ERE) @A

10003k LA E#E%s -
Percentage of

Substantial Shareholder Member of the Group Equity Interest Held
FERR FEERELNT FEREBRSE
Xinjiang Youhao' Xinjiang Parkson 49%
BRI 2 E AR
Wuxi Sunan? Wuxi Parkson 40%
B2 35 [ AR
Chongging Wanyou? Chongging Parkson 30%
BEER EEAR
Guizhou Shengi Enterprise* Guizhou Parkson 40%
BEMsHER BB
Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Lion Property® 71%
FENEEX RS
Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson® 29%
FBNBEXE EEnEERES
NOTES: B &E -
1. Xinjiang Friendship (Group) Co., Ltd., owns 49% of the equity interest of 1. Mk (RE) BRARERANBR

Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Parkson"). HEREEERERAA ([FETK]

49001 2 ©

2. Wuxi Sunan Investment Guarantee Co., Ltd., owns 40% of the equity interest 2. EHHEREERERRARBEEES =
of Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Wuxi Parkson"). EERESER AR ([EH5E ) 40%
3. Chongging Wanyou Economic Development Co., Ltd., owns 30% of the 3. EEBRKELEBRATAREEE
equity interest of Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. (“Chongging EERERESERAT ([EEA&K]D
Parkson"). 300 °
4, (i) Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, owns 40% of the equity interest of 4. (i) M T EEER S M B BK40%
Guizhou Parkson. e o
(i) Zhang Pei, Zhang Zhi Jun and Zhang Ya, own 300%, 40% and 30% (i) Fof - ReBERKREDRERSE
of the equity interest in Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, respectively, N Fe8 27 B 2 A9300 ~ 400 f2 3000/%
representing a 12%, 16% and 12% indirect equity interest in R EMNE & AI120% - 16%%

Guizhou Parkson. 1200fE1 E #EaR ©



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgRESE

5. Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Lion
Property") is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the
laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry”) and Exonbury Limited ("Exonbury”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry is entitled to 71%
of the voting rights in the board of Shanghai Lion Property and 65% of its
distributable profits. The Group is entitled to 29% of the voting rights in
the board of Shanghai Lion Property and 35% of its distributable profits.

6. Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson")
is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the laws of
the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and Exonbury. Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry is entitled to 29% of the voting rights in the board of
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson and a pre-determined distribution of income
from Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson. The Group is entitled to 71% of the
voting rights in the board of Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson and 100% of its
distributed profit after deducting the aforesaid pre-determined distribution
of income attributable to Shanghai Nine Sea Industry.

Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2013, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was otherwise
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Group.

The Company has adopted an employee share option scheme which became
effective on 9 November 2005.

On 1 March 2010, a total of 15,821,000 share options (the 2010 Share
Options") were granted to 544 eligible Directors and employees at nil
consideration and with an exercise price of HK$12.44 per share ("Lot 3").
Total share options were vested on 1 March 2010, the expiration date for
the share options was three years from 1 April 2010. All outstanding share
options not exercised pursuant to the 2010 Share Options had expired
during the year under review.

On 27 November 2012, a total of 34,171,500 share options (the “2012
Share Options") representing Lot 4 and Lot 5 were granted to 642 eligible
Directors and employees at nil consideration and with an exercise price
of HK$6.24 per share. 17,085,750 of the share options under Lot 4 were
vested on 27 November 2012 and are exercisable from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2015. The balance of 17,085,750 share options under Lot 5
are exercisable from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016 and require an
employee service period until 1 October 2013.

5, EBNBeMYMEERERAR ([LE
THYE]) ERLEBNEEERR AR
(TEBNBEXE] REERERENER
NA([RmEEN] ARARIZEMBA
7)) REPBUARKIMNEGIELEDE -
EENESEXEE L EeMMEESS
71035 S 4 [ 6500 0] (R FIE o ANEE
HE LSS MYEET 20N EHELE
35%A] 3 KA o

6. FENEBERESERAR ([ EENE
B AR LEENEEEMABEINE
BERBRZEERINEERLECE - bF
NEBEEHEALBNEAREES20%E
R EBNAEEBRKRANTETNIR
RIBR L EBR LB EEENTEE
DIERAEE  AEBELSAEERE
EGHEB710% B K E100%E 2K F
A e

R EXPIBEEN  BEFEHA R-F
—=Ft+-A=1t—8 #EEMALR
ARBRAD SR (BIERTE) &
A AR R R 5 NS 1R FXVER 52
K3 BRZA A& AN A B B Bk A2 P RO R SOK
B RERIEERSEAEELAKER
AMEEERRIBAS (B #E R AT EIE R T 1A
RAE LIRE) HE10%HIA FH R -

ARRIDRMEBBRES - %588
“EERFE+-ANBEERK-

RZZE—ZTF=ZF—H ARABINEEH
AREFR1244B T 21TEE ([E=H]) [
5446 BEIRE S KB B % 1 2£15,821,00019
ERE(ZE—ZSFERE]) - MENE
BEER-_ZE—ZSF=-A—HEE  BR
BERBHA=ZF R-ZE—ZTFWMA—H
Pt - IRIE - T T FHEREREE
BARITENBERESDERRBTEEER

RZE—=—F+—A=++tB ' AQF
w|ET A REFR6248 T2 TEE (B
HEER) MeNZEEREZEREER
o 341715000 R E (22— F 8
A& #E 1) - 25 PO #E & 1 #917,085,75017 B8 A%
BER_ZE——F+—A=-++tBEE"
AIR-_FE—Z=ZF—A—BZE_ZF—AHF+
“AZ+—BUHHETFE - FREREHN
17,085 75010 BB AR ERT RN —F —MF — A —
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Movement of the options granted under the share option scheme for the HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HILFE"
year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows: IRIRERET SR L BRENESHNT -

During the year ended 31 December 2013
(No. of Shares issuable under the Options)
BE-S-=Hf+-A=t-HLHFE

(BEBRETTRITNROHUE)
As at As at
(ETETY 31 December
yIK] Granted  Exercised Lapsed Expired PIK]
R
i —g-=
—g-= +=A
—-B—H 2 ) =+-H
Directors =
Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong SBERE 3 1,125,000 - - - 1,125,000 -
4 1,125,000 - - - - 1,125,000
5 1,125,000 - - - - 1,125,000
Tan Hun Meng RER 3 732,000 - - - 732,000 -
4 750,000 - - - - 750,000
5 750,000 - - - - 750,000
Ko Tak Fai, Desmond SEE 3 75,000 - - - 75,000 -
4 75,000 - - - - 75,000
5 75,000 - - - - 75,000
Werner Josef Studer Werner Josef Studer 3 75,000 - - - 75,000 -
4 75,000 - - - - 75,000
5 75,000 - - - - 75,000
Yau Ming Kim, Robert s 3 75,000 - - - 75,000 -
4 75,000 - - - - 75,000
5 75,000 - - - - 75,000
Employees (In aggregate) & (A51) 312,070,500 - - - 12,070,500 -
4 14985750 - 10,000 877,500 - 14,098,250
5 14,985,750 - - 877,500 - 14,108,250
Total A%t 48,324,000 - 10,000 1,755,000 14,152,500 32,406,500
NOTES: T
1. Lot 3 was granted on 1 March 2010, where total share options were vested 1. F=HR_E—ETFE=ZF—HEL AT
on the Grant Date. The expiration date for the share options was three EEREASEDRE ZSBERED
years from 1 April 2010, i.e. 31 March 2013. All outstanding share options EmBEAER_ZT—ZFEMA—HBE
not exercised pursuant to the 2010 share options had expired on 31 March =% R A-ZE—=F=A=+
2013. —B-RE_Z-TFERERKDES

KRITEMNBEREHER-_Z—=F=A
=+t—RBEm-
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2. Lot 4 and Lot 5 were granted on 27 November 2012. The Exercise Period
for Lot 4 is 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 and the Exercise Period
for Lot 5 is 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

The fair value of the options granted is estimated at the date of grant
using the binomial option pricing model, taking into accounts the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. Details of the fair
value of the options are stipulated in note 34 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

The following sets out details of certain connected transactions of the
Group.

Continuing Connected transaction
Deed of Non competition

A deed of non-competition was entered into between Lion Diversified
Holdings Berhad ("LDHB") and the Company on 10 November 2005
(supplemented and amended on 18 September 2007), under which LDHB has
undertaken not to engage, other than through the existing managed stores,
in any business of the retail trade in merchandise in department stores,
supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, specialty merchandise
stores, supercentres and category killers in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan. Pursuant to a reorganization scheme undertaken by LDHB, LDHB
had agreed to consolidate most of its retail business (including most of
its existing managed stores in the PRC) into PHB. In light thereof, PHB has
entered into an identical deed of non-competition with the Company on
18 September 2007 with respect to those managed stores acquired from
LDHB. In conjunction therewith, LDHB has granted an indemnity in favour
of the Company which will be invoked if PHB fails to fulfill its obligation
under the aforesaid deed of non-competition dated 18 September 2007.

The principal businesses of LDHB are manufacturing and selling computer
and related products, developing property, investment holding and other.
The principal business of PHB is operation of department stores and PHB is
a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected person
of the Company. Both PHB and LDHB are members of The Lion Group which
is ultimately controlled by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and hence, LDHB is a
connected person of the Company. Save for Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong who have material interest in the aforesaid
transaction, none of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid
transaction and need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof. Both
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong are deemed
interested in the aforesaid transaction and have been abstained from voting
in any of the resolutions in relation to the aforesaid transaction.
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Trademark license agreement

A trademark license agreement was entered into between Shanghai Lion
Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Parkson Corporation on 9 November 2005, pursuant to which Parkson
Corporation granted to Shanghai Lion Investment an exclusive license
to use certain trademarks, including the "Parkson” and "Xtra" trademarks
for a term of 30 years at the license fee of RMB30,000 per store per
annum. The Trademark was subsequently assigned by Parkson Corporation
to Smart Spectrum Limited on 14 June 2011. All rights, obligation, and
liabilities under the Licence Agreement were therefore novated by Parkson
Corporation to Smart Spectrum Limited on 1 August 2011.

Smart Spectrum Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PHB (and hence
an associate of PHB) and its principal activity is retail. None of the directors
have a material interest in the aforesaid trademark license agreement and
need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company repurchased
20,450,000 shares of its own ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange
at a total consideration of RMB40,455,000. Details of the share repurchases
by the Company are included in note 33 to the financial statements. Save
for the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed interest in any of the Company's listed shares during
the year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with employees.
The remuneration payable to employees includes salaries and allowance/
bonuses.

The Group also has made contributions to the staff related plans or funds
in accordance with the local regulations of the PRC: pension plans, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance.

The Group has been advised by its legal advisers on PRC law that the above
arrangements are in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

EEOHES
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As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers
and suppliers accounted for more than 5% of its turnover at ended 31
December 2013. None of the Directors or shareholders who owned 5% or
more of the issued shares capital of the Company ended 31 December 2013
or any of their respective associates held any interest in any of the five
largest customers and suppliers of the Company ended 31 December 2013.

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
period from the date of listing of shares to 31 December 2013.

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report" under this annual report.

Ernst & Young retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Heng Jem

Executive Director & Chairman
20 February 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BB MRES

Ernst & Young Rk EEH RS TEAT Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower HEMIRRNEB1E Fax {5E: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue h{E RKE221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY =«

To the shareholders of Parkson Retail Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group")
set out on pages 63 to 180, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certificated Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 February 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mAEEER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+_-A=+—HILtFE

2012
—E——-F
RMB'000
AREETF I
(Restated*)
(FEEFI*)
REVENUE U 3= 4 4,536,674 4,449,632
Other operating revenues H g & Uz 4 573,716 585,269
Total operating revenues KBTS 5,110,390 5,034,901
OPERATING EXPENSES RERxX
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories B EVI MIFEEE) (1,333,718) (1,288,830)
Staff costs 8 TR A (589,152) (479,811)
Depreciation and amortisation YT Mt (387.877) (293,102)
Rental expenses itk (1.126,835) (893,234)
Other operating expenses Hihe &M (1,129,431) (1,000,597)
Total operating expenses AL (4,567,013) (3,955,574)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS &= RE 5 543,377 1,079,327
Finance income BE WA 6 198,108 184,904
Finance costs EHEN N 6 (166,127) (108,294)
Share of profits of: EAEA TS IEAFE
A joint venture BEE 16 35,783 46,500
An associate i /N 17 137 144
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE R BT 15 B B0 RE
INCOME TAX 611,278 1,202,581
Income tax expense Frisfifm > 9 (238,676) (322,877)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFHE 372,602 879,704
Attributable to: LATRIE B FE(h
Owners of the parent SRAIMAE A 353,646 850,774
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RE S 18,956 28,930
372,602 879,704

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREEEEA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EEERBF
THE PARENT 10
RMBO0.126 RMB0.303
Basic HAK AR#o0.1260t AR¥03037T
RMBO.126 RMB0.302
Diluted BE AR#0.126t AR¥03027T

Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 consolidated ~ * EAMTRzETHRFTEH-_T——FK4
financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in note 2.2. B RER AR - RERF 2. 28R A AR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZT—=F+_A=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—=E—= —E—C—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
(Restated®)
(&&E5%)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEFHE 372,602 879,704
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hig2E B A
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to ENGEEESEE
profit or loss in subsequent periods: BarEmEmRA -
Cash flow hedges: ¥R E
Effective portion of changes in fair value of FEEERENM
hedging instruments on cash flow hedges arising HHRTAEAAR
during the year BEEgHY
B REB D 69,498 (59,820)
Gains on disposal included in the SFALEAEREN
consolidated statement of profit or loss HE WS (89,736) =
(20,238) (59,820)
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE
Changes in fair value RABEEY 6,976 7,413
Gains on disposal included in the SFALZAEEBHREN
consolidated statement of profit or loss HEUES (9,391) =
(2,415) 7,413
Exchange differences on translation of BERINETSREEA
foreign operations EHEE 40,420 4,263
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, FEBBREMEZEBA
NET OF TAX 17,767 (48,144)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FEZEWALRE 390,369 831,560
Attributable to: LATNIE B (L -
Owners of the parent SRFIMAE A 371,413 802,630
Non-controlling interests eI = 18,956 28,930
390,369 831,560
* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 consolidated ~ * WERZETEHFE —T— —FR5858

financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in note 2.2.

BERTR - REF 2250 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBIRR R

31 December 2013 —F—=F+=-A=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012
—E—= —E——4F
+=A +=A
=t—H =t—H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AR®ETrx AREBETT ARETT
(Restated®) (Restated*)
(&E5") (geE5*)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEKEE 11 3,829,717 2,753,773 2,677,601
Investment properties KEMZE 12 36,930 23,767 50,149
Prepaid land lease payments TAfRT A E K 13 461,061 474,373 487,683
Intangible assets B EE 14 2,245,301 2,174,497 2,171,670
Investment in a joint venture R—REELERMKRE 16 38,319 35,504 27,572
Investment in an associate R—REEANTIHEE 17 2,038 2,042 2,204
Prepayment for purchase of BE T REFTERNK
land and buildings 24 - 620,048 422,760
Other assets Hih&EE 18 384,933 52,845 25,254
Available-for-sale investments HEEERE 19 - 32,098 24,685
Deferred tax assets B IR E B 21 185,455 137,937 71,347
Derivative financial instruments EEAHHMITARD
designated as hedging instruments Y74 SR T A 30 - = 2,855
Total non-current assets FEREEETE 7,183,754 6,306,884 5,963,780
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories Ve 22 341,684 306,065 272,736
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 18 23 93,541 147,362 119,450
Prepayments, deposits and TafFRIE - BE
other receivables H h pE U GRIR 24 1,272,761 877,294 613,941
Investments in principal guaranteed  RATFZIKRE
deposits 20 3,635,303 3,307,373 2,608,857
Time deposits TFHFER 25 143,167 225,365 702,416
Cash and cash equivalents BEkBEHEY 25 1,035,518 1,424,477 1,677,228
Total current assets MENEEERR 6,521,974 6,287,936 5,994,628
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FERE 53R 26 (1,957,867) (1,896,628) (1,946,287)
Customers' deposits, other payables & FPiE4 - EfbESR
and accruals NIE K EFTIER 27 (2,027,896) (1,894,913) (1,702,433)
Tax payable FEBRHIA (76,053) (100,461) (130,223)
Term loan facilities THEFRE 29 - (2,491,161) =
Derivative financial instruments EERHHAITAD
designated as hedging instruments AR T A 30 - (69,498) =
Total current liabilities B REAETE (4,061,816) (6,452,661) (3,778,943)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #E&EE (&)
FE 2,460,158 (164,725) 2,215,685
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAS
LIABILITIES 9,643,912 6,142,159 8,179,465
continued]/...

&/
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A BRI R

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-HA=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012
—_E—= —E——F
+=A +=A
=t—H =+—H
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi AR¥Tr ARETT ARETT
(Restated®) (Restated®)
(&&E5") (geE5*)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBAE
LIABILITIES 9,643,912 6,142,159 8,179,465
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Bonds (62 31 (3,016,833) = =
Interest-bearing bank loans HBIRITEE 32 (178,944) = =
Long term payables REAFE IR 28 (482,144) (237,397) (132,539)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMIBRE 21 (283,990) (243,402) (230,204)
Term loan facilities THEZ@ME 29 - = (2,467,446)
Derivative financial instruments EEAHHMTARS
designated as hedging instruments AMESMIEA 30 - = (8,683)
Total non-current liabilities IR BEERE (3,961,911) (480,799) (2,838,872)
Net assets EEZE 5,682,001 5,661,360 5,340,593
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of R RAT A A
the parent L s
Issued capital BEBITIRA 33 58,299 58,354 58,354
Treasury shares E1FRR 33 (32,323) = =
Reserves HE 35 5,543,310 5,328,927 4,900,631
Proposed final dividends BT R B AR A 36 27,901 196,750 309,100
5,597,187 5,584,031 5,268,085
Non-controlling interests FEERES 84,814 77,329 72,508
Total equity AR 5,682,001 5,661,360 5,340,593

*

Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 consolidated
financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in Note 2.2.

Director
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERESER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE—ZT—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BARAE AR
Available-
for-sale
Issued PRC Share Asset  investment Proposed Non-
share Share  Treasury Contributed  reserve  Exchange  Hedging  option revaluation revaluation  Retained final controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares  surplus funds  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  earnings  dividends Total interests equity

It
il BBE KE HERR Ex FER
bR BHER EEER AARR ORE ERGR HMGR 0 BR  EMBR EGBR RERY AEEN &5 BE 4R
Notes  RMBOOD RMB00O RMBOOO AMBOOO RMBOOD RMB000 RMBOOO RMBOOO  AMBOOO RMBOOD RMB00D RMBODO AMBOOO RMBO0D RMB000
fE ARRTR ARETR ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR

BT

(note 33) (note 35(a)i) (note 35(al() (note 35fa)i)
(R i
(Pis3s)  asfalli))  3sfall) 38(ai))
At 1 January 2013 RZ5-Z%F
-f-8 58,354 1420 - 2560 267,520 (62,788) 20,238 62,909 251,412 2415 4763241 196,750 5,584,031 77329 5,661,360
Proft for the year FERE - - - - - - - - - - 353646 - 353646 18956 372,602
Other comprehensive income ~ EEE 2 EMA
for the year:
Cash flow hedges, HPEER
net of tax R - - - - - - (0239) - - - - - (o - (028)
Available-for-sale AHHERE -
investments, netof tax MBI - - - - - - - - - ) - - ) - )

Bichange differences on ~ BEFIELKE
translation of foreign EEZERZEER
operations - - - - - 4042 - - - - - - 40420 - 40420

Total comprehensive income £ E2EUALHE

for the year - - - - - 40420 (20,238) - - (2415) 353,646 - INan 18,956 390,369
Employee share-based W BER

arrangements EETH Rl - - - - - - - 1943 - - - - 19423 - 19423
Exercise of share options EERE 34 - 60 - - - - - (10) - - - - 50 - 50

Transfer of share option BREEREER
reserve upon the expiry BREERE

of share options 3 - - - - - - - (44,626) - - 44626 - - - -
Purchase of treasury shares B EETFIR ki - - (40455) - - - - - - - - - [(40455) - [(40455)
Cancellation of treasury shares  EUBETFR 3 (s5)  (1480) 8132  (6597) - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer to the PRC BEREhELRS

reserve funds - - - - 781 - - - - - (7.811) - - - -

final 2012 dividends paid ~~ B=F-=F

RERE - - - - - - - - - - - (19750) (196,750) - (196,750)
Interim 2013 dividends paid 2T =%

HHRE 3% - - - - - - - - - - (140525) - (140525) - (140529)
Proposed final 2013 dividends  #E=F—=%

RS 3% - - - - - - - - - - (na) 21901 - - -
Dividends paid to Bl#AR
non-controlling shareholders RS - - - - - - - - - - " - - s @)
Acquisiton of non- g sRkER
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - - 14586 14,586

Capltal contributon from~~~ FEHRRERHE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - - 1,500 1,500
At 31 December 2013 R-%F-=%
+-A=t-8B 58,299 = (32323)  15963* 275331 (22,368)" =369 251412 -' 4,985,276 27901 5,597,187 84,814 5,682,001
continued]/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

R AES
Available-
for-sale
Issued PRC Share Asset  investment Proposed Non-
share Share  Contributed reseve  Exchange  Hedging option  revaluation revaluation  Retained final controlling
capital ~ premium surplus funds reserve TEServe Teserve Teserve reserve  earnings  dividends Total ~interests
: : Eifh & #E B f REEH  RARA At &
Notes ~ RMBO0O  RMBOO  RMB'000  RMB! RMBO0OO  RMB'000  RMBI00O 00 RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMBOOO  RMB'000
Wi ARMTL ARBTT ARA iF 7 T Bt ARETR ARETRL
[note 35)  (note 35()()
(Fiztss)  3s(al) 35(ai)
At 1 January 2012 WoE-—&
-R-H 58,354 1420 20560 257,865 (67051) 80,058 43759 25141 (4998) 4315606 309,100 5268085 72508 5340593
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - - - - - - 07T - 074 28930 879,704

Other comprehensive income £ EM2EHA

for the year:
Cash flow hedges, g e

net of tax Bl - - - - - (59820 - - - - - (59820 - (9820
Avalable-for-sale AHERE

investments, net of tax Bl - - - - - - - - 7413 - - 7413 - 7413

Bchange differences o~ 8BS EHE
translation of foreign EE7ERER
operations - - - - 4263 - - - - - - 4263 - 4263

Total comprehensive income ~ EE2EMA
for the year et - - - - 4263 (59,820 - - 143 850,774 - 802,630 28930 831,560

Employee share-based DR BERE

armangement EEZH 34 - - - - - - 19,150 - - - - 19,150 - 19,150
Transfer to the PRC BRThENES
reserve funds - - - 9,655 - - - - - (9,655)

Final 2011 dividends paid ~ BR=E——%
RERE - - - - - - - - - - (309100 (309,100) - (309,100

Interim 2012 dividends paid ~ BFf=F—-=F
TERE 3% - - - - - - - - - (196,734) - (196734) - (196,734)

Proposed final 2012 dividends F -5 ——%&
FHRE 3 - - - - - - - - - (1967500 196,750

Dividends paid to non- BIFAR

controlling shareholders Rk - - - - - - - - - - - - (24109 (24,109)
At 31 December 2012 R-2--%
+=R=t-H B 10T 2SO TSN (68 W8 R0 IS 2415 ATET 196750 SEB4031 7739 5661360
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * REREROESAMBRRERZEGE
RMB5,543,310,000 (2012: RMB5,328,927,000) in the consolidated statement fit #5 A R #5,543,310,0007C (Z T — =

of financial position. F: AR¥5328927,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERNERER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=F+_-A=+—HILtFE

Notes

(i

2013

AE#?E

2012
—E-——F
RMB'000
ARETTT
(Restated?)
(f=&E5)*)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHNESHRE
Profit before tax AT A E 611,278 1,202,581
Adjustments for: ?ﬁl«‘/(—lt%l,ﬁ\{’ﬁ,ﬂ%}ag :
Share of profits of a joint venture and BE—REERER
an associate —x 5?%@ GIkibE (35,920) (46,644)
Interest income %Uguk}\ 6 (198,108) (184,904)
Interest expenses e 6 166,127 108,294
Depreciation and amortisation Ve 5 387,877 293,102
Foreign exchanges gains R 5 - (1,501)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE K
plant and equipment RENERE 5 14,329 3,041
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments REAHLEREKE 4 (9,391) -
Gain on acquisition UG BB 7 AE e 4 (6,523) =
Impairment of property, plant and ME - R MR
equipment IR E 5 - 1,279
Equity-settled share option expenses ERERE R AR 34 19,423 19,150
949,092 1,394,398
Increase in other assets H A& E AN (367,083) (27,591)
Increase in inventories FEM (6,039) (33,329)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEUN B 5 Fh1E
w8 ) 56,458 (27,912)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, T FRIE - e
deposits and other receivables E fth e Y R IE
S /() 214,874 (268,876)
Decrease in trade payables 8 S RIER D (103,299) (49,659)
(Decrease)/increase in customers' deposits, BERS « HihfER
other payables and accruals PIE N FESTIE R
O J\)/i'ﬁm (6,381) 189,042
Increase in long term payables RHEAERTFRIEHE N 214,106 104,858
Cash generated from operations e E@JEEEI’]EE% 951,728 1,280,931
Income tax paid AEHR (311,821) (406,031)
Net cash flows from operating activities LS EHIR SRS FE 639,907 874,900
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REZENBESHE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEDE - M}%&
plant and equipment R I8 B TS 58 19,449 9,138
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BER
plant and equipment LETEH (442,294) (333,327)
Deposit paid for purchase of land and buildings BB Ty KiEF
PR ® (573,061) -
Purchases of items of intangible assets BEEFEAEER (1,041) (4,641)
Prepayment for purchases of land and buildings B8 +ith RIEFIEN X - (197,288)
Increase in an investment in RATFFIZE LN
principal guaranteed deposits (236,930) (698,516)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB KB A ) 37 (264,696) =
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERE
investments PSR 1A 39,074 =
Dividends received B Uz & 33,109 38,568
Interest received 2 A & 175,842 189,222
Increase in non-pledged time deposits with BARREIHABG
original maturity of more than three months =@ A /e
when acquired FHRTE % 0 103,542 477,051
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEHFTAR
e nERa (1,147,006) (519,793)
continued/...
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HmEREREBR

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—_F
Notes RMB'000
gz AR¥T R ARETTT
(Restated®)
(FeE5*)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& ZFBNHRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BT P15 5KIA 50 -
Net proceeds from bonds EHERIEFRE 3,070,295 -
Net proceeds from a bank loan RITERFMEREFE 492,221 -
Repayment of a bank loan ERRITER (310,360) -
Repayment of the term loan facility EETHETRE (2,465,873) -
Termination of cross currency swap contracts BIFRT X B HE 49 (103,422) -
Termination of interest swap contracts R ER = B S 4 (7.374) -
Interest paid BEfFE (143,219) (77,280)
Capital contributions from non-controlling IEERR AR R H &
shareholders 1,500 -
Purchase of treasury shares BEETR 53 (40,455) =
Dividends paid ERARE (337,275) (505,834)
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders of &k FHi B A &
subsidiaries FEFERR AR R (33,833) (24,109)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMEEEAE,(FTA)
financing activities e E%E 122,255 (607,223)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS A RE (384,844) (252,116)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ F#HIE G KB
EEBY 1,424,477 1,677,228
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EREe) s 8 TR (4.115) (635)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEERERS
AT END OF YEAR ZE Y 1,035,518 1,424,477
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERALTEEN
CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDT
Cash and bank balances Re LTS 25 966,408 1,014,148
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity AR RAEIE BT
of less than three months when acquired =& A Ry =4 3
TFHIRH 25 69,110 410,329
Cash and cash equivalents BEREESZEY 1,035,518 1,424,477

*

Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2012 consolidated

financial statements and reflect adjustments made as detailed in Note 2.2.

*

HEARZETHFR-_T-—_FK4
MBEHRERAR - RERH T2 25 B EE -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B FEAR R 2=

31 December 2013 —F—=F+=-A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT  AR®BTET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITE A RHRE 15 3,189,493 2,928,653
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 19 - 32,098
Total non-current assets SEMEEEBTE 3,189,493 2,960,751
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERTRIE ~ e

H A FEUGRIR 2,054 7,733
Time deposits haEEEZ N 25 28,389 253
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEEY 25,904 185,888
Total current assets BB ERTE 56,347 193,874
CURRENT LIABILITIES i =R
Customer's deposits, other payables and accruals B FiZ4 - HibERt

KB K FEETIER (40,180) (25,908)
Term loan facilities FHERmE 29 - (2,491,161)
Derivative financial instruments designated as  ¥§E A¥ P T A

hedging instruments ATESBMTA 30 - (69,498)

Total current liabilities mEBEERE (40,180) (2,586,567)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) ﬁﬁ.ibﬁ&/(ﬁ{ﬁ)

HE 16,167 (2,392,693)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERARBAERE 3,205,660 568,058
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEME
Bonds BE% 31 (3,016,833) =
Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITEE 32 (178,944) -
Total non-current liabilities EREBEALE (3.195,777) -
Net assets EEFE 9,883 568,058
EQUITY E=
Issued capital BBITRA 33 58,299 58,354
Treasury shares E1FRL 33 (32,323) =
Reserves i 35 (43,994) 312,954
Proposed final dividends ) AR HARS A 36 27,901 196,750

Total equity HRER 9,883 568,058




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 3 August 2005. The Company has established a principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen's Road East, Hong Kong. In the opinion of the directors, the
Company's ultimate holding company is Parkson Holdings Berhad
("PHB"), a company incorporated in Malaysia and listed on Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group") are the operation and management of a network of
department stores in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC").

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for derivative financial instruments which have been measured at
fair values. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

ARV _ZEZTRFNA=ZHEHAES
HEFMKZABERAR - XA A
REBNTELEWMRBAAEER
KIBEI183TNA FIHF 0541 - EHR
AR AR B 4 4E I A |) AParkson
Holdings Berhad ([PHB]) * —RMN5E
RADEMKZO AR - WRKEE
HFRGFT LT °

AR REMBLRAR ([REE]) &
TEXEBR/ETEARKME (T4
B RERBEER -

ZEMBRERTDKBER G EAER
Ee ((HEetEREZEE]) Bk
B BB B 7% ¥R 5 A B ([ BBR B 7% 3
FEA]) REB (R EERD) R EE
REMRSE - TR L AR E £ IR
2o MHETEERIARAAEET
B ZFEUBREUAARE (TAR
%) 2% BRIERSNER - BRI
BEEOOBEIAZREINTIT

REEXE
HEVBRRBRERARTMEKEA
B (G AKE]) BE-F—=F
TZA=1T—HLEFEMB®REK - K
NG} b e Em SN0} b
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4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

[FRS 1 Amendments

[FRS 7 Amendments

[FRS 10
[FRS 11
IFRS 12
[FRS 10, IFRS 11 and

[FRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 13

IAS 1 Amendments
IAS 19 Amendments
IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 28 (Revised)

IAS 36 Amendments

IFRIC 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards - Government
Loans

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 - Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment
of Assets - Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of IFRSs
issued in May 2012

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
IFRS 11, the adoption of these new and revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

PSRRI

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H
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31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and IFRIC
13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers. It describes the accounting for joint arrangements with
joint control. It addresses only two forms of joint arrangements,
i.e., joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the option to
account for joint ventures using proportionate consolidation. The
classification of joint arrangements under IFRS 11 depends on the
parties' rights and obligations arising from the arrangements. A
joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the joint operators
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
arrangement and is accounted for on a line-by-line basis to the
extent of the joint operators' rights and obligations in the joint
operation. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the joint
venturers have rights to the net assets of the arrangement and is
required to be accounted for using the equity method in accordance
with IAS 28.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group's investments in joint arrangements in
accordance with the requirements of IFRS 11, and concluded that
the Group's investment in Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development
Co., Ltd., which was previously classified as a jointly-controlled
entity under IAS 31 and was accounted for using the proportionate
consolidation method, should be classified as a joint venture under
IFRS 11 and be accounted for using the equity method. The change
in accounting for investments in joint ventures has been applied
retrospectively. The opening balances as at 1 January 2012 and
comparative information for the year ended 31 December 2012
have been restated in the consolidated financial statements. The
quantitative impact on the financial statements is summarised
below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2 e HBERBEZ®H (8&)
(continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

REBERZE

Year ended

31 December
2012
HE_ZT—_F

+=-—A=+—H
FE
RMB'000
AR¥EF T

Decrease in revenue Wt (97,506)
Decrease in other operating revenues H A 48 & Wzl (7,953)

Decrease in total operating revenues WY T A EE R (105,459)

Decrease in purchases of goods and changes in

inventories 27,633
Decrease in staff costs 8 TR D 8,661
Decrease in depreciation and amortisation WER D K E#HE 1,742
Decrease in rental expenses MR 12,630
Decrease in other operating expenses Hagamms 12,074
Decrease in total operating expenses KERZ BREER D 62,740
Decrease in profit from operations K F R (42,719)
Decrease in finance income BhE W AR D (6,081)
Increase in share of profit of a joint venture R —REEMEREE N 46,500
Decrease in profit from operations before FOH0 A AR & A ER 2

income tax (2,300)
Decrease in income tax expense Fri %t s B4 2,300

Net impact on profit for the year and
earnings per share

FEANNERBANZEFER

Net impact on other comprehensive income

Hip 2w AZEFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2 B BEEREEZ2F (&)
(continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position: FE BRI 2

31 December 1 January
2012 2012

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTET

Decrease in property, plant and equipment ME -~ MR NERER D (6,753) (5,392)
Increase in an investment in a joint venture R—REEDERN
il 35,504 27,572
Decrease in deferred tax assets BB EERD (1,520) (826)
Increase in total non-current assets IERBYE EARERIE N 27,231 21,354
Decrease in inventories FERD (5,404) (5,610)
Decrease in trade receivables U E 5 FIE R (1,366) (1,292)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - RS
other receivables HAth pe iz agim 4 (16,940) (3,946)
Decrease in investments in principal RAGFRZIRER D
guaranteed deposits (84,660) (102,000)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents Re KA EBYWR D (24,578) (12,776)
Decrease in total current assets BN & B AR (132,948) (125,624)
Decrease in trade payables BB SFIBR L 40,307 35,782
Decrease in customers' deposits, other XEE®  HiEMNFKIE
payables and accruals N fEstIE B R 65,994 60,916
Decrease/(increase) in tax payable FEFLTER A (1 h0) (1,674) 6,361
Decrease in total current liabilities BB RERER 104,627 103,059
Decrease in net current assets BN E B R (28,321) (22,565)
Decrease in long term payables AR BB 1,090 1,211
Impact on net assets and equity BEFEMERCTE s s
* The Group recognised the initial investment in the joint venture as * REBR-—_ZT——F—H—HI
at 1 January 2012 at the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the BENABHNAEEEENREE
assets and liabilities that the Group had previously proportionately DEBERNFEIRIEEBR R F

consolidated. 4RE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES (continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows:

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

B BRREE22E (B)

RERERBRZNE

Year ended

31 December

2012

BHE_T——F

+=—A=+—8

IEFE

RMB'000

AR®ET T

Decrease in net cash flows from operating activities #&%EE)FTISIR &R (32,631)
Decrease in net cash flows used in K& EBFTRIR R

investing activities 20,829

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEBWRIFE (11,802)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
which have been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial
statements:

IFRS9
IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and
|AS 39 Amendments

Financial Instruments®
Hedge Accounting and amendments to
IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and IAS 39°

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
|AS 27 Amendments

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 - Investment Entities’

IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee
Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions®

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement - Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting'

IAS 32 Amendments

IAS 39 Amendments

IFRIC 21 Levies'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, the
Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of the operations
and financial position.
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Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in subsidiaries that are not classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of associates and joint ventures are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company's investments in associates
and joint ventures are treated as non-current assets and are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate IFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units),
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties, goodwill and non-current
assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Related parties (continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation
reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between the
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and
the depreciation based on the asset's original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
earnings as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 38 - 45 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Equipment and fixtures 5 - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents stores and storage facilities
under construction or renovation works in progress which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated.
Cost comprises development and construction expenditures
incurred and other direct costs attributable to the development
less any accumulated impairment losses. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and ready
for use.
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value. Depreciation
is calculated on the straight-line basis over the expected useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement of disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under "Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in
use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under "Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation" above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value
of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
expected useful life of computer software with a definite useful
life of five years.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Land use rights are carried at cost and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the respective periods of the rights ranging from 42 to
45 years. When the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire
prepaid land lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Leases (continued)

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included
in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other operating revenues and
negative net changes in fair value presented as other operating
expenses in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair
value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
operating revenues in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in finance costs for loans and in other operating expenses
for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are
those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other operating revenues, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in other
operating revenues. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as other operating revenues in
accordance with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised cost and
the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

TREERE (8)
BB SHK A SRR ) & B A
IRB AR ERMEENS
AEEELAHAMERNEZENSRE
EEITERFE  FHEEREERS
FEFBRERE YA ERNE
EZMMeRMEEETARMG - M
%I#E%MI%‘JH%E’J%@EE? (%
MABERMRT) YEFEETER
TEaJJz? AletzEERA—HASE
BUEERRFENSREERN - R
& EEFHERE - BRFHERER R
Hig R EmER R EBENEE
EHRFERER T GBEENA -

BMEBEBAREENREERRM
AARKRERE (TEERRELDN
BRREEEKX) NBREZHNEET

c ERFARKRE R RENRER SR
BERBERME (AIY)FHEREFH
BERAER) #3R

ZIAEEMREERBE AR ERY
B MAEEESRAERERARE
Ao B U AT HIR A BRE (B T +5 48
A8 WiRETERERERBRITR
ARELREMF KRG - EHRK
Bl NRIEIRET - S S KR R
THEREM AR E M ERRE
REHRERETAEE -

MRS % 2RT - RAERRRE LT
TS RS OREE R EEE R
b B EEBRERERAAS %
1555 B HER A0 R - S B
HE e - B E S B A AR
%R -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. "Significant"
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
“prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, derivative
financial instruments, customers' deposits, other payables and
accruals, term loan facilities, Bonds, and interest-bearing bank
loans.
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Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as cross
currency swaps and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. These derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

° fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability
in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, or the foreign currency risk
in an unrecognised firm commitment.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument's
effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument's fair value in
offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value
or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in
fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout
the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of an interest rate hedging derivative
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as finance costs.
The change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
risk hedged is recorded as a part of the carrying amount of the
hedged item and is also recognised in the statement of profit or
loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the
adjustment to carrying value is amortised through the statement
of profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the
effective interest rate method. Effective interest rate amortisation
may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and shall begin no later
than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its
fair value attributable to the risk being hedged. If the hedged item is
derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in the statement of profit or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged
item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the
firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as
an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. The changes in the fair value of
the hedging instrument are also recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income in the hedging
reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the statement of profit or loss as finance costs.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred
to the statement of profit or loss when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when hedged financial income or
financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs.
Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are transferred to the initial carrying amount
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised in other
comprehensive income are transferred to the statement of profit or
loss in the same period or periods during which the asset acquired
or liability assumed affects the statement of profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy),
or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when the hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income remain in
other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction occurs
or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated
into current and non-current portions based on an assessment of
the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying contracted cash
flows).

° Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period,
the derivative is classified as non-current (or separated
into current and non-current portions) consistently with
the classification of the underlying item.

° Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of
the host contract.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Current versus non-current classification (continued)

° Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can be
made.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are
recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of merchandise is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have credit terms of less than
180 days, are recognised and carried at the original invoice amounts
less allowances for any uncollectible amounts.

Other receivables are recognised and carried at cost less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised as a reduction in revenues upon
granting of bonus points to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus points scheme. The Group estimates future
redemption of bonus points based on its historical experiences.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and
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Income tax (continued)

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue
can be reliably measured, on the following bases:

° revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

° commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of goods by the relevant stores;

° promotion income and minimum guaranteed sales
commissions are recognised according to the underlying
contract terms with concessionaires and as these services
have been provided in accordance therewith;

o interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a short period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

° consultancy and management service fees, credit card
handling fees, administration fees and service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered;

° rental income, display space leasing fees and equipment
leasing income are recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms; and

° dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive
payment has been established.
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Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributes to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date on which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in
employee benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market condition or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other employee benefits

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and requlations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained earnings within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is different from the functional currency of the Company of
the United States dollar. The Company's consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi because management
considers that a substantial majority of the group companies
are in the PRC and the Group primarily generates and expends
cash in Renminbi. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception
of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the
statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the
entities in the Group are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessee

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for its
department stores business. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of relevant
properties and so accounts for them as operating leases.

Tax provisions

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation
and practices.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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Estimates uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangibles are tested for impairment annually and
at other times when such indicators exist. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the assets or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2013 was RMB2,239,064,000 (2012: RMB2,166,573,000).
Further details of impairment testing of goodwill are given in note
14 to the financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The carrying
amount of available-for-sale assets as at 31 December 2013 was
nil (2012: RMB32,098,000).

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value requires
determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of
equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms and conditions
of the grant. This also requires determining the most appropriate
inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and valuation models used are disclosed in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2013 was RMB48,568,000
(2012: RMB65,858,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at
31 December 2013 was RMB264,720,000 (2012: RMB86,470,000).
Further details are given in note 21 to the financial statements.

Depreciation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of 5 to 45 years, after
taking into account their estimated residual values, as set out
in the principal accounting policies below. Depreciation of items
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties is
calculated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful
lives. The carrying amounts of items of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties as at 31 December 2013 were
RMB3,829,717,000 (2012: RMB2,753,773,000) and RMB36,930,000
(2012: RMB23,767,000), respectively. Further details are given in
note 11 and note 12 to the financial statements, respectively.
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING REVENUES 4. WKk HAaRE s
Revenue g

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net
amount received and receivable for the goods sold by the Group to
outside customers, less returns and allowances, commissions from
concessionaire sales, consultancy and management service fees,

and gross rental income.

An analysis of revenue is presented below:

Wzt (MBIAKENERTE) A%
EEINEEFHER M KRB
HFER - BURE RATE - AT EEH
EMe  FANEERBELREERE
WA e

Was DR T

2013
—E—=

RMB'000

2012
—_ET——%F
RMB'000
ARBTT
(Restated)
(g&=5)

ARBTR

Sale of goods - direct sales HESm —HEHEE 1,576,693 1,537,520
Commissions from concessionaire sales (Note) 4=FEEHEMES (i) 2,665,245 2,648,798
Consultancy and management service fees BAREERGE 13,445 19,796
Gross rental income Hem A 281,291 243,518

4,536,674 4,449,632

NOTE:

The commissions from concessionaire sales are analysed as follows:

MIEE :
HHEREESHESI TR

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREET T

(Restated)

(% =75)

Gross revenue from concessionaire sales BHEBHE AW 15,036,040 14,370,811

Commissions from concessionaire sales BHEEHEERS 2,665,245 2,648,798
Segment information S EE B

For management purposes, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment - the operation and management of department
stores in the PRC. All revenues from external customers are
generated in the PRC and all significant operating assets of the

Group are located in the PRC.

RERER - AEERRA—TEEE
BEHH - ERALERERER
7 - REEAERANBESHEH
W REHE - BEES
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4. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING REVENUES (continued) 4. WERHMEE WS (8)
Hith 48 8 U 25

Other operating revenues

2013 2012
—=2—= —E—_F
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt aE AR® T ARETT
(Restated)
(g ES))
Credit card handling fees ERRFEE 143,168 216,363
Promotion income I A 119,024 102,251
Administration fees THRE R 60,840 60,646
Display space and & $H 3% 30 &

equipment leasing income BEEEWA 51,277 45,369
Service fees Ri%E R 30,798 32,131
Government grants BT 8D (i) 12,845 6,687

Gain on disposal of HERHEERED
available-for-sale investments Wz 9,391 =
Gain on acquisition Uk B U 75 6,523 -
Other income E U A 139,850 121,822
573,716 585,269

NOTE: MisE

(i) Various local government grants have been granted to reward (i) ANEBEN S BTEFZEE
the Group for its contributions to the local economy. There were B - LUEEE S BT
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these B o TR B E N R

government grants.

BERGIFHAERE -
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5.  PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 5. KERHE
The Group's profit from operations is arrived at after charging/ REBRKESHMBE &M (5
(erediting): A) THIEE 5 -
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T AR¥TT
(Restated)
(&E75)
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ER AR YN EE/KAN 1,333,718 1,288,830
Staff costs excluding directors’ and chief BINK (TEREENER
executive's remuneration (note 7): HITEME) (FI5E7) -
Wages, salaries and bonuses I& - FHae&ita 388,695 309,569
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIH R 57,099 45,511
Social welfare and other costs HERAMNREAMR AR 118,924 101,463
Equity-settled share option expenses EEREREREER 16,808 16,572
581,526 473,115
Depreciation and amortisation HTE MBS 387,877 293,102
Operating lease rentals in respect of EHEAMEEMED
leased properties: KEMHMER -
Minimum lease payments* EHEE 920,704 629,468
Contingent lease payments* A 206,131 263,766
1,126,835 893,234
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BENKRED
plant and equipment &8 14,329 3,041
Auditors' remuneration ZEET S 4,699 4,246
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1% - &= kR EBRE - 1,279
Gross rental income in respect of "EMENHESLRUA
investment properties (8.872) (11,972)
Sub-letting of properties: SHEYE
Minimum lease payments* H=IEHAE (180,848) (138,122)
Contingent lease payments® SR &~ (91,571) (93,424)
(272,419) (231,546)
Total gross rental income ErtELBIA (281,291) (243,518)
Direct operating expenses arising on MEREYEHSEED
rental-earning investment properties HEELERAX 958 586
Gain on acquisition i s 2 (6.523) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & A[ it H &R AR U S (9,391) -
Foreign exchange gains PE 5 W e - (1,501)
Minimum lease payments of the Group include pre-determined ¢ HRESLFEEHE REEE

rental payments and minimum guaranteed rental payments for

EnmERAHSAHBNRER

lease agreements with contingent rental payments. %o
Contingent lease payments are calculated based on a percentage & SRS HIBBEHERZNNTE

of the relevant performance of the tenants pursuant to the rental

agreements.

HREERENERKIASE -
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6.  FINANCE INCOME/COSTS 6. EEKRA EE
2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
(Restated)
(&E75)
Finance income: BEWA :
Bank interest income RITH B HA 160,081 162,398
Income from cross currency and R EE R FRBEE [
interest swap contracts (Note) ZUWA (M33E) 38,027 22,506
198,108 184,904
Finance costs: BB AN

Bonds % (96,636) =
Term loan facilities FHERmE (66,669) (108,294)
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITEE (2.822) =
(166,127) (108,294)

NOTE: MieE
As further disclosed in note 30 to these financial statements, in 2010 and R ERRNTIE— S HE - A&EH
2011, the Group entered into a series of cross currency and interest swap RIE—TEFER_TE——FHRTEHERX
contracts in respect of the term loan facilities. BB T —RINZXNEE R ERZH

B# -
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7- DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7.
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules") on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EE - BRFITERBRITHRA
EM=
REEEHAEISABRIA (TH
RFr)) B EmARA (T EMARAD
REE CRRUED) F161RRERE
MEEREFEATEFEMSOT

2013 2012

—_E—= = =—F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET R AREFTT

Fees 5 A 1,012 1,020

Other emoluments: Hivie -

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R AR

other benefits H @ F 3,798 2,916

Equity-settled share option expenses BIREESEERY 2,615 2,578

Pension scheme contributions BIRG B 201 182

6,614 5,676

7,626 6,696

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIYkEHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

FARBLIFATEENH
BT

2013 2012

—EB-=F T4

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARETFTT

Mr. Werner Josef Studer Werner Josef Studer4t 4 165 170
Mr. Ko Tak Fai, Desmond SEEL L 165 170
Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert F#R&LLE 165 170
495 510

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil).

HE-T-—=F+t-A=+-—
L4 3 A 34 P
ERTEFNMS (—F— =

FE\E)-
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DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE - B@FEITERERITHA
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) EfME (&)
(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) BITEE kHTEEREE

BB

chief executive

Salaries,
allowances, Equity-
bonuses and settled Pension
other  share option scheme
benefits expenses  contributions
56 28
AR  BREED Bk
70| HiEH HEEX HE 5 it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%Tr AR%ETx
2013 —T-=F
Executive directors: HTEE:
Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong ~ 2EB&%E
(re-designated on (R=Z2—=%TR
31 May 2013) =+—HHL) 69 - 533 - 602
Mr. Chew Fook Seng BAERLAE
(retired on 31 May 2013) (R=Z—=%%A
=+—REfE) 83 1,668 227 73 2,051
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem HHEEER
(re-designated on (ZE—=%71A
31 May 2013) =+—H#MT) 96 - - - 96
Mr. Tan Hun Meng BRERTAE
(appointed on (ZZ—=%1A
31 May 2013) =t BEZf) 104 - - - 104
352 1,668 760 73 2,853
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem B EER
(re-designated on (R=Z—=%7A
31 May 2013) =+—R#Af) 69 - - - 69
Datuk Cheng Yoong Choong ~ BEBEE
(re-designated on (ZE—=%71A
31 May 2013) =+—HHAML) 96 - 746 - 842
165 - 746 - 911
Chief executive: BRHIE
Mr. Tan Hun Meng BERTE - 2,130 853 128 3,11
517 3,798 2,359 201 6,875
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7- DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR

EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b)

Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive (continued)

EE BRITERSRITHA

SME (58)

(b) HTEE FUTESERER
BIE (F)

Salaries,
allowances, Equity-
bonuses and settled Pension
other share option scheme
benefits expenses  contributions
2
Ok EREER Rike
2 Het @7 BERY AT G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETn AR%®Tn ARET:
2012 —T-F
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cheng Yoong Choong BRELE 170 = 1,261 = 1431
Mr. Chew Fook Seng FRELE 170 - 224 - 394
340 - 1,485 - 1,825
Non-executive director: FHTES
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem R EEEH 170 - - - 170
Chief executives: BREHTE:
Mr. Chew Fook Seng FARREAE
(retired on 1 October 2012) (R=2—=%1H
—HEF) - 2,459 - 158 2,617
Mr. Tan Hun Meng BERTE
(appointed on (RZZ2——FT1A
1 October 2012) —BRZH) - 457 841 2% 1322
510 2916 2326 182 5,934

There was no arrangement under which any directors or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

FAMEREFTHKEFNTEREL
R EMETAMEMELEMZEE -
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Five highest paid employees (o)

The five highest paid employees during the year included
one director concurrently as the chief executive from 31
May 2013 (2012: one director concurrently as the chief
executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 7(b). Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2012: four) highest paid employees who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company
are as follows:

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

EE - BERITERSRITEA
SME (8)

TEBEHMES

AEEREGHE=HMEER 2F
BE—H(ZE—=—F: —4
B - HITBREFEHTE) &
= - HINREFHTEERZC
T—=FRA=+—Hit ' &
B & FEB E A7 () o ANF
EEHNA (ZTE—=F: 1
H)E=FMEES (REBLIHFE
RKABEZENIERHITE)

WS FBET -

2013 2012

—E—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFIT

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e o ERR - e R

other benefits HibrgF 6,572 6,219
Equity-settled share option expenses BREEREERX 1,364 1,345
Pension scheme contributions RKSTEIH T 358 314
8,294 7,878

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,179,300 to
RMB1,572,400)

BT (FBERARE
1,179,300 & A R #E

1,500,000/ 7T £ 2,000,000

B F A T 8B R & 5 5 B
BB (WIFEEMIIEBERIT
B)MAZBLT :

Number of employees

EBEAE

2013 2012
— —

= —

1,572,4007T) - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £ 2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,572,401 to BT (EERARK
RMB1,965,500) 1,572,4017LE AR
1,965,5007T ) 4 2
4 4

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no key
management personnel (as defined in IAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures) other than the directors and the five highest
paid employees as disclosed above.

EZRN BLEXAEENE
ERhEBESHFHERN - K
SEVYETARGMGEIREEA
8 (ExABER G ER£24
S BELRE]) °
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8.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to participate in
the employee retirement benefit scheme operated by the relevant
local government authorities in the PRC. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to these retired employees. The
Group was required to make contributions for those employees who
are registered as permanent residents in the PRC and are within the
scope of the relevant PRC regulations at rates ranging from 20%
to 22% of the employees' salaries for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012.

The Group's contributions to pension costs for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB57,300,000 (2012:
RMB45,693,000).

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on the profit
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate.

During the year, two PRC entities of the Group (2012: two PRC
entities) have obtained approval from the relevant PRC tax
authorities and were subject to preferential corporate income tax
rates or corporate income tax exemptions. Under the relevant PRC
income tax law, except for certain preferential treatments available
to certain PRC subsidiaries and the joint venture of the Group, the
PRC companies of the Group are subject to corporate income tax
at a rate of 259% (2012: 25%) on their respective taxable income.

An analysis of the provision for tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss is as follows:

REAFIS AR

Current income tax
Deferred income tax (note 21)

EEFASH (PRE21)

BARBREE
REENF R BRRHELXHEFAER
FERE H 5 BT BB Ve (B BRI AE
FErEl - FRBFEERZED RN
EEXNERE - HE-_ZT—=FK
—E——F+-_A=+—HILEEFE "
AEEBEACELKATBEAKAER
MEBTBEARMRENEBREE R
1B B #H 4 N F2000F 220 % &9 £ 5
B o

BHE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—H8ItF
B AEBERBARENAERHAR
#57300000C (ZE—Z—F: AR
#45,693,0007T) ©

FRri&®t
AEBERAREREERREIRE R
S BB A RIFTRE M2 T E RS
BLAHE R B M BT -

RAFEE  AEENRAERAR (=
T——F : MRPBERA)) BEEEH
PR S EAR EIRERDEMEH
R SIER R CEMSH - BIEMA
BHBAMEEE  BRASEETHE
BRI REREFIEFIEEIZR
AETEEFBIN  AEBMHPEAA
HIASLE F % B M ERBLUR A IZ25%
ZT—ZF : 250%) RGN ERR

RiEa Wz R AT ER B DT 0
B

2013 2012
—E—=5F bt =
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMFRE  ARETFT
(Restated)

(#&&:75)

281,785 376,269
(43,109) (53,392)

238,676 322,877
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INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FifEH (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax 2 RN 2 B B BB B 1 B4 & P B
at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) in which R (HAEER) 2EATHRETEZ
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to BREMAFECERTERYS - BigE
the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of B EFE s RIBRX 28R - AR
the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective BARE (AEEMRER) BERHRE
tax rates, are as follows: ZEEROT

Group - 2013 rEE-—2-—=F

British
Cayman Virgin
Hong Kong Singapore Islands Islands PRC Total

B eIk REHE RUEE mE a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ® ARETT % ARBTR % ARETR % ARETT % ARETR

Profitf{loss) from operations Kz TG R ATEE

before income tax e/ (B58) (80) (663) (145,360) 450 756,931 611,278
Taxat the Statutory tax rate.~ EESTERERE (13) 165 (113) 17.0 - - 189233 250 189,107 309
Tax effect of preferential by

tax rates T - - - - (29,045) (3.8)  (29,045) (4.8)
Profits and losses attributable  —FIAERER

to 2 joint venture and LN

an associate EENERER (23) 285 - - - (8946) (1.2)  (8.969) (1.5)
Tax losses not recognised WAL

HEkR 36 (45.0) 13 (17.0) - - 57017 75 5,166 9.4

Tax losses previously TAAERMAD

recognised, now reversed EEMiE - - - - 19577 26 19577 32
Pxpenses not deductivle AU RENH

for tax EEE - - - - 10090 13 10090 1.7

Effect of withholding tax on the KEEDEIfTE

distributable profits of the ~ ARMARE

Group's PRC subsidiaries HBeENH
ye - - - - 50001 750 O

Tax charge for the year AERRELH - - - - - - 238,676 315 238,676 39.0
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9.  INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FBH (8)
Group - 2012 AEE-—2——F

British

Cayman Virgin
Hong Kong Singapore Islands Islands PRC Total
(30 il REES BIES hE a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT o AREBTT o ARETRE  w ARETn o ARETR % ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)

(& =5) (& Z50)

Profitf{loss) from operations  RzFFTEHAILE
before income tax i/ (B8) (19) (108) (100,850 730 1,302,827 1,202,561

Income tax at the statutory ~ RAEFTEHE

income tax rate HEHMER (3 165 (18) 170 - - 35000 250 325686 271
Tax effect of preferential BERENHE

tae rates vz - - - - 3295 1) (528 (9
Profits and losses attributatle  —EIASRER

to a joint venture and LN

an associate EitEs (24) 1335 - - - (e (09 (149 [10)
Tax losses not recognised HARIETE

i) 3 277 (1500) 18 (170 - - 048 24 30993 26

Tax losses previously THABIMAD

fot recognistd, ERNHEER

but now recognised - = - = (14545) (1.1)  (14545) (12)
Expenses not deductible A RfEEHNE

for tax fES - - - - 1187 09 1187 09

Effect of withholding taxon ~ AEEHEHE
the distributable profitsof ~— ARETRE
the Group's PRC subsidiaries  FERI R
ye - - : - 6500 12 1650 13

Tax charge for the year REERES

302871 248 322871 268

The share of tax attributable to a joint venture and an associate —HeErER—EBEQFEMN
amounting to RMB5,970,000 (2012: RMB2,300,000) and RMB52,000 HIE S R A ARE5970,000T (ZF
(2012: RMB69,000), respectively, is included in "Share of profits of — =% : AR #¥23000007T) & A
a joint venture and an associate” in the consolidated statement of R®52000C (ZZE—ZF : AR¥
profit or loss. 69,0007T) B R ERE Bmk A [EIL

BECRNMBERRNEI ARK -
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EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

No adjustment had been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 December 2013 in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount
presented.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

10. BAREERESFEAEARGE
IR & 7
BREABNRBEFAG AR ER
PrEmis A AREFBARFAD %
TTE BRI RETE -

BREERNIRBEFAS QR ER
BEm A ARENERARFER
ERTEBRNEFHHR (WREK
EXBNOFTEIDR) N LMB S
B BB REE R S B R
UERERITHERBAINE T HG
i

BE - Z—=F+_A=+—HItHF
B ARERITENBRELFTZ
NMEREARF AR REEE
B B Z A2 N ERE
REFIEL BERE -

TIRBEFTESRER ISR

and diluted earnings per share computations: HUg A K AR (D By &g -
2013 2012
—E—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders — FARFHEFIRE AN

of the parent, used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculation

BRMOFAR]E B
B RAE ARG

353,646 850,774

Number of shares

gl 4=
2013
'000
F]
Shares [:dvi)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FR{Est EGREKRB N G
in issue during the year used in the basic FANBBITEBR
earnings per share calculation INHE S 2,808,227 2,810,491
Effect of dilution - weighted average HEarE - Tak
number of ordinary shares: nwEFHE
Share options AR - 3,277
2,808,227 2,813,768
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11.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11. Y% BERRKE
Group NEEH

Land and Leasehold Motor  Equipment  Construction
buildings  improvements vehicles  and fixtures in progress

1HERT BEUREE AE RERKE HRIR

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARRTR ARETR

At 1 January 2012, net of WZE-—f-f-H"
accumulated depreciation and BHNRZHNER
impairment (Restated) HE (&5 1,829,864 616,723 5282 142,606 83,126 2,677,601
Additions NE = 169,308 5461 48 467 17975 32
Transfer from investment properties RENEER 25,796 = = = = 25,796
Transfers from construction in progress  BER TIZEA - 111,955 - 3,125 (115,080) =
Disposals (& (232) (6,591) (708) (4633) - (12,164)
Depreciation charged during the year ~ REEHET (46,261) (194,796) (2308) (33,648) (379) (277392)
Impairment provided during the year  NEFE ARG = = = (1279) = (1279
At 31 December 2012 and R-E-—%+-RA
1 January 2013, net of =+-BR-E-=F
accumulated depreciation and —A—R - &Mk 25t
impairment (Restated) FERRE (FE5) 1,809,167 696,599 7727 154,638 85642 2753773
Additions NE - 251,764 5,605 71,035 766,329 1,094,733
Transfer from investment properties R AWEBA 11,649 = = = = 11,649
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 37)  WWEEMB A A (HizH37) 354,230 10,525 499 8965 = 374219
Transfers from construction in progress MR TEAA = 79,166 - = (79,166) =
Disposals HE - (28374) (128) (5.276) - (33,778)
Depreciation charged during the year ~ REEHERH (57,047) (270,023) (3327) (4048) - (370879)
At 31 December 2013, RZE-=%+-4
net of accumulated depreciation =+-H &Nk
and impairment ZHNERRE 2,117,999 739,657 10,376 188,880 772,805 3829117
At 1 January 2012 (Restated) R-E-—f-A-H
(&)
Cost WA 2,033,393 1,231,138 17,948 412514 83,126 3,778,119
Accurmulated depreciation BNk ZHTE (203,529) (614415) (12666)  (269908) - (1,100518)
Net carrying amount EEHE 1,829,864 £16,723 528 142,606 83126 2677401
At 31 December 2012 (Restated) R_E-——F
TZA=1-B (&&3)
Cost R 2,063,813 1,479,639 19,552 433,359 86,021 4,082,384
Accurmulated depreciation and BB ZHTERAE
impairment (254,646) (783,040) (11,825) (278,721) (379) (1,328611)
Net carrying amount REHE 1,809,167 696,599 1721 154,638 85,642 2,753,773
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZF
+-A=1+-H
Cost A 2,445,001 1,714,368 23,189 490,326 773,181 5,446,065
Accumulated depreciation and BB ZHIERRE
impairment (327,002) (974,111) (12,813) (301,446) (376)  (1,616,348)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,117,999 739,657 10376 188,880 772,805 3,829,717
All of the Group's land and buildings are located in the PRC, and AREBFFE L NEFHMRPR -

the land is held under a medium term lease. ME L #y i ERFR 4935 A o
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12.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12.

Group

2013 2012

—E—=F —Fe—=—=

RMB'000
AR¥T

RMB'000
ARETT

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H

Cost D@ 39,831 27,577
Accumulated depreciation K&K Rt e (2,901) (3,810)
Net carrying amount BRTENFE 36,930 23,767

A reconciliation of the net carrying amount of investment properties
at the beginning and end of the year is as follows:

FONRFROBEVEOERFES
BRANH

2013 2012

—_EF——%F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET ARET T

Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HREREFE 23,767 50,149

Additions from acquisitions (note 37) B UEEIE I (MF5E37) 25,770 =

Depreciation e (958) (586)
Transfer to owner-occupied property (note 11) BERS 2T (E Y

(MF3E11) (11,649) (25,796)

Net carrying amount at 31 December R+_A=+—BEREFE 36,930 23,767

13.

The Group's investment properties were revalued at RMB 176,869,000
on an open market, existing use basis on 30 June 2013 by CBRE
Limited, which is a professionally qualified valuer. The investment
properties are situated in PRC and leased to third parties under
medium term operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 39 to the financial statements.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid land lease payments represent land use rights paid to
the PRC governmental authorities and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over the respective lease agreement period. The
leasehold land is situated in the PRC and held under a medium
term lease.

13k

N £ B H % & ¥ % ACBRE Limited
ER_ZE—Z=ZFAZ=Z+BNA2H
mE REAREEEHAARE
176,869,0007T © & & WS ALA F B
MIREFRBEERONETFE=R -
HABERESNT RT3 -

L HBEER

B £ M E KI5 7 P B R AT 4 B S
e ERE  WIREFKERER
HEHZMEEE - UXTPEAHEE
THAFHERE -
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group

The movements of intangible assets are as follows:

At 1 January 2012, net of

R—E——F—H—8"

14. EBFEEE

BREENZEZHNT

Goodwill

[k

RMB'000
AR®TR

Computer
software
B
RMB'000
AR®TR

Total

st
RMB'000
AR® TR

accumulated amortisation KR 2t 8 2,166,573 5,097 2,171,670
Additions NE - 4,641 4,641
Amortisation provided during NG [E B {1 £

the year = (1,814) (1,814)
At 31 December 2012 and MN-E——%F

1 January 2013, net of +=-A=+—8K

accumulated amortisation —E—=F—HF—H"

KRR 25T 8 2,166,573 7,924 2,174,497
Additions INE - 1,041 1,041
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WHE B AR (MiEE37)

(note 37) 72,491 - 72,491
Amortisation provided during 7N 4F & % 4 1 £

the year = (2,728) (2,728)
At 31 December 2013, net of R-ZE—=%F

accumulated amortisation +=—A=+—8H

S 2T B 2,239,064 6,237 2,245,301
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H
Cost B AR 2,166,573 8,374 2,174,947
Accumulated amortisation 22t £ = (3,277) (3,277)
Net carrying amount BRHEFE 2,166,573 5,097 2,171,670
At 31 December 2012 and MN-ZE——F

1 January 2013 +—A=+—8xXK

—E—=F—H—H
Cost D@ 2,166,573 13,015 2,179,588
Accumulated amortisation SR = (5,091) (5,091)
Net carrying amount BREFAE 2,166,573 7,924 2,174,497
At 31 December 2013 MN-E—=%F

+—-A=+—~H
Cost DN 2,239,064 14,056 2,253,120
Accumulated amortisation R = (7,819) (7,819)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,239,064 6,237 2,245,301
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 14. EBREE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill BHENRERHE

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the following BENEAECYRE NVIREES
cash-generating units: BRI

2013 2012
—E—=4F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTIT

Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. P& 2 HRES

BERAR] (a) 111,104 111,104
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. BREEERERAT (o) 297,097 297,097
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza EEERBRES
Co., Ltd. BRATA (c) 2,712 2,712
Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment LERERERN
Consultant Co., Ltd. BRAT (d) 9,343 9,343
Asia Victory International Limited ZEEEBRAR AT (e) 315,225 315,225
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping B REHREYH L
Centre Co., Ltd. BRAR] (f) 272,743 272,743
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. IEEFILREE
HRAF (9) 508,909 508,909
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. #R[5 = e A X ES
BRAT] (h) 91,478 91,478
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial [ ZE M08 B A% 3
Co., Ltd. BHIEA T (i) 155,066 155,066
Tianjin Parkson Retail Development REABRBEER
Co., Ltd. BRAAE () 81,168 81,168
Lung Shing International Investment & B BRRIREHER
Development Company Limited BRAT] (k) 59,003 59,003
Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store Co., Ltd. PALZRLZEBEE
ERAA] (0 54,672 54,672
Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. AZBREEREE
BRA R (m) 137,317 137,317
Shantou Parkson Store Co., Ltd. WEEBRBERRARA (n) 70,736 70,736
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza &% B REBYES
Co., Ltd. 1N (0) 72,491 -
2,239,064 2,166,573
NOTES: MiaE
(a) Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the (a) AL TLERRESEERAFTTE
operation of two department stores in Xi'an, the PRC. RAPBRALZKEREAEE °
(b) Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages in the (0) BRAEEEREAER AT ETENAH
operation of six department stores in Beijing, Zhengzhou, Harbin B~ BN BRABELRTFEL
and Xinjiang, the PRC. BRKBER -
(c) Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in (0) EEERABEESARATITE

the operation of three department stores in Chongqing, the PRC. REFEELL-RAEE -
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

(0)

Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the provision of consultancy and management services
in Beijing, the PRC.

Asia Victory International Limited and its subsidiaries principally
engage in the operation of two department stores in Kunming, the
PRC.

Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the operation of a department store in Anshan, the PRC.

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. principally engages in the operation
of a department store in Nanchang, the PRC.

Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Mianyang, the PRC.

Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of three department stores in Nanning, the PRC.

Tianjin Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of a department store in Tianjin, the PRC.

Lung Shing International Investment & Development Company
Limited and its subsidiary principally engage in property investment
and holding in Anshan, the PRC.

Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of a department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

Shantou Parkson Store Co., Ltd. principally engages in the operation
of a department store in Shantou, the PRC.

Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of a department store in Shantou, the PRC.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 9.3% (2012: 11.4%).

14.

113

YAy

KEE (&)

BENRENR (B)

(d)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

()

(0)

LEMERAEFRAERAREE
PR BlE AR o & B IR AR o

EEHRRAERARRENE QA
ITERNTERALERMRBERE °

ELREARBYHIOERAR]
TERPEELEE-RBERE -

TRBETURAEERAAE
ERTEEELE—KBEE °

mMEERARESARAREIR
R BEREEE—KBERE °

MERBHERBRARARER
R EEELE=KAEE °

REARPEERERAATIE
R BEREEE—KBEE °

ERBERREERBRAARE
MEBAREENTEELLEY
ERE -

AZRZARAEERARTIE
R EAREE-KBERE °

AXBEREREEARARER
R EAREE—KBERE °

WBEBERBEERARTERH
BULSRREE —RBEE -

EEEREBYESARARRT
EEGKE —RBEE -

BReEEBEMMATYE S REIRE
FREERRSRERIEE  Be
MERADBRENTESEHERS
hFHEMNMREEEL - ReRE
TR EARATITIRE 930w (ZF
— 4 1 11.4%) e
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Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow

projections.

Store revenue:

Gross margins:

Operating expenses:

Discount rates:

the bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market
in the PRC.

gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past two
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market
development.

the bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation, rental
expenses and other operating expenses.
The value assigned to the key assumption
reflects past experience and management's
commitment to maintain the operating
expenses to an acceptable level.

discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of the respective
department store cash-generating units and the consultancy and
management services cash-generating unit, management believes
that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key
assumptions would cause the carrying amounts, including goodwill,
of the relevant units to materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

PSRRI
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RHBARNKRE
Company ARTA
2013 2012
—E—= —Fe—=—=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREEF T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTRG-S 579,041 579,041
Due from subsidiaries i NG E ] 3,489,172 2,969,013
Due to subsidiaries FETB B A R FkTE (878,720) (619,401)
3,189,493 2,928,653

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013

are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/
registration and

business

MR,

AL AR i B

Paid-up
capital

BrRRE

JRE W % FE A B BB A B Y SR AR AR K
- 2B REREENY -

R-EBE—=F+-"A=+—H AR
L ENGIEI N

Percentage of

equity attributable

to the Company
AAREMN

REFDL

Direct Indirect

HE CF:3

Principal activities

TREHR

Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$0.5 100 - Investment holding
BEAEARAR HEEAHS 0.57T REER
Parkson Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore $$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
MR MBRRERRAA K 10,000,000 REE
KT
Rosenblum Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore S$2 - 100 Investment holding
MK EAREBRAA K 2 IR T REZER
Exonbury Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
ERABRENARAR BB 28T REEKR
Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd. Singapore S$100 = 100 Investment holding
MRS W EEHEER AR I 100%7 S 7T REEKR
Step Summit Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
EERARAT 5 BT REER
Hong Kong Fen Chai Investment Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited 30 BT RE®

BEERBREEARAA
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15.  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RHBARKNKRE (8)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ to the Company
registration and RNRER
business Paid-up BREBE 2L
3T A capital Direct  Indirect  Principal activities
A R AR it B BERAK BE BiE TEEK
Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment The PRC US$500,000 - 100 Provision of
Consultant Co., Ltd. * H 500,000% 7T consultancy and
LEREBREZAERAT management
services
RUFAR
B R
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza The PRC US$12,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. ** H 12,000,000 7T department stores
EENEEBRESEERAR REEEE
Shanghai Honggiao Parkson The PRC RMB 16,800,000 - 100 Operation of
Development Co., Ltd. * H AR department stores
EBURAEREARAR 16,800,0007C KEREE
Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 60  Operation of
Co., Ltd. *** H AR department stores
B -G ARESERAH 80,000,0007T KEREE
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB32,500,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. * H AR department stores
ARVERRESERAA 32,500,0007T REREE
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 70 QOperation of
Co., Ltd. *** FE AR department stores
EEERBRESBRAR 30,000,0007T REFEE
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. *** H AR department stores
L ERERESERAR 30,000,0007T REHEE
Sichuan Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Development Co., Ltd. * H AR department stores
I HE R ERRERAF 30,000,0007C REREE
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15.

Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza Co., Ltd. *
EEEREERGARAR

Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping
Centre Co., Ltd. **
BRUWRERRBYDOERAF

Guizhou Shengi Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. ***

BEMEEAEERAERDA

Parkson Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. *

THMBERREARAR

Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. *

eSS YN

Global Heights Investment Limited
FRREERAT

Asia Victory International Limited

ZEEBRARAR

Shunhe International Investment
Limited
BRI E AR A A

Kunming Yun Shun He Retail
Development Co., Ltd. *

EREIBNAXERARAR

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

business Paid-up
FMEEL, capital
ST R AR 1 2 BERA
The PRC RMB8,000,000
B AR
8,000,0007C

The PRC RMB10,000,000
H ARE
10,000,0007C

The PRC RMB17,000,000
B AR
17,000,0007C

The PRC US$30,000,000
H 30,000,000 7T
The PRC US$16,680,000
i 16,680,000 7T
British Virgin Islands US$1
RBREZHE (E
British Virgin Islands US$50,000
RBRZHE 50,0003 7T
Hong Kong HK$10,000
B8 10,0007 7T
The PRC RMB30,000,000
H NG
30,000,0007C

RHBARNRE (48)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
RAREM
REEDL

Direct Indirect

HE R

= 100

= 100

- 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

FREH

Operation of
department stores

KERERE

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Operation of

department stores
KEBEE

Investment holding

AR

Operation of
department stores

KeRsE

Investment holding

KA

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

Operation of
department stores

KERERE



15.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Creation (Hong Kong) Investment &
Development Limited

B (BR) REZRRARRA

Creation International Investment &
Development Limited

BIEEREERRAERRA

Golden Village Group Limited
EREEERAT

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *
IRARPILEBEERRAR

Lung Shing International
Investment & Development Co., Ltd.

BEERKERRARAR

Anshan Lung Shing Property Services
Limited *
BILERMERBEER LA

Xi'an Chang'an Parkson Store
Co., Ltd. ™
AZRZBEAEEARAR

Xi'an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. ****
AXBRAEAEARAR

Shanghai Xinzhuang Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. *
PEERAREEERARAA
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Place of
incorporation/

registration and

business Paid-up
FMEEL, capital
S R A e i B BERA
Hong Kong HK$10,000
N 10,0007 7T
British Virgin Islands US$50,000
KBRIHS 50,0005 7T
British Virgin Islands US$50,000
RBREIHS 50,0005 7T
The PRC RMB8,500,000
alE] AR

8,500,0007C
British Virgin Islands US$50,000
RBREZHE 50,0005 7T
The PRC US$1,050,000
s 1,050,000 7T
The PRC RMB10,000,000
B AR

10,000,0007C
The PRC RMB15,000,000
i AR

15,000,0007T
The PRC RMB20,000,000
I AR

20,000,0007C

15.

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

RHBARNRE (48)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
RAREM
REEDL

Direct Indirect

HE R

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

FREH

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

AR

Operation of
department stores

KEREE

Investment holding

REER

Property management

MEER

Operation of
department stores

KeBaBE

Operation of
department stores

KERERE

Operation of
department stores

KERERE
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15.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15

Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial
Co., Ltd. *
HERHBRREERAA

Tianjin Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. *
REARAEERARAT

Changshu Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
FARRBMRERERAT

Zunyi Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
BENMNEZARARERERAT

Lanzhou Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *
LI ERGE LN

Shijiazhuang Parkson Retail
Co., Ltd.™**
ARERHBEEEFRAR

Beijing Huadesheng Property
Management Co., Ltd. ***

R EBNE ERERAT

Capital Park Development Limited

Capital Park (HK) Investment &
Development Limited

9 (BE) REZRBRAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

business Paid-up
AR, capital
SR A% i B BERAR
The PRC RMB27,967,415
B AR

27,967,4157C
The PRC RMB 10,000,000
B AR

10,000,0007T
The PRC RMB 15,000,000
B AR

15,000,0007T
The PRC RMB12,500,000
H B AR

12,500,0007C
The PRC RMB20,000,000
B AR

20,000,0007C
The PRC RMB 15,000,000
B AR

15,000,0007C
The PRC RMB400,000,000
ol= AR

400,000,0007T
British Virgin Islands Uss$2
RBREZHE 2ETT
Hong Kong HK$1
5% V8T

RHBARNRE (48)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ARAREN
REFIL

Direct  Indirect

HE CF:3

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

FREHK

Operation of
department stores

ey

Operation of
department stores
KEREE

Operation of
department stores
KEREE

Operation of
department stores
KERBE

Operation of
department stores
KeBEE

Operation of
department stores

AN
Property management
MEEE
Investment holding
REZK

Investment holding

REER



15.

Malverest Property International
Limited

Malverest (Hong Kong) Limited

5 (BE) ARAH

Oroleon International Limited

Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited

Releoment International Limited

Releoment (Hong Kong) Limited

Leonemas International Limited

Leonemas (Hong Kong) Limited

Duo Success Investments Limited

Huge Return Investment Limited

MULZRERRRAF

Hanmen Holdings Limited
HEEERRLA

Favor Move International Limited

HERRARRA
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RHBEARNRE (8)
Percentage of

Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ to the Company
registration and RNRER
business Paid-up BREBE 2L
3T A capital Direct  Indirect  Principal activities
1R A ot B BERAE E# ME FEEK
British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
HBRUES YE REER
Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bt BT REEKR
British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEETEHS 2ETT REER
Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
s 187 REER
British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
HERAHS 2ETT REER
Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bt T REEKR
British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
EBELRS 2ETT REEKR
Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
s BT REER
British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HBRUES 17T REER
Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
303 1T REEKR
Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bt BT REEKR
British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
EBRARS E REEKR
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15.

Jet East Investments Limited

EREBAR AT

Victory Hope Limited
HEBEERAF

Shaoxing Shishang Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. ****

RRBNERHEERARLT

Shantou Parkson Commercial
Co., Ltd.*
WEREEEARAR

Great Dignity Development Limited
AEERBERAF

Bond Glory Limited
KEARAR

Choice Link Limited
HEXEB A

Kunshan Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
B HARBEARAR

Zigong Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. ™**
BERREEARAR

Changzhou Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd. ™
FNERAERERERAR

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15

Place of
incorporation/

registration and

business Paid-up
EMAYL, capital
a1 A 3t B BERAE
British Virgin Islands Us$1
HERAHS 1%7T
Hong Kong HK$1
30 1T
The PRC RMB20,000,000
i AR
20,000,0007T

The PRC RMB8,000,000
] AR
8,000,0007T

Hong Kong HK$2
BB 28T
British Virgin Islands US$1
HERIHS 17T
British Virgin Islands US$1
HBRIES 1%7T
The PRC RMB40,000,000
I AR
40,000,0007T

The PRC RMB 10,000,000
i AR
10,000,0007C

The PRC RMB25,000,000
FE AR
25,000,0007T

RHBARNRE (48)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ARAREMN
REFIL

Direct  Indirect

HE CF:3

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

IREHK

Investment holding

REE

Investment holding

RERK

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Investment holding

AR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RERK

Operation of
department stores

REREE

Operation of
department stores

KEREE

Operation of

department stores
KeBEE
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RHBARNKRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/

registration and
business
R,
ek

Paid-up
capital

BRRE

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ARAREMN
REFIL

Direct  Indirect

HE CF:3

Principal activities

IREHK

Changzhou Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100  Operation of
Development Co., Ltd. *** H AR department stores
BN R ARAEERERAT 25,000,0007T KEREE
Zhangjiakou Parkson Shopping Mall The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. ** H AR department stores
REABRBNESER AR 30,000,0007C KERTE
Liupanshui Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. “**  The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100 Operation of
BEMNABKBEREERRARAR HE AR department stores
15,000,0007T KEBEE
Jinan Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. * The PRC US$5,000,000 - 100 Operation of
EHAEEEARAR FE 5,000,000 7T department stores
KEBEE
Tianjin Parkson Shopping Mall The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. I AR department stores
AEBREERSERAA 500,000,0007T and property
management
KEREEM
MEERE
Shanxi Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd. * F Bl AR department stores
IR BRBERRERAA 50,000,0007C KEBREE
Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co., Ltd. ***# The PRC RMB233,340,000 - 95.91  Operation of
EEE—BBRAERRH FE AR department stores
233,340,0007T KEBEE
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of
Co., Ltd. ***# H ARE department stores
B BEENESERAR 40,000,0007T KERBE
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15.  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RHBARNKRE (&)
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ to the Company
registration and ¥ NG 3
business Paid-up RERSL
3T A capital Direct  Indirect  Principal activities
o R AR 4t B BRERAE B BE FEER
Dalian Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100  Operation of
Co., Ltd. ***# P AR department stores
RERHAEEFERBRAA 40,000,0007T KEBEE
Sea Coral Limited * Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BB 17T RE®
Wide Crest Limited * British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HERUHS 17T REZR
Wide Field International Limited * Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
BB 2B REER
Parkson Venture Pte Ltd. # Singapore $$14,800,000 - 100 Investment holding
K 14,800,000 REZER
F I T
Victor Crest Limited * British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERAHS 17T REERK
Panzhihua Parkson Retail The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100  Operation of
Development Co., Ltd. **** FE AR department stores
ERIEARAEERAR 20,000,0007T RERBE
* registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC law * ERETFBREZEELAINEEE
it
> registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise *x DRERBRARELDARINEE
under the PRC law L
e registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under bl DIREREREARELDARINEE
the PRC law mEPE
®%x registered as a limited liability company under the PRC law = BREBEFBREEREREAAREMR
NG
# In 2013, the Group acquired these companies from a subsidiary # RZT—=F  RNEBHPHB—R
of PHB and fellow subsidiary of the Group. Further details of this W AT RAEBRNREZMBA
acquisition are included in note 37 to the financial statements. R ZE AR - AHNENE

—HRHEEIIN I WK FEI7 ©
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16. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. R—REELENRE
Group NEH
2013 2012
—=2—= —E——4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AREFT
(Restated)
(g=75)
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 38,319 35,504
Particular of the Group's joint venture is as follows: RNREFBTFTELSZDLENT

Percentage of

ownership
interest
Place of attributable
registration to the Group
Paid-up capital and business REEBEMES  Principal activities
BEEX o 4t 26 BREBDLE FEEK
Xinjiang Youhao Parkson RMB20,000,000 The PRC 51  Operation of
Development Co., Ltd. ARHE H department stores
("Xinjiang Parkson") 20,000,0007T KEREE
MBI EREREER
BRAR]
Although the Group has ownership of more than half of the voting EEAREBHE BIETEAGELSE
power of the subject entity, the joint venture agreement establishes = (BEALYEIEE LR B
joint control over the subject entity. The joint venture agreement TS o AR EROY MRS — A S
ensures that no single venturer is in a position to control the FEATES S B ¥ 7T H) o

activity of the entity unilaterally.

Xinjiang Parkson is considered as a material joint venture of the FERE RN AR RER —(EE
Group, and is accounted for using the equity method. BHALNE  ARSFETEHE

I8 e
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16.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 16. R—REELENRE (B)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Xinjiang Parkson:

TRBRIER FEEOMEER

2013 2012
—B-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEY 26,176 48,192
Other current assets HinEHEE 224,598 212,508
Current assets mENVEE 250,774 260,700
Non-current assets EREBEE 17,789 16,221
Financial liabilities, excluding trade THAaE BHKEM
and other payables e EN & BRI (10,409) (8,057)
Other current liabilities HEMmeaE (181,118) (197,111)
Current liabilities RBEE (191,527) (205,168)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding ERBEHBEE BHN
trade and other payables and provisions Ho b i 5 R38N B ERR ON (1,900) (2,137)
Non-current liabilities FERBBRE (1,900) (2,137)
Net assets BEFE 75,136 69,616
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REEREEPER
in the joint venture: T ¥R
Proportion of the Group's ownership REEFTAREL 7 51% 51%
Group's share of net assets of the joint venture AEBEEHAEESDEFTEE 38,319 35,504
Revenue Wz 204,822 209,016
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories iREEEYNTFEE S (54,867) (54,183)
Depreciation and amortisation e N (3.412) (3.416)
Operating expenses EERX (74,711) (67,654)
Finance income & WA 10,035 11,924
Tax A (11,705) (4,51)
Profit and total comprehensive income FAMBREZEBRALR
for the year 70,162 91,176
Share of profit of a joint venture JE(h—fE& & EAE 35,783 46,500
Dividends received BB 32,968 38,568
Share of tax attributable to a joint venture Eih—EaE P ERE (5,970) (2,300)
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—HEBEQATNRE
Group NEH

2013 2012
—E—= —Fe—=—=

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE ARBTET

Share of net assets EIEEEFE 2,038 2,042
The Group has a 35% equity in Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties REBR EENEESMYEERAR
Management Co., Ltd., which engages in providing property NEEEICRERE - Z AN ERM
management and real estate consulting services. YRS IE N EHE SRR RS o
Particular of the associate is as follows: Nl 0= = (I N

Percentage
Place of of ownership
registration interest
and business attributable
MR, to the Group
Paid-up capital R REMMAELE  Principal activities
BERAE R B REBSLE FEXK
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion US$165,000 The PRC 35  Property
Properties Management 165000%7C management
Co., Ltd. and real estate
NS MYEER consulting services
BRAR MEEEREHE
o A AR 7%
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd. is EENESHYESIEAR A TIRIA
considered a material associate of the Group and is accounted for BEAREE —REEHLENF - E

using the equity method. HEETEEERE o
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17.  INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. R—BBEQXANRE (B)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRBM EBNEEMMESIEARE
of Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.: NEBEFEER -

2013 2012

—3 —

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Current assets BB E 8,493 8,289
Non-current assets EREEE 226 267
Current liabilities RBEE (2.895) (2,721)
Net assets BEFE 5,824 5,835
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REEREE QTR

in the associate: AR
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE B P B L1 35% 350
Group's share of net assets of the associate, ~ AEEE(REEFE -

excluding goodwill PEERRIN 2,038 2,042
Revenues Wzs 26,535 26,754
Profit and total comprehensive income FAMBREZEBRALRE

for the year 392 41
Share of profit of an associate JEfh — B & N B R 137 144
Dividends received B UR% B 141 =

Share of tax attributable to an associate FE{h —EE & AR IR (52) (69)
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OTHER ASSETS 18. HtEE
Group NEH
2013 2012
—E—= —Fe—=—=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
Lease prepayments B HEE (i) 384,933 10,845
Deposit for equity acquisition REREUR gL & (ii) - 42,000
384,933 52,845
NOTES: MieE -
(i) This item represented the long term portion of lease prepayments. (i) ZIBEEENEESHNEHED -

(i) On 27 August 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a subsidiary of PHB and fellow subsidiary of the
Group as detailed in note 37. As at 31 December 2012, a deposit
for the acquisitions amounting to RMB42 million was paid. The
acquisition was completed in 2013.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
Group and Company

Listed equity investments, at fair value

EHRERE

1%

(ii) RZE——FNA=-+tH ' &
£ B EPHBH — R B R A & —
MRZMBRARRE] —HEE W
FOABEHRM A R —
—F+=—A=+t—8  BEXfK
B4 AR ¥42,000,0007C ° UeiE
BRER-T—ZF5%K -

AHHERE
AEBRE AT

2013
RMBGOO RMB'000

AR®T R AREET T

BE - 32,098

In 2013, the net gain in respect of the Group's available-for-sale
investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to RMB2,415,000 (2012: RMB7,413,000).

The above investments consist of investments in listed equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale financial
assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate. Such
investments were sold in 2013.

R-ZT—=F  AEEFAHEME2E
WARAHEEREBREAAR
#2,4150007C (ZE—ZF : AR¥E
7,413,0007T) °

AR R AR ES A
BN ETRERARE  LEEEE
HAREEE - AERANR-B—=
C
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20. INVESTMENTS IN PRINCIPAL GUARANTEED DEPOSITS
Group

REEFRERE

T EHE

2013
—g-=

RMB'000

ARBTR

2012
T4
RMB'000
ARETT

(Restated)
(& &E7))

Investments in principal guaranteed deposits  TER Bl 8 8R 1T 1R A

in licensed banks in the PRC (Note)
(F3E)

FHRIE - IREHERAN

3,635,303 3,307,373

NOTE:

These investments in principal guaranteed deposits have terms of less
than one year and have expected annual rates of return of up to 4.74%.
Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, the investments in principal
guaranteed deposits are capital guaranteed upon the maturity date.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's investments in principal guaranteed
deposits with a carrying amount of RMB146.6 million (2012: nil) were
pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank loans as detailed in note 32.

B &E -
ZERAGRRENBHR IV —F &
HEFEORREE H474% ° RIFHEEA
HRBA - REAGFRIEENA SR E H
HEERE -

R-—E—=F+-_A=+—8 ' &&
ENRAGFTREREEADEAARE
146,600,000 (Z T ——%F : &) AEE
BT ERITEE - FBRME32-
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 21. EEBBEEERERE
Group rEE

Balance at
Balance at Recognised 31 December
1 January in the 2013
2013 consolidated i

i statement of Z—ZF—=
—E-= profit or loss +=A

—HA—H  Acquisition EREE =+-—-H

M &5 ER WEETE EnRER M &R

Notes RMB*000 RMB*000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AR¥Tx AR®TR AR¥Tx AR%®TxR

(Restated)
(I&E5))
Deferred tax assets: BERBEE
Depreciation e 3,263 - (78) 3,185
Accrued other expenses HibEER 4,250 - 6,011 10,261
Accrued rental expenses R 49,029 7,878 46,571 103,478
Accrued coupon provision JE:TEREEE 15,537 - 4,426 19,963
Tax losses FiIEEE (i) 65,858 - (17.290) 48,568
137,937 7,878 39,640 185,455
Deferred tax liabilities: EXEHBEEE
Depreciation e (22,252) - 2,169 (20,083)
Fair value adjustments WEEM B AR AT
arising from acquisition EENARER
of subsidiaries R (119,750) (44,057) 2,050 (161,757)
Asset revaluation BESMN (84,900) - - (84,900)
Withholding taxes BmHE (ii) (16,500) - (750) (17,250)
(243,402) (44,057) 3,469 (283,990)

(105,465) (36,179) 43,109 (98,535)
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 21. EEBBEBEEREE (B)
AEH (F)

Group (continued)

Balance at
Balance at Recognised 31 December
1 January in the 2012
2012 consolidated i
»n statement of —TE—CfF
—E—C—F profit or loss +-A
—HA—H BEREE = =
FOFEERS B RER ) iR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
By &E ARETT ARBT T ARETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(F2E75) (f&E75) (F2E75)
Deferred tax assets: ELERIBEE
Depreciation e 3,418 (155) 3,263
Accrued other expenses HibEsARE = 4,250 4,250
Accrued rental expenses EEtR e 26,193 22,836 49,029
Accrued coupon provision BB E A RE 15,328 209 15,537
Tax losses HIEEE (i) 26,408 39,450 65,858
71,347 66,590 137,937
Deferred tax liabilities: BIEHBEAE :

Depreciation e (24,064) 1812 (22,252)

Fair value adjustments W B A R AT

arising from acquisition EENAREE

of subsidiaries A (121,240) 1,490 (119,750)
Asset revaluation BEHEM (84,900) = (84,900)
Withholding taxes BMHE (ii) - (16,500) (16,500)
(230,204) (13,198) (243,402)

(158,857) 58897 (105,465)
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 21. EBEBEEEREE (B)
Group (continued) AE® (B)
NOTES: MisE
(i) The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax (i) HRAEBERAER_ZE—=F1
losses arising from overseas subsidiaries of RMB851,000 (2012: ZRA=+—HBATKRAIEESAA
RMB7,014,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against RIS IEE B EREFE
future taxable profits, or tax losses from the PRC subsidiaries of WA AR RIEBINEREERNMTLIA
RMB263,869,000 (2012: RMB79,456,000) that will expire within one B8 A R#851,000c (ZF — =
to five years, as it was not considered probable at 31 December £ ARM7,014,0007T) HERIELE
2013 that taxable profits would be available against which such MEEEARREFBEKME AT
tax losses can be utilised. EEBR—ERFAIHNTIE
&8 A R #263,869,0007T (ZZ —
ZF : AR¥79,456,0007T) TR
RIERIBEE ©
(i) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding (i) BIBEFBEPCEMERE - RAF
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from AIHb K 37 B SN 1% E 1 [ JNED
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The ’E BT KRB S AN008) TR
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to - ZREB_EZN\F—H
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of —HRAEY  BARZZZTLF
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and +ZA=+—BIZRBREENRA
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is liable for F o w5 R B A Hh B AN 3% B A
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries FTBrRERRIT ARG E - Al
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 Al A R A0 BT R - A
January 2008. SE B E R BN K
EMBRARAIR_TEZTNF—A—
A #E 2 A B & A P9 R B IR B8
RITEHR o
INVENTORIES 22. RE&
Group REE
2013 2012
—E—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARET T
(Restated)
(5&E5)
Merchandise, at cost P IRAASET 316,365 294,872
Consumables, at cost EFEM - RRRAE 25,319 11,193
341,684 306,065
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23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables mainly arise from purchases by customer with
credit card payments. The Group normally allows a credit period of
not more than 30 days from the end of each financial year of its
credit card receivables. A provision for doubtful debts is made when
it is considered that the trade receivables may not be recoverable.
The Group's trade receivables relate to a number of diversified
customers and there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
The trade receivables are interest-free.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

23.

W E 5 RIE
AEE—MEEEYRERRHER
TR F AR E T BIBEI0A WRER
B o A BR AL E 5 EWRGRIET
RemsRgm - B SIREREREE - A
SEEKESFERBE T TRAER
EAfAERRRTESEERY
FEERKR - ZERUFBEARER
I8 o

RBER - AR B REEY
FEY B 5 IAM R DM T -

Group AEHE
2013 2012
—E—=£F —Fe—=—=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T AREBTFT
(Restated)
(g=75)
Within 3 months =@EAA 93,375 147,004
3 to 12 months =Z+=fE@A 149 358
Over 1 year —F LA E 17 =
93,541 147,362

Included in the balance as at 31 December 2013 are trade
receivables from a joint venture of RMB86,000 (2012: RMB34,000)
and from fellow subsidiaries of nil (2012: RMB3,012,000) which are
attributable to the consultancy fee income of the Group as disclosed
in note 40(a)(ii). These balances are unsecured and interest-free.

RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—8 " &#
BRERASEZHDERAENLDBIK
BHEEHERBRRZMMEBARMNE
WE 55k A RE86,000T (ZF—
—F: AR¥340007T) K AREOT
—ZT——F: AR¥30120007T) -
HBERKIE40Q)(INVHE - ZSEHA
EIIR R R B o
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23. BWEZFE (&)
KA B RE R EUE 5 ZERE DI

be impaired is as follows: N

Group AEE
2013 2012

—EF—=

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R AR¥TTT
(Restated)
(E5))
Neither past due nor impaired I A B HA RO E 93,375 147,004
Over 3 months past due EEI={E A A £ 166 358
93,541 147,362

Receivables that were past due but not impaired mainly related to
receivables from fellow subsidiaries and corporate customers which
have a long business relationship with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the individual
debtors and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances.

EBHMERREN U FIAE B AR
BREMBARREASEEERY
EBERNABEPHEKFIA - R
BRERR  EFRA - ARERE
BAMEERRLBERNE L - &k
AR AR EIRE - BORMEREAE
HRERE  AREYEFEZEE
SREEMEAR - TEEMNREER
H I ©
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, FANFNE - BT - H BRI
Group NEH
2013 2012
—B-—=F —E—_F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
(Restated)
(& 5&E75))
Current BE
Deposits for purchase of land and BE L NEFTES
buildings (Note) (BR3E) 573,061 -
Lease prepayments SEENE K 312,861 403,722
Utilities and rental deposits IKEBNESIES 142,746 117,999
Advances to suppliers A it R P B K 79,744 79,021
Other prepayments H M B FRI8 36,521 38,250
Prepaid tax BNEE 35,377 43817
Interest receivables FEUWFI B 22,702 30,208
Other deposits Hiwiz s - 100,000
Other receivables E b fE U 7178 70,100 64,644
1,273,112 877,661
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts T REREEAE (351) (367)
1,272,761 877,294
Non-current JERNES
Prepayment for purchase of land and BE L REFFEMNR
buildings - 620,048
NOTE: B =E
The balance as at 31 December 2013 represented deposits for the purchase RZEBE—Z=ZF+_A=+—H " &
of land use right and construction of a new shopping mall. According to AREE T ERAERESTENERES
the Letter of Intention, the total consideration is RMB1.57 billion, and a ZEE BEERAEZ REBBAAR
sales and purchase agreement will be signed by the Group and the counter B15. 71870 - AEBKEE T BNLIES

party upon the completion of several milestone assignments. ZRTTR 2B ETEHEIRE
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS 223

RERRELEYREHRER

Group AL HE

2013 2012
—E—= bt =
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
(Restated)
(5E7))
Cash and bank balances B4 NIRTT4AS 966,408 1,014,148
Short-term deposits EERTER 212,277 635,694
1,178,685 1,649,842

Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original 3 : BEAKRBEIHE

maturity of more than three months BiE=1E A &

when acquired IR 1R HATE K (143,167) (225,365)
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EEBY 1,035,518 1,424,477

The cash and bank balances and short-term deposits of the Group

RZE—=FE+-A=+—H8  &&

denominated in Renminbi amounted to RMB1,115,463,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: RMB1,446,764,000), which is not freely
convertible in the international market. The remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC government.

ErIRE RIRTTEHRUAREETRA
R #1,115463,0000 (—Z & — — & :
A R #1446,764,0007T) A A R ¥ 5t
B MARBTREREEMS EEH
Hia o iBESE LA BRAS P RELT
BRI INEE BIFTHRR o

Company AT

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE 54,293 133,662
Short-term deposits EEER - 52,479
54,293 186,141

Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original 3 : BEAKRAEZIHH

maturity of more than three months A =18 A &Y

when acquired IR 1 E HATE K (28.389) (253)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 25,904 185,888

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and twelve months, depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short-term deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

FRIRTTHR SR E B RITFRAM X
EEMTESRRMA L - AEER
SRR BEL—BE+ AN
R - W BIRAE B A R R
HBAE - REBHRITERTALEE
= RV ERTT BT BA 0 SR R AT 8%
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26. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

26.

FEAY & 5 KR

RN B ZHRENRE DM

Group AEE
2013 2012
—_=g—= —E——F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(& &E75))
Within 3 months =EARN 1,828,694 1,769,048
3 to 12 months =Z+=fAAR 96,023 102,502
Over 1 year —F Pk 33,150 25,078
1,957,867 1,896,628
27. CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27. BFRE - - HtESREBERES
ACCRUALS EAH
Group rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F ==&
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFTT
(Restated)
(#LE7))
Customers' deposits BEE® 1,209,739 1,232,714
Rental payables RS 163,324 116,396
Other tax payables H MR THIR 129,646 155,472
Deposits from suppliers HrEmze 113,526 89,547
Provision for coupon liabilities (Note) BEEAERE (M) 88,590 67,677
Construction fee payables JETEEE 65,417 43,752
Accrued salaries and bonuses et E & R IEAL 30,940 20,288
Accrued interest FE R B 22,588 13,380
Other payables and accruals H At T IR R FEET IR B 204,126 155,687
2,027,896 1,894,913
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CUSTOMERS' DEPOSITS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

NOTE:
A reconciliation of the provision for coupon liabilities is as follows:

27.

PSSR AL

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

BEFEe HttESRERES
HE (&)

FE -

EEHFBEREBENYERNT !

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARKETTT

(Restated)

(=35)

At 1 January R—A—H 67,677 67,462
Arising during the year FNESE 118,868 143,075
Revenue recognised on utilised points EBAES EROHA (68,499) (113,128)
Revenue recognised on expired points B2 BAE S R A (29.,456) (29,732)
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—8 88,590 67,677

The provision for coupon liabilities is estimated based on the amount of
bonus points outstanding as at the end of the reporting period that are
expected to be redeemed before expiry. The outstanding bonus points are
redeemable in the next two financial years from the end of the reporting
period.

LONG TERM PAYABLES

The long term payables represented the long term portion of
accrued rental expenses.

TERM LOAN FACILITIES
Group and Company

28.

29.

BEFBERERER HREHRE
HIR B B AT B 2 80 R (2 A 0 &R
it REMBES AINBEHRENT
M E RS R E B A

REENRE
REEMFRERAESRATHRE

85 -

EHERRE

AEMRALT
2013

—E—=

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Current BE
Term loan facilities - Facility A Loan THEFR@ME - BEERA - 1,558,827
Term loan facilities - Facility B and C Loans EHEFRME — BiE BB

XC - 932,334

- 2,491,161
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On 10 November 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with
a number of overseas banks to borrow a loan in order to: 1) provide
funding for its business expansion and other general corporate
needs, and 2) redeem the senior guaranteed notes due November
2011 in full. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Company drew
down the loan at a principal of US$250,000,000 (the "Facility A
Loan") in two batches of US$70,000,000 and US$180,000,000 on
22 November 2010 and 23 December 2010, respectively. The loan
bore interest at a floating LIBOR (6 months) plus 2.15% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears on 10 May and 10 November of
each year, beginning on 10 May 2011. The principal of the term loan
was repayable on 12 November 2013.

In order to hedge the Group's exposure to the risks arising from
the variability of interest rates and fluctuation of foreign exchange
rates, the Company entered into interest rate swap and cross
currency swap contracts (note 30) on the respective draw-down
dates. The purpose of the swap arrangements was to provide the
Group with a RMB equivalent fixed rate loan of RMB1,665,268,000
and a fixed interest rate of 1.66% per annum.

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into an amendment
and restatement agreement with certain overseas banks to upsize
the syndicated loan from the original sum of US$250,000,000
to US$400,000,000 in order to fund its growth strategy through
acquisition of certain department stores in the PRC. Pursuant to
the above loan agreement, the Company was able to draw down
a loan principal of US$150,000,000 through JP Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch in two batches of US$100,000,000
(the "Facility B Loan") and HK$390,000,000 (the “Facility C Loan"
equivalent to US$50,000,000) on 29 November 2011, respectively.
The loan bore interest at a floating rate, which was a combination
of LIBOR/HIBOR (6 months), and a margin at 2.15% per year. The
entire US$350,000,000 and HK$390,000,000 of syndicated loan was
due for full repayment on 12 November 2013.

RZE—ZF+—F+H AQRH
AT EINRITRI S g - AR SR
TEEER B1) ARAEEHE
REAM—REEFTRKIEERE S R2)
FHERR - ——F+— AH8H
BEEREE - BREEXBZE AR
A E SR FREUAS & 88250,000,0003E
T(RMEEFAl "MK =T —
EFF+—AF+_HEZE—ZF
+= A=+ = 8% 532 E170,000,000
3 7T %180,000,000% 7T) ° E X A B
HIRTTRZEFE (NEAR) INEF
2IERFBF KB - FIEBEBRC
T-——FRA+HEREENRAT
Ak+—A+ASEFIN—K-TE
HEFNASERN -_T—=F+—F4
+-HEEZ-

A RAREER B FIE R EKFEH
B - NARIFFREE £ BHET
UHERBHR R X EBIE AL (Y
F30) c ZERBLHMBE NI AR
EEEREERETEFFEAE166ERNT L
A RSB 8 30 A R #81,665,268,000
=5

RZE—F+—H=Z+NB &K
NAIEETFHINRITEINIBEIE
Mz BSEBEERNBEERRE
#9250,000,0003E 7T 3 il 2 400,000,000
X ABAREBETHEBEEE
MERXBREEES BELAE
R AARBBERERKRE
RITEBDITHRERPRINEFRA
% ¥8150,000,000E€ 7t * M= T ——
F+—AZ-t+hLHWILD RIRE
100,000,000 7T ([Bt & B #%BJ) &k
390,000,0007% 7T ([t & B #C] 49
50,000,000%7T) © BEF AL & fm 2R
TRIERE BAERITEAERE (X
& A) hnFEFM =212 8 F E | R &t
B 23R B B 5X350,000,000% 7T &
390,000,000 TAR =T —=F +—
B+_—_B25EEE -
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TERM LOAN FACILITIES (continued) 29. THIER®E (8)

Simultaneously, the Company entered into interest rate swap R REHPDRIREEEEHRBR
contracts (note 30) to hedge the risks arising from the variability MEBERCHRFHHER - &N A
of interest rate for Facility B loan and Facility C loan, respectively. A1 F & 42 BR i 5 (Bt 5E30) o %%
The purpose of the swap contract was to provide the Group with HLHENENDAASEREREE
a US$100,000,000 fixed rate loan of 2.98% per annum and a & F & A&298E # B 100,000,000
HK$390,000,000 fixed rate loan of 2.91% per annum, respectively. ELNBEEFMNEE2NENE X

390,000,000/ JT, °

With the net proceeds of the issue of the Bonds as mentioned in M3 AT - REEBITESHMAE
note 31, the Group early repaid Facility A, B and C Loans in full in HIBFRE  AEEERE-_Z—=
June 2013. NABHBENBESRA BRC
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. fTE€mT A

Cash flow hedges are used to mitigate the Group's exposure to REREH R TAERERERAZ
changes in cash flows attributable to interest rate fluctuations B = gE MR NAERZEE
associated with interest and principal payments on the Group's HEFEE (Ms9) B@HE K&K
variable rate interest-bearing term loan facilities (note 29). eRBMERNRSRELEER
All derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value on FIBETTESRMIT AR AR BEELE
the consolidated statement of financial position. Effective changes BHERARAR - WEBREREY
in the fair values of these cash flow hedging instruments are HFTAARBENEREESH NGRS
recognised in the hedging reserve in the consolidated statement of TEAR S 2% R TSR A S Rt 8 S P TEAN
financial position and are then reclassified from equity to profit or $HIEBReREXEN B HREHB
loss in the same period that the forecasted cash flows of the hedged BEEEFHEERER - TFE&
items impact the profit. The ineffective portions of changes in fair HAHEAREZNITETAAREE
value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are HNEEREBHHONGEBRRPE
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. R o

An analysis of the Group's derivative financial instruments is AEBTESBRITANS IR
presented below: N

AEERADQTE
2013 2012
—EBE—=£

Group and Company

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE  AR®BTET

Current BVE
Interest rate swaps F| &4 B

hedging instruments for term loan facilites ~ THIER@MELHT T A - (11,873)
Cross currency swaps R X B ¥t B

hedging instruments for term loan facilities EHERMES P TH - (57,625)

- (69,498)
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30.

-

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

In November 2010, the Group entered into a series of cross currency
and interest rate swap contracts with the contracting parties to
convert the Group's US$250,000,000 Facility A Loan (note 29) to an
RMB equivalent fixed rate loan of RMB1,665,268,000 with a fixed
interest rate of 1.66% per annum.

In November 2011, the Group entered into a series of interest
rate swap contracts with the contracting parties to convert
US$100,000,000 Facility B Loan (note 29) to a US$ fixed rate loan
at 2.98% per annum and a HK$390,000,000 Facility C Loan (note 29)
to a HK$ fixed rate loan at 2.91% per annum, respectively.

Concurrently with the early repayment of Facility A, B and C Loans
in full in June 2013, the Group also early terminated all the above
swap contracts with related contracting parties.

BONDS
Group and Company

&5

Bonds

30.

S

fTE€mIT A (8)
RZE—ZF+—H  AEEHEITLD
FEIMN—RZINRX B, R FEE G
49 - LA AN 5 B £ B8 4&250,000,0003%
TR E ERRA (FizF29) B AEEA
R #£1,665,268,0007T FY & B & « H
FEFEE166[E o

RZT——F+— 8 AEEHETY
FEIM—ZRHNFEEERE L) - LA B
1% 7N £ [# 4 %8 5 100,000,0003% 7T B &l
EEHB (M529) 8 5 E T F F X
BLBEMETEEER k&% A
390,000,0007% 7T &) g & B FkC (Fff 3E
29) BRRBETEFMNER291EMNAETT
EEER -

RZZE—=F-A rEEEREE
FAB -CIZE2HEN WA HBK
IEFE LB EABEREEAR
3] 2 B2 Bt ek

&%
FEERADF
2013

—E—=

2012

RMB'000
AR®T

RMB'000
ARETT

3,016,833 =

On 3 May 2013, the Company issued the 4.5% bonds due 2018 (the
"Bonds") with an aggregate principal amount of US$500 million,
which were listed in the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds excluding
direct transaction costs were US$494.3 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,070,295,000)

The Bonds bear a fixed coupon at 4.5% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears on 3 May and 3 November in each year and
commencing on 3 November 2013. The maturity date is 3 May 2018.

RZTE—=FRA=H  K"QAIET
R BBEABETERRBISERZ
T-N\FRHENES ([EFHF]) - I
ERBR ST ET - BREEERIHK
N BT 1S SR8 7 F BERT494,300,0003E 7T
(#Z R AR #3,070,295,0007T ) °

BENETFERB4E - FIEE
H-E—=F1+—AZHENSFN
RAZBR+—BZBEB¥FEXt—
KeEmBBAE-_ZT—NFRAZ=
E| °
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 32. FESBITES
Group and Company AEERALQT
2013 2012
—E—= —Fe—=—=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ETR ARETT
Bank loans RITER
Non-current, repayable in December 2015 RS R-—E—F1E
(HK$150 million) +—-—HEE
(150 &#&TT) 117,965 -
Non-current, repayable in October 2015 R R-E—RE
(US$10 million) +AEE (10BB=T) 60,979 -
178,944 -
The bank loans are secured by the Group's investments in principal REBENURATFRIEE AR 1466
guaranteed deposits amounting to RMB146.6 million, as disclosed BETEARITERIRE - FFIERH
in note 20, and bear floating interest rates at 1% per annum over 20T - ERARBERITRIZERE
LIBOR. MEFEAERFEFIEEE o
33. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 33. BREARERFER
Shares % 17
Number of
ordinary
shares Nominal value
ERREHE H{E
'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T FET ARET T
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each EREE.02 T
B 7,500,000 150,000 156,000
Issued and fully paid: BETERER :
At 1 January 2013 N_E—=
—H—H 2,810,490 56,208 58,354
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=ZA=+—8” 2,790,050 55,800 58,299
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33. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (continued) 33. RAEARERFR (&)
A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to REERARGBEWMTAHR (BB E
the above movements in the Company's issued share capital is as MARFIEBITRAED)) -
follows:

Number
of shares

in issue Issued Treasury
BRITZ capital shares

BRHBE EBRITERE EFR
'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

TR AR®TR AR®BTR

At 1 January 2012 and R-_T——F—HA
1 January 2013 —BAR-E—=F
—H—H 2,810,490 58,354 -
Share options exercised BT I AR (i) 10 - -
Purchase of treasury shares BB (ii) (20,450) = (40,455)
Cancellation of treasury shares EUH/E1ZA% (ii) = (55) 8,132
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-—A=+—8H 2,790,050 58,299 (32,323)
(i) Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share (i) AR Al AT & R AKETEIE
options issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to BITBREF BN B®RE
the financial statements. 534 o
(i) During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given (i) AFE - RE-RRE 2
to the Company, the Company repurchased its own shares A3 1B B A2 PR AR B AN A =1 AR 4D
through the Stock Exchange as follows: #HR T -

No. of ordinary
shares of
HK$0.02 each
of the Company
VYN Aggregate
BR0.02TL2 Price per share considerations paid

Months of repurchase e A5 EERYE SRER ENRERAE
Highest Lowest Equivalent to
BE & HER
HK$ HK$  HK$'000 RMB'000
B #n Bnfr ARETn

For the year ended 31 December #E-T—=%F+_f

2013 =t+—BItEE
June 2013 “T-=FA 300,000 3.43 3.28 1,005 797
July 2013 “Z-=F+A 1,650,000 3.25 2.88 4,978 3,960
August 2013 - 1,500,000 3.20 2.74 4,242 3,375
December 2013 —E-=F+_A 17,000,000 2.96 222 41,004 32,323

20,450,000 51,229 40,455
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(i) (continued)

3,450,000 (2012: nil) repurchased shares with the carrying
amount of RMB8,132,000 were subsequently cancelled
in 2013. This cancellation resulted in the decrease of
issued share capital of RMB55,000, share premium of
RMB 1,480,000 and contributed surplus of RMB6,597,000.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company held a total of
17,000,000 treasury shares, which represented approximately
0.61% of its shares in issue.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Scheme") for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other employees,
consultants, and business associates or advisers of the Group. The
Scheme became effective on 9 November 2005 and is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years up to 8 November 2015, after
which no further share options will be granted but the provisions of
the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company on 9
November 2005. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to substantial shareholders, independent
non-executive directors, or any of their associates (including a
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director or a company
beneficially owned by any substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive director of the Company) in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a general meeting.

PSRRI
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(i) (%)

MR_ZT—=F  KARAAED
BREIE A A R ¥8,132,0007T A9
3,450,000f% (ZF—=F : &)
5 ZERMDBEREE ° It
EHERBERITRATRAR
¥55,0007C * %19 @ B TBE A
R #1,480,0007C * ERABT
& AR #6,597,0007T °

R—DE—=%F+=-H=+
— B AREFAEAEHK
17,000,0008% /& 17 A% + #91h &
NARIE BT 20.61% ©

Anwl&kABERESS (&
2] NERASEXBEKAIELE
BB ERSHELR T ZE MR -
ZATEINABIR2REBEAREN
EX (BRBUFATES) A&
MEMESR « WA EHBMEAL
HEER - ZET BN —TZERF+— A
NBEEXN  BRBATF BEE-T
—hF+—ANBRL  ERETE
BROHEMEARE - BT AERR
HEEAEM T ESIDEETREN K
(95K

B ATAR BT &7 TR B RITERE
xS HEAER (METE) K
ARR-ZFEZTRF+—ANBRERN
H10% ° T Bl B A ERSHBEEL
{71218 A HAR 17 6 RE A HE P 3R 1T Y
RN B NMFHEEARR R ER R
B2 BT B9 1% » EB B 7% IR A
ARIBRRAEBRRARE LHbE - A #
— SR T EAE -

M EEM12E A BREmEERE -
BYEHRTES B ESEHE
AN (BEAETBREN B IENITE
EAXBANZEEEIANRREE
BRABIINTESESHEENA
7)) PR A B AR HE 5 I MY AR 17 4B 2
BB A A B ERI B E B 21T 150.1%
348 (B {E#8385,000,000/8 7T © BIZESE
TIERR R K SHIS AR AL -
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Options granted must be taken up within the time limit specified
in the offer letter. Options may be exercised at any time during
a period commencing on or after the date to be notified by the
board of directors to each grantee provided that the period shall
commence not less than one year and not to exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the relevant option. No consideration is payable
upon acceptance of the option by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but must not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's
share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders' meetings.

On 10 January 2007, a total of 40,944,750 share options (as
adjusted for the effect of subdivision of shares) were granted to
482 eligible employees, including directors and chief executives,
of the Company at nil consideration and with an exercise price of
HK$7.35 per share pursuant to the Scheme.

The 29,778,000 share options (as adjusted for the effect of
subdivision of shares) granted under Lot 1 were exercisable from
24 January 2007 to 23 January 2010 and had no other vesting
conditions. The 11,166,750 share options (as adjusted for the effect
of subdivision of shares) granted under Lot 2 were exercisable from
2 January 2008 to 1 January 2011 and required an employee service
period until 2 January 2008.

On 1 March 2010, a total of 15,821,000 share options under Lot
3 were granted to 544 eligible employees of the Company at nil
consideration and with an exercise price of HK$12.44 per share
under the Scheme. Total share options were vested on 1 March
2010. The expiration date for the share options was three years
from 1 April 2010.

R B AR IR Z TP E 8
[RAZH - BRETEEZTENES
AR AR B Hisk 2 R — E HIR AR
RrTlE - BRI A AR ARG
BERERMEA T TIRN—FE T
BB TF - ARARRBREES
EENEMER

BRENTEERESEE - B1F
R LB ER L A AR R K
DERB PRI E : ()BREZERHHE
IR AR 5 B AR R B X Ay
MU E - R(i) AR R &Y
mE (AREERE)

AR A ABRERAR SN R

REERE -

RZZEZELF—AF+H ' XAFIRE
ZETEIAERE RITEESR7.35%8
TR TR EERNEES (BEE
EREREHITE) $£40,944,75010 B8
B (R IFAMFAE) -

8 — #t &% 1 #929,778,00017 BE PR
(ERHIFEMARE) IR _FTZT £
F—HA-_+WMWBEE-Z—ZTF—f8
—t+=ZHHRTFEEEEMEREIE
o B Z#EI I B11,166,750170 B %
E(EROFAMARE) IR_-ZZ
NE—A-HE-ZE—%—A—H
HRETE - REEENRBFHRES
—EENF—HA_HAIL -

RZE—ZFF=ZA—8 ' ARaRE
ZETEIAEREBRITEEBETR12.44
BILAMAEEEREEREE =H#
TE T $£15,821,00010 BE B2 - FT A A
BREEN - Z—TFE=A—H82%
B BRESSHA=F BT
—ZFMNA—BHRABRER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

On 27 November 2012, a total of 34,171,500 share options were
granted to 642 eligible employees, including directors and a chief
executive, of the Company at nil consideration and with an exercise
price of HK$6.24 per share under the Scheme.

Among the share options granted on 27 November 2012, a total
of 17,085,750 share options granted under Lot 4 were vested on
27 November 2012 and are exercisable from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015. A total of 17,085,750 share options granted under
Lot 5 required an employee service period until 1 October 2013 and
are exercisable from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

34.

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

BIRAERTE (8)
RZE——F+—A=-++tH" &
NRABREBEZTEUNETERERER
62478 LM ITE B Mes2HB 5 ERE
B (BEESEKEREHNTE) BHH
34,171,50017 BE P #E -

RZE——F+—A=-+tHEEN
BB - F UL H #Y17,085,750
HEREER - ——F+—A=+
+tHEE YR —=F—H—
HE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HBH™
1716 o & A HLE T A917,085,75017 B8
REBAAIN-—_ZE—NE—AF—BE_
T —RNE+-A=1+—HHBTEFE
REEBNRBFHAZE_T—=F
+A—BAIL-

FA - REBEZEEIHARTTRNBER
LI

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
hnfeF g options g5 options
THEE BREHE TRE BREHAE

HK$ HK$

BT B TT

per share per share

=10 B
At 1 January Kn—A—8 8.06 48,324,000 12.44 14,568,000
Granted during the year FEREH - 6.24 34,171,500
Exercised during the year S ATT{E 6.24 (10,000) =
Lapsed during the year FRERK 6.24  (1,755,000) 12.44 (415,500)
Expired during the year FREIH 12.44 (14,152,500) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 32,406,500 - 48,324,000

The Group recognised a share option expense of RMB19,423,000
(2012: RMB19,150,000) during the current year.

AEBRAFERIEREATIAR
#19,423000C (ZE——F: AR
#19,150,0007T) ©
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of the options granted was estimated as at the
date of grant using the binomial option pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

34.

BT E (8)

EXHBRENAABEDNEER
ER-BEARETEEA GG
B Z B AT th BB AR A R R AR -
PR BN BABBEIIMT K

Lot 4 Lot 5

EJE g FERit

Dividend yield (%) % 22K (90) 3.54 3.54
Expected volatility (%) TE R 18 (%) 39.01 45.40
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 ) i K1) 2K (00) 0.181 0.234
Expected life of options (year) AR ETEET R ER () 3.09 4.09
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)  MN#EFHIRE (B TER) 6.24 6.24

The expected life of the options is the contractual life of the options
and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of the fair value.

The 10,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 10,000 ordinary shares of the Company, new share
capital of HK$200 (equivalent to RMB157) and share premium of
HK$62,200 (equivalent to RMB48,904) (before issue expense).

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 32,406,500 share
options with an exercise price of HK$6.24 per share outstanding
under the Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 32,406,500 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$648,130 (equivalent
to RMB509,579) and share premium of HK$201,568,430 (equivalent
to RMB158,479,147) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 32,406,500 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 1.16% of the Company's shares in issue
as at that date.

BRERTFHASBRENGOF
HY o RAAIRBRR R A BE H R MY T (1R
2 o FEEHK IR T RARE 2R 08 Al A
BRORKBE - ZRRITAL BB
R -

AEAARBERLRFTABEERE
BRENEMEE -

RER - ARAR]10,00017 B A% #EE1T
& BUEEE1T710,0000% A A &) T @A
KR A 2008 7T (K9ER AR 157
TC) K P15 % 862,200 7T (K FE R
AE#48,9047T) CGRETEITRAAL) ©

R—_F—=F+=-_A=+—8 ' &
NARZET BB T ERITEE6.245
JC H932,406,50017 B& A% #E 4 R 17 1F o
BEARNRBEBEERNER  BEIT
FRTERESEH AR RREINE
1732,406,5000% & 8 I% © M E £ &
NI 46481308 T (KW E M AR
509,5797C) M %15 4 (E201,568,430/%5
TC (K9E M AR ¥158,479,1477T) (K
MBREITRAR) °

R A EBRER BE - ADRIRZET
218 T # 532,406,50015 B A% K i K
111F - HERZBARBEEITRG
#71.16% °
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Group

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The movements in the reserves of the Group are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
financial statements.

(i

(ii)

PRC reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
Sino-foreign joint venture companies registered in
the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage,
as approved by the board of directors, of their
profit after income tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the
reserve fund, the enterprise expansion fund and the
employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds are
restricted as to use.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
each of the wholly-owned foreign enterprises
("WOFEs") registered in the PRC is required to
transfer not less than 10% of its profit after tax, as
determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"),
to the reserve fund, until the balance of the fund
reaches 500% of the registered capital of that
company. WOFEs registered in the PRC are required
to transfer a certain percentage, as approved by the
board of directors, of their profit after income tax to
the employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds
are restricted as to use.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, PRC domestic companies is required
to transfer 10% of its profit after income tax, as
determined in accordance with PRC GAAP, to the
statutory common reserve, until the balance of
the fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of
that company. Subject to certain restrictions as set
out in the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory
common reserve may be used to offset against the
accumulated losses, if any.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group's reorganisation in year 2005 and the
nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
in exchange therefor.

PSRRI
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35.  RESERVES (continued) 35. f#fE (/&)
(@)  Group (continued) () ZA&KE (&)
(i) Asset revaluation reserve (i) BEEGFE

The asset revaluation reserve represented the BESMHBHENR_-Z
fair value adjustments to the property, plant TRFWNE AR
and equipment, investment properties and lease & B R A 78k T 44008
prepayments which were already owned by the @Al HAEEEHESR
Group before the acquisition of the remaining 44% WE - BB REE -
equity interest in Parkson Retail Development Co., REMERFEMNESH
Ltd. in 2006. NREBENAE -

(b) Company (b) A2QFE

Available-
Share  for-sale
option  revaluation

Share Contributed  Exchange  Hedging reserve reserve  Retained

premium — surplus reserve  reseve IR WHEE  earnings Total

BtaR #MARG ENRE HHRE 2 BE EERRE REEA i
RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'O0O  RMBO0O  RMB'00O  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTZ ARBTR ARRTR

Note (i) Note (ii
R ]
At 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-f-H 1,420 438,824 (11,584) 80,058 43759 (499) 282,150 729,629
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EF2ENAEE - - (01969 (59820) - 74312085 (42341)
Employee share-based arrangement RN BERNESZH - - - - 19150 - - 19150
Interim 2012 dividends paid BNZZ-—FhERSE - - - - - - (196734 (196,734
Proposed final 2012 dividends BR-E-—FHRE - - - - - - (1967500 (196,750)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-“#+-f=1-A 1420 438824 (213553) 20238 62909 2415 01 31295
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EEZERAEE - - (Moge)  (20239) - (2415) (36591  (199918)
Employee share-based arrangement RO BERRNEE T = = = = 19423 - - 19423
Evercise of share options fifblERE 0 - - - (10) - : 50
Cancelation of share repurchase (note 33 BUBEEBR (HfH3) (1480 (6597) s s - 2 2 (8077)
Transfer of share option reserve upon GREREANMER BRE
the expiry of share options EL - - - - (44620) - 4,626 -
Interim 2013 dividends paid B Z5-=FhERE - (1052 = - - - - (14052)
Proposed final 2013 dividends HE-Z-—ERERE - ([am) = = = = - (m)

At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=1-H - 263800 (354227) - 37,696 - 8736 (43994)
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35.  RESERVES (continued) 35. & (/&)
(b)  Company (continued) (b) AT (&)
NOTES: By EE -
(i) Contributed surplus (i) OGN
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the KR BB BRI IR IR
difference between the then combined net asset value of T RFMNEMEMKE
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation MBARIERMNEHEE
in year 2005 and the nominal value of the shares of the FEEARRFEARRM
Company issued in exchange therefor. BITHRMOEERERE ©
(i) Hedging reserve (i) Eapialeic]
The hedging reserve arose from the recognition of the HRAFAE R EETERD
financial instruments which qualify for hedge accounting. SR TAEEELERHERS -
The changes are due to the settlement of the financial BHDHERGEESRT
instruments, initial recognition of the fair value of financial B -gREREBMIAD
instruments and reclassification from equity to profit or AR EEIL R TERIER
loss in the same periods during which the hedged forecast eREXEET R —H
cash flows affect profit or loss. FRERERENHEE
BamimEE o
36. DIVIDENDS 36. ME

2013 2012
—E-=F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE  ARETET

Interim - RMB0.05 (2012: RMB0.07) FE - EREEIRARK
per ordinary share 0057 (ZE——%F :
AR#0.077T) 140,525 196,734
Proposed final - RMB0.01 (2012: RMB0.07) BRIRAE — BT B

per ordinary share AR®0.017T

(ZF—=F:
AR#0.077T) 27,901 196,750
168,426 393,484
The proposed final dividends for the year (not recognised as a FRBMEARBARE (RZZE—=F+
liability as at 31 December 2013) are subject to the approval of the A=t HHAERRARE) AR
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. RARRERENERITHARRBE X

e ER - FAEE -
37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 37. EBEH

On 27 August 2012, the Group entered into a sale and purchase RZZE—=—F/\A=++tH *5H
agreement with a subsidiary of PHB and fellow subsidiary of the EAPHBAIKT B A A R AN B A R R
Group to acquire 95.91%, 100% and 100% equity interests of BRREEE —BRERAFEIVLE
Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co., Ltd. and its overseas investment holding Bz WBEEF—BEARA
companies (collectively as "Qingdao Parkson"), Shenyang Parkson AINEBIMEEIER AT (REE S
Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. and its overseas investment holding BE) BEAERBYESERAR
companies (collectively as "Shenyang Parkson") and Dalian Parkson REFIMNGEIER AR (GEEEE
Retail Development Co., Ltd. and its overseas investment holding B) RRERHBEBEZRARA
companies (collectively as “Dalian Parkson"), respectively. The AN EHBIMEEIERR A ) (S AE
acquisition considerations in the form of cash for Qingdao Parkson, B ) 9 59591% - 100% & 100%7#E
Shenyang Parkson and Dalian Parkson were RMB340,000,000, o WEREBUEREEIMORAAR
RMB80,000,000 and RMB1, respectively. #340,000,0007T + A R #80,000,000

TR ARETT -
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 37.
The acquisitions were completed on 28 February 2013.

¥Xaot (B)
FWEERN T =F_A=+N
BT °

AEBDEZUEREEEARERE
EFEFERESAERNEEERN
BE AR ZIHEmRES -

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Qingdao FEER  BHEERERNERRNK
Parkson, Shenyang Parkson and Dalian Parkson as at the date of BEMAIZIEERBEAREBEN
acquisitions were as follows: I

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interest in
Qingdao Parkson at the non-controlling interest's proportionate
share to Qingdao Parkson's identifiable net assets.

Qingdao
Parkson

EEER

RMB'000
ARBTR

Shenyang
Parkson
EEER
RMB'000
ARBTR

Dalian
Parkson
REBR
RMB'000
AR® TR

Property, plant and equipment ME - HRENK 372,089 1,201 929
Investment properties REME 25,770 - -
Other assets Hih&E 7,005 - -
Deferred tax assets FEBIEEE = 4,432 3,446
Inventories T8 23,107 1,689 4,784
Trade receivables FEWE 558 1,311 - 1,326
Prepayments, deposits and FNFIE - B
other receivables HAth el IR 25,668 14,294 7,150
Investments in principal RATFHIRE
guaranteed deposits 63,000 20,000 8,000
Time deposits EBTER 17,000 1,339 3,005
Cash and cash equivalents B NIESEEY 55,152 45,439 12,713
590,102 88,394 41,353
Trade payables e S FIE (82,175) (51,888) (30,475)
Customers' deposits, BEPike - HMER
other payables and accruals FIE K FEETIER (90,958) (15,409) -
Tax payables JE#Ti1E (4,798) (291) (539)
Long term payables R EAFE (N RKI8 (7,005) (13,297) (10,339)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAE & (44,057) - -
(228,993) (80,885) (41,353)
Total identifiable net assets at BARBEYIER
fair value AR FEERRE 361,109 7,509 =
Non-controlling interests By Ty (14,586) = =
346,523 7,509 -
Goodwill on acquisition WIBFTE £ e - 72,491 -
Gain on acquisition recognised rEEmERTREM
in other operating revenue 1B T R
in the consolidated statement Z W
of profit or loss (6,523) - -
Satisfied by cash PAIR & S5 A~ 340,000 80,000 =
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB140,000, RMB 130,000
and RMB 130,000 for the acquisitions of Qingdao Parkson, Shenyang
Parkson and Dalian Parkson, respectively. These transaction costs
have been expensed in other operating expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

E¥Be6t (8B)
AEBHRKBEEEER BEHER
M KEB KD BIEE£ AR 140,000
7T AR #130000T & A R &
130,000TCHI R B KA o KK AE
PR - WHEHNEREBRR A
FX—IEF o

&7/c

SRUBEHBARMRSIRED TN

subsidiaries is as follows: ™
Qingdao Shenyang Dalian
Parkson Parkson Parkson
BEER EG B R REFHER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR® T AR®T T
Cash consideration RWERE (340,000) (80,000) =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired B UEEIR & &
IHWEEEY 55,152 45,439 12,713
Net (outflow)/inflow of cash and Re MReEEWMF
cash equivalents included in cash ~ (GRH) /A
flows from investing activities (284,848) (34,561) 12,713
Transaction costs of the acquisition B ENELEEIRE AR
included in cash flows from ZWEERZ SRR
operating activities. (140) (130) (130)
(284,988) (34,691) 12,583

The Group paid a deposit for these acquisitions amounting to
RMB42 million before 31 December 2012 and paid in full the
remaining considerations before 31 December 2013. The net cash
outflow from the acquisitions for the current year amounted to
RMB264,696,000.

Since the acquisitions, Qingdao Parkson, Shenyang Parkson and
Dalian Parkson contributed RMB133,232,000, RMB71,724,000
and RMB48,067,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB 10,693,000,
RMB3,022,000 and (RMB15,556,000) to the consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of year, the
revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB4,560,367,000 and RMB373,569,000, respectively.

AEBRZSEWER_T——F+
ZRA=EtT—HAXNEEARKE
42,000,0007C * WA ZT—=F+=
A=+—HAIBEEAHBTRE - B
REE - BRIBEERNRSFREA
AR #264,696,0007T °

BliEE -  SEER  BHEEBREK
HARAREE_T—=F+=ZRA=
+—HALEFENAEEKETERA
X #133,233,0007C * A R #71,72,000
TR A R #48067,0007T @ R&RE F
HE B AR #10,693,0007T « AR
3,022,0007T & (AR % 15,556,0007T) ©

MEHREVETT ZEBRAF
FEHRakFMBEEDAEARKE
4,560,367,0007C & A & #373,569,000
7TE o
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

38. TAREME

A subsidiary of the Group located in the PRC is currently a REBEH—FHTBEMERHERES
respondent in an arbitration related to a lease contract termination ES—RAEAKRIEHEESHNNFAR
brought by a claimant alleging that the subsidiary should refund - REEBZMNBARARENAS
the lease deposit and bear a certain amount of contract breach ReWAEETEORME - BRELAE
penalty. The directors, based on the advice from the Group's legal ErEERNER  EERBEZNB
counsel, believe that the subsidiary has a valid defence against the NEIE B E R A R E - B AR
allegation and, accordingly, the Group was not provided for any SEWARBFRESE 2 EMREFIR

claim arising from the arbitration.

B -

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS 39, &R&EHAORZHEREE

(i) Operating lease arrangements

() REBORH

As lessee tERAMA

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating AEBRBESEHOLHEER
lease arrangements. Majority of these leases have BT - REBDZEHAHN
non-cancellable lease terms ranging from 15 to 20 years RIS BN F152 206 2
and there are no restrictions placed upon the Group by M- BEASEMEEVZSE

entering into these lease agreements.

HE M BNERR S o

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the following future AEBR-_ZE—=F+=-A=
minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating T —HRBE A BEECEEL
leases: BERNRREEESIT
2013 2012
—E—=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBTF T
(Restated)
(g=75)
Within one year —FR 1,088,663 846,659
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE-_RZEREFE
(BEEREMF) 4,851,606 4,051,940
After five years hF% 10,024,518 10,105,976
15,964,787 15,004,575
A lease that is cancellable only upon the occurrence of EREEAE TRINAEIE
some remote contingency is a non-cancellable operating R E AR e
lease as defined under IFRSs. Pursuant to the relevant R AFEH T HELEHA
lease agreements, the Group is entitled to terminate the A RMEBEEBHEERZ WA
underlying lease agreement if the attributable department BIEXBEEBTRESRED
store business has incurred losses in excess of a prescribed BRI EMEEEEABEME
amount or any department store will not be in a position to EREBELEEL  AXEER

continue its business because of the losses.

BRI BREERZ

In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental B Bt &SN - FESAE IR
amount is chargeable at a percentage of the turnover of EREENEEENE -8

the respective stores.

HoS2 A e
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS 39. REHNTHRAE (8)

(continued)
0] Operating lease arrangements (continued) 0] REBPHZH (B)
As lessor ERH A
The Group leases out certain of its properties under operating AEBRBSEMROEHEET
leases. These leases have remaining non-cancellable lease Y1 o ZERAB TR AT
terms ranging from 1 to 10 years. HEHEBANTI1Z10FETE -
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had the following KEBR-_Z—=F+-A=
future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable F+—HRBRBEEELEHL
operating leases: BB ARRSERSHT -
2013 2012
—E—= e =
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREETTT
(Restated)
(&E=5)
Within one year —FR 136,519 131,388
FEEFRF
In the second to fifth years, inclusive (BHEEREME) 324,461 219,767
After five years HEF1% 135,234 107,771
596,214 458,926
In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental Br FitESN  FESHAESIZ
amount is calculated on a percentage of the turnover of BEHPHEXERENE B8O

the respective tenants. FTH
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS 39. REHNTHRAE (8)

(continued)

B b e A THEIN - Rk

(i) In addition to the operating lease arrangements above, the (i)

Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

BN wEBHRE AT E A&

=

2013 2012

—E—=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for: B ET 4B AR B
Leasehold improvements HEWMEEE 51,699 40,619
Purchase of land and buildings BE i RET (a) 996,943 105,690
Equity acquisition HETS UL BE (o) - 378,000
1,048,642 524,309
NOTES: BtaE -

(a) As discussed in note 24, the total consideration regarding (a) WART FE24 P - BEE T
the purchase of land use right and construction of a new ERAEREEFEYES
shopping mall is RMB1.57 billion. As at 31 December 2013, REBEAEAREI57E

other than the prepaid deposits of RMB573 million, the
remaining capital commitment amount is RMB997 million.

On 27 August 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire Qingdao Parkson, Shenyang
Parkson and Dalian Parkson as detailed in note 37 to the
financial statements. As at 31 December 2012, a deposit
for the acquisitions amounting to RMB42 million was
paid and the remaining considerations represented capital
commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2012.

TLe RZTE—=F+=A
=+—H BREBEGERS
ARMs738 & Lo - &
T B A FEE AR A R 97
BB -

(b) RZE——-—FNA=++
B NEEBFTHERKE
EEER - BBEEREKX
EERZEEWE B
R BmERME37 - R
E-——F+-A=+—
A ANEED S FRER
S ARELEETT BT
REATEER=_Z—=
F+-A=+—HHWEX
HRIE o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following significant continuing transactions
with related parties during the year:

(a)

Continuing transactions

40.

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

BEFRS
FR - AEBEEBESETHNERE
BXH0T :

() HEXS

2013 2012
—B-=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&£ &E7))
Royalty fee expenses HrETREREY (i) 1,450 1,257
Consultancy fee income RABUWA (i) 3,246 10,168
Property management fee expenses BB B X (iif) 10,067 9,293
NOTES: MEeE -

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

The royalty fee expenses are payable to Smart Spectrum
Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for the
Group's entitlement to use the trademark of "Parkson” in
the PRC. The royalty fee was charged based on RMB30,000
per annum for each department store owned or managed
by the Group.

The consultancy fee income is received or receivable
from a joint venture of the Group of RMB2,520,000
(2012:RMB2,480,000) and fellow subsidiaries of the Group
of RMB726,000 (2012: RMB7,688,000). The consultancy
fees are determined according to the underlying contracts.

The property management fee expenses are payable to
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.,
an associate of the Company. The property management
fee of RMB10,067,000 (2012: RMB9,239,000) per annum
was charged according to the underlying contract.

The royalty fee expenses and the consultancy fee income
generated from fellow subsidiaries of the Group also
constitute continuing connection transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as these
continuing connected transactions represent less than 0.1%

of the

relevant percentage ratios, pursuant to paragraph

14A.33(3)(a) of the Listing Rules, these continuing connected
transactions are exempted from the reporting, annual

review,

announcement and independent shareholders'

approval requirements.

(i) R EABRAYRANEERF
BFEA a8 miZmERNARAR]
— R [F) Z i BB B]Smart Spectrum
Limited ) X IH - Frr EFE A B IR
FF AREE30,000 A EEHES
LEENTRE EERE

(ii) M2 &2 & R 2 6 B 88 I R R
B R R R EL S B R B R B A
2B A A R#2,520,0007T (ZZF—
—F : AR¥®2,480,0007T) RAR
#726,0000L (ZZE—=—F : AR
#£7,688,0007T) © A E JHIR IR
FEHET -

(i) MEEBERAIIEEMGTEAAA
HBE R EBNLESMMES
BERAGIMNRIE METEE
FF AR ¥10,067,0000T (ZF—
—4F : AR¥9,239,0007T) TR
A& HIUER -

AEERRWB QR FTELENFTFE
FARABRASZ RBABRATEX LT
RMAFUAZE THRERERS °
A ARZEREBERZFTLE
B E ot RAKR0.10% @ RiE T AR A
F14A333)0)F% ' ZEHEBRER S
EHRPETHR  FEEHR - 2E&EK
BRI EZFRE ©
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40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Continuing transactions (continued)

The consultancy fee income generated from a joint
venture of the Group and the property management fee
expense payable to an associate of the Group do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Group's outstanding balances with the
related parties are disclosed in note 23 to these financial
statements. The balances with related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Other transactions with related parties

In 2013, the Group acquired 95.91%, 100% and 100% equity
interests of Qingdao Parkson, Shenyang Parkson and Dalian
Parkson from a fellow subsidiary of PHB at considerations
totalling to RMB420 million.

These transactions constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the relevant disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have
been complied with. Further details of the acquisitions are
included in note 37.

Compensation of key management personnel (as defined
under |IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures) of the Company:

40.

BEFRZ (&)

(a)

(b)

()

rExRS (B)
AEE-REECEMELN
TR B U AR BN AN B B
RANYERERBRALTE
KAEXZRFBERER S
(EER LTRAF14AE)

AR B EERE T MR ER B
FBERBRM B RERM T -
HEE T MERAEER - 2
BN EREEERY -

HBEESNEMRS

RZE—=ZFF A£EM
PHBRIEZKIB R RINEST S B
B BBBEREKEAERN
95.91% ~ 100952 10000M% 4 + £
B4 £ A E#420,000,0007T °

AR BEK ETHAFE14AZE
THEERS  YE/FAE L
MRAFUAZENHBRER
TE o RS HVE M B 5 R
5F37 ©

ARAEREEAR (EER
RE R RIS 2455k [ B2 7
wEE]) F

2013 2012

—=E—= —E——F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETTT

Fees 5 A 1,012 1,020

Other emoluments: HMe

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e o ERL -

other benefits TEAT R E b & F 3,798 2,916

Equity-settled share option expense BREEREERAX 2,615 2,578

Pension scheme contributions RASHEIH I 201 182

7,626 6,696

Further details of directors' and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial
statements.

EENTIZTBABHEE—
FHBENPHREMET -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. SRIASE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHRemMIENREHRNKREMBELD
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TS &
Group rEE
2013
—E—=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&E7)
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables: B EWGRIE
Trade receivables EUE 558 93,541 147,362
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATENFIE - e
deposits and other receivables K B A FE R IR R Y
TREE 92,628 187,703
Investments in principal guaranteed deposits — RANFFIZE 3,635,303 3,307,373
Time deposits EHER 143,167 225,365
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEHEY 1,035,518 1,424,477
5,000,157 5,292,280
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEHESRMEE
Available-for-sale financial investments A E SRR E - 32,098
5,000,157 5,324,378
2012
—E——4F
RMB'000
AREFIT
(Restated)
(& E7)
Financial liabilities REE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: TREESHAK AR B BRAY
TRBE
Trade payables e B S RIE 1,957,867 1,896,628
Financial liabilities included in customers' BEREERSE -
deposits, other payables and accruals E b fE AT R3E &
fEEt & A 264,076 178,451
Term loan facilities TFHER®ME - 2,491,161
Interest-bearing bank loans ST ERITEE 178,944 -
Bonds &5 3,016,833 =
5,417,720 4,566,240
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRBTEANEE
profit or loss: ATECERARE
Derivative financial instruments EERHHAITAN
designated as hedging instruments AMESBMTA - 69,498

5,417,720 4,635,738
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 41. EWMIESE (&)
Company VNN

2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E——F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBEFTT

Financial assets PRLEE
Loans and receivables: ER KR ERGFIA
Financial assets included in prepayments, SFAFERFUE - e
deposits and other receivables o H At & WU IR IR Y
TREE 153 7,733
Time deposits TEBATE R 28,389 253
Cash and cash equivalents RELREEEY 25,904 185,888
54,446 193,874
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHEESREE :
Available-for-sale financial investments AIHHESRRE - 32,098
54,446 225972

2013 2012
—E—=F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBEFIT

Financial liabilities TREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Bk SR AR B BR 1Y
TRAE
Financial liabilities included in customers' SARPRE  Hi
deposits, other payables and accruals TR TE N EETTE R
N EREE 34,544 13,716
Term loan facilities EHEHRME - 2,491,161
Interest-bearing bank loans S ERITEE 178,944 -
Bonds &5 3,016,833 -
3,230,321 2,504,877
Financial liabilities at fair value through FHiRBEREANEE
profit or loss: FECERARE
Derivative financial instruments designated ETAEHHMT AR
as hedging instruments EERITA - 69,498
3,230,321 2,574,375
The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated BERMHAIAMNITESRTARE
as hedging instruments and other financial assets have been HEFEEN AR BEDEMSHE

calculated using market interest rates. FTH -
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 42.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the
Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Group and Company

Carrying amounts

fREE

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

TRMIAEAREERAIAEBEE
5
AEERARRNEE T AMNKEE
RARBE (RERBEERRAE
EREEZERIN) T

AEBERARF

Fair values
AREE

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f 2 ZB-=F —T—_F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT AR%TR ARETR
Financial assets: SREE :
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - 32,098 - 32,098
- 32,098 - 32,098
Carrying amounts Fair values
RREE DNREE
2013 2012 2013 2012
B B —F-=% —_T—_—F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET AREBTT ARETR ARETT
Financial liabilities: ERAE:

Interest-bearing loans and FEERKEER
borrowings 178,944 - 178,944 -
Bonds B 3,016,833 - 3,016,833 -
Term loan facilities THEZRE - 2,491,161 - 2,491,161

Derivative financial instruments EERHIAN

designated as hedging TESMIA
instruments - 69,498 - 69,498
3,195,777 2,560,659 3,195,777 2,560,659

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, investments in principal guaranteed
deposits, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, trade receivables, trade payable and financial
liabilities included in customers' deposits, other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

EEEFHHRENREEEY &
IR« RAERERE - BRREN
FOA -~ e REMERSIRR SR
BE  BHRUWHA  BHRENFA
REENREPRE - R REMNRIAER
FEETHE AN SR BB QA EER
EREEEE RARE LHRNZS
TR T REHIARI M -
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The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate
finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate finance
team analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank loans and the Bonds have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group's own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
loans and the Bonds as at 31 December 2013 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with various
counterparties, principally financial institutions with A+ credit
ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including forward currency
contracts and interest rate swaps, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various market
observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate curves.
The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

MY SRR ERN A EEDEREE
FrEaEREemITARAEE
STENBRRKEER - EXEBEERKE
ERERUHEMNERRBEE®RS °
REEREEH  CXBREBBST
SRITEANEEESMEEGERA
MEBHE - HERERVBEEZ
KAt - iR B R FEM B R E A 1E
BRENMEREECZZE G —FrlWmm

S
IN °

CRIEENBBNARBEIIAERHE
EHTRERRS (WIERH B LH
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 42. @I REERAAEBER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) & (f %)
As at 31 December 2013, the Group held the following financial RZZE—=F+Z"A=+—H K&
instruments measured at fair value: @ﬁﬁ—l—ﬁu?ﬁ&/ﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂl
Financial assets at fair value BAAREBESENESREE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T-F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARET T
Available-for-sale investments HEERSE

At 1 January w—HA—H 32,098 24,685

Gain recognised in other REMEEKA
comprehensive income R W 6,976 7,413
Disposal HE (39,074) -
At 31 December nN+—_A=+—H - 32,098

Financial liabilities at fair value RAARBEFENEREE

2012
—E——4F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETT
Derivative financial instruments designated T AT AN
as hedging instruments MTESRMIT A
At 1 January m—A—H 69,498 8,683
Gain recognised in other REMZEKA
comprehensive income HERH W e - 59,820
Gain recognised in finance income REE WA R A W s - 995
Disposal k= (69.498) -
At 31 December ®R+—A=+—8 - 69,498
The Group did not have any financial assets or liabilities measured RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H0 "  &*&

at fair value as at 31 December 2013.

BYBEFIARAREBEAENEHRE

EXTHMAR -
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The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise the Bonds, interest-bearing bank loans, term loan facilities,
investments in principal guaranteed deposits, time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and trade receivables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, primarily interest
rate swap and cross currency swap contracts. The purpose is to
manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's
policy that no trading in derivatives shall be undertaken other
than the interest rate swap and cross currency swap contracts as
mentioned above.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank loans (note
32) and term loan facilities (note 29) with floating interest rates.
Since the Group's Bonds (note 31) bear a fixed interest rate at 4.5%
per annum, no interest rate risk is associated with the Bonds.

The Group manages the interest risk associated with term loan
facilities by entering into interest rate swap contracts to convert
the floating interest rates to fixed interest rates (note 30).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's and the Company's profit after tax and
equity through the impact on interest-bearing bank loans with
floating interest rates.

AEENTZeMITAE (TTETAK
5N BYRES  FERRITER - €8
EXBE  RAFRKRE  RE KRR
@ﬁﬁ%&m%fmoaiﬁﬂ%
%WEE%@B%$$IW

BEg o  AEBHEBAMNK &i

Hip e E - BIRE S E&&%
ﬁﬁ?yEE&R%$E$%$@ﬁ
o

AEENETIIER S (ERR/FIE
BHLRRNEEERHEH) - AEH
AEERERESREOTREEE
B o

7R 62 [ 2R i e 17K [ B A e ) KSR
%Tffﬁilﬁ(iiﬁLMﬂ%
EH LR X EBIEHE LRI o

$%E%E$@I WEQH 2 /5 ]

HNERER - EERB RS
éiﬂ B o “?A%Fﬁjiﬂﬁ 2 ) &
BAEBRBREBE - ZEBREG LN
—F °

A= b
AEEHEBENOMSMNEARES T
ERASENERTER (M
32) BN EEHERRE (M
29) - BN AEEES (H5E31) #ZE
Eiﬂ@%%ﬁé'mﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@
B A R R o

AEBREBII VN X=MENKEH
MR A5 B 7E F) 2= AR AE B E A E
BEARBEAF R (HFE30)

TRINTHMEEEEBNGRE - F
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BIRBRR AR FF BRI RZENTE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. BIEEKREEZEEERBER (8)
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued) F=EER (8)

Group and Company REFERADT

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after tax
BRBi&
Hegm,

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity
Rz
(R 2)

Increase/
(decrease) in
basis point

Hysin
2] O 4)

2013 —ET—=F

HK$ bank loans BITRITER
HK$ bank loans HBITIRITE R
US$ bank loans ETLIRITER
US$ bank loans ETLRITER

No sensitivity is analysed for 2012 since the interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates were borrowed in 2013.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arise from
the Group's debt financings denominated in HK$ and US$ which
were borrowed by the Company with the functional currency of
US$, while the Group's presentation currency of the financial
statements is RMB.

The Group manages the foreign currency risk associated with term
loan facilities denominated in HK$ and US$ by entering into cross
currency swap contracts (note 30).

Since the Group mainly engages in operation of department stores
in the PRC, transactional currency exposure arising from sales or
purchases in currencies other RMB has an immaterial impact on the
Group's after tax profit and equity.

RMB'000
AR¥T R

RMB'000
AR® T

100 (1,179) (1,179)
(100) 1,179 1,179
100 (610) (610)
(100) 610 610

REBRITERBER T —=F8
& BAEER_Z-—=FHREH
i e

SRS B
AEBEHERAINE R E BRI
EREEXTREANAREEBITMET
MEBRE - MAKERMBEHRRD
ENEEB/ARE -

AEBBBAI VI EBEHE LR
2 A TT RS TT S B R E B KR
BRRMINE R (FIFE30)

AEBEIERFLENEREES
B EERARE NN EE RS,
b - AR R R R
K o
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31 December
2013 to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and US$ exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's equity
(due to translation of the operating results and financial position of
each subsidiary with a functional currency other than RMB into the
presentation currency of RMB used for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group).

43.

2013 —F—=

RMB strengthens against HK$ ARBHBITAE
RMB weakens against HK$ AR BT E
RMB strengthens against US$ ARERETHE
RMB weakens against US$ ARERETRE

*

Excluding retained earnings

Credit risk

The Group trades on credit only with third parties who have an
established trading history with the Group and have no history of
default. It is the Group's policy that new customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
maximum exposure is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 23
to the financial statements.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, investments
in principal guaranteed deposits, and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the customer bases of the Group's trade receivables are widely
dispersed.

MEEREEERERBEEK (8B)

S ELER ()
TREIMEMARERSAE - K=
T—=FF+_A=1t—HBTEXT
ZEEXMAIE SR EFHHRE (B
R M B A B R & 48 R A 55k
RERNNEEEERSAKERS
MBRERZIIFANARE) -

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity*

M

OR2) =

RMB'000

% AR®T T

Increase/
(decrease)
in rate

#hn

(RD) e

5 (493)
(5) 493
5 (1,528)
(5) 1,528

* TRERERN

FERR

AEEEERAAKERXSELRAY
BHERKBNE=TETHRERS °
REAKENERER  ARERRER
FHFEPEERMR © I - K&
BB IR S - Et - R
SEEHAERARITEK - &A
[\ & 8RS B TS R M R 23 MR MO BR
HfE -

AEEEMEHMEE (BRES KR
T EEY  BHEFER  KRAFREK
& AR - e REMEWGIR
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SFHFHBRFEMEL - AR LR
SRNZETEMNKREE °

MR AR EERERRREER TN
F=TETRS - BMAEBSFEIR
ST EERBRBEF BEHFE
# e AEEEZRKKAREFEZD
B BAYBBAKFEERR -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of the Bonds and other
interest-bearing bank loans. 43% of the Group's debts would
mature in less than one year as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 100%)
based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial
statements. The directors have reviewed the Group's liquidity
position, working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
determined that the Group has no significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

Group
Year ended 31 December 2013

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

43. BHIEEREBEEEZERBE (8)

REBESEE
AEBEEEBFBESREMETE
BITER B ESTB/EETEEN
ZEMFEE RN -_TE—=F+=-A=
+—H  BEFERERPIRBENEE
MBRMEE @ AEEA430EHER —
FERFE (ZZE——4F : 100%) o =
EEEHNAEENRBESNR - &
BEEeREARASTTRK  WERLRE
B EEARDESRR ©

AEERREARARIGNERE
& ERNALRBBAENFTEAT

XM
HE—F—=F+ A=A

Within
1year 1to2years 2to3years 3 tob5 years Total
—FA —-5EWF WEEZF ZFEIF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB*000
ARBTRE AR%TR AR¥TR ARBTR AR%BT:R
Trade payables RS 5508 1,957,867 - - - 1,957,867
Financial liabilities included in -~ BEREFES « £
customers' deposits, other JER e fEEHIE R
payables and accruals AREREE 264,076 - - - 264,076
Interest-bearing bank loans HBRITEE - 183,116 - - 183,116
Bonds &5 - - - 3135723  3,135723
2,221,943 183,116 - 3135723 5540,782

Year ended 31 December 2012

BE_F——F+_H=1—HIFF

Within
Tyear Tto2years 2to3years 3 tob years Total
—FR —FERFE WFE=F =FERF @ar
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Term loan facilities THETRE 2,678,653 = = = 2,678,653
Trade payables ERNESHE 1,896,628 = = = 1,896,628
Financial liabilities included in ~ BEREFES £t
customers' deposits, other ERFIR R EATER
payables and accruals AMERAaE 178,451 - - - 178,451
Derivative financial instruments ~ $EE A% M T AH
designated as hedging TEeRMIA
instruments 69,498 - - - 69,498
4823230 - - - 4823230
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. BBEBEBEEERBE (8)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRAR (8)
The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the REmEBHRIMZARRE/E
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted & ERNGARMIREMNKIELNT -

payments, is as follows:

Company N

Year ended 31 December 2013 BE—FT—=F+_A=1—HIFZE
Within
1year 1to2years 2to3years 3 tob5 years Total
—FR -5EWE WEEZF ZFERf @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBT ARETR AR¥ETR AR®TR ARBTR

Financial liabilities included in st AR PRS- Eff

customers' deposits, other T FIERERTIER
payables and accruals NS R EE 34,544 - - - 34,544
Interest-bearing bank loans SERITEE - 183,116 - - 183,116
Bonds B - - - 3135723 3,135,723
34,544 183,116 - 3,135,723 3,353,383
Year ended 31 December 2012 B —F——Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZF

Within
Tyear 1to2years 2to3years 3 tob5 years Total
—ER —FEMF MFRE=F Z=FE2nF st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETE ARETT ARBTT ARBTL

Term loan facilities THETRE 2,678,653 - - - 2,678,653
Financial liabilities included in ~ BIEREFRS - Hif

customers' deposits, other BT HIERERTIAR

payables and accruals NN SR EE 13,716 = = = 13,716
Derivative financial instruments 55 A% h T A#Y

designated as hedging fTHEERMIA

instruments 69,498 - - - 69,498

2,761,867 = = = 2,761,867
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
ensure that it maintains the Group's stability and growth.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it taking into consideration changes in
economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
adjusted debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net adjusted
debt. Net adjusted debt includes the Bonds, interest-bearing bank
loans, long term payables, term loan facilities, trade payables, and
customers' deposits, other payables and accruals less cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits and investments in principal guaranteed
deposits. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
parent less the hedging reserve. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

43.

31 December 2013 —E—=F+=-A=+—H

MBEREEERERBEEK (8)

ErEE
AEBEAREE 2 TR A FEREH
FAKRENREMER -

AEBERRN MNEEEEARER -
TWATERSEETRE - LHERE
Bl KAEBERREATK - BERK K
BRABAMED KEREGRE © A

CRNGE e

AEBRERABLEREZEEN
% LR Ty RIS B EIER AL E
RS MERHEFEHTE - EHBF
BBRREES  sHRRITEE - &4
ENHRIR - EHESRE BNES
RANEFPES - BRI FAKE
SEERRE RS EEY T
RERAEFERRE - BABEEAT
A ANRGESRE TR - RRE
HRNERBEL RN

2013 2012
—E—=

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETT
Bonds (£ 3,016,833 -
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITEER 178,944 =
Long term payables RHEIEN 08 482,144 237,397
Term loan facilities EHERFE - 2,491,161
Trade payables JERTE 5 5/1A 1,957,867 1,896,628

Customers' deposits, other payables BEPike - HiERHKIE
and accruals K EETIE B 2,027,896 1,894,913
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IRENRESEEY (1,035,518) (1,424,477)
Time deposits EHER (143,167) (225,365)
Investments in principal guaranteed deposits RAEATGFEHIEE (3.635,303) (3,307,373)
Net adjusted debt 1R I BRAE TS 2,849,696 1,562,884
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRAIMAEARGER 5,597,187 5,584,031
Less: Hedging reserve W HE R - (20,238)
Adjusted capital PRSI 5,597,187 5,563,793
Adjusted capital and net adjusted debt KRR E R RS FES 8,446,883 7,126,677
Gearing ratio BARBEHE 34% 22%
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44,

45,

46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group did not have any significant events taking place
subsequent to 31 December 2013.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of revised IFRSs during the current year,
the accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements have been revised to comply
with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with the
current year's presentation and accounting treatment, and a third
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2012 has been
presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 20 February 2014.

44,

45,

46.

REHEREE
REBR -_ZE—=FE+=-A=+—H
WA (T EAREHIREIE -

B 3%

AN BA 5 R MY SE2. 2P — SRR
RRAFEERALETERM GRS
R BBwERTETRENGEE
BRERR/TEMNBERTVEEHN R
BEe Filt - BT RSB ETERN
DRNBESY - NEREFENZ25I K
BRTEENE B YER-FT—=
F-A—HERF=HBEHRRE -
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